UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

| (Mark ⊠ | One) QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT 1934 | TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF TH | HE SECURITII | ES EXCHANGE ACT | OF |
|------------|--|--|--|---|----|
| | For | the quarterly period ended June 30, 202 | 0 | | |
| | | OR | | | |
| | TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT 1934 | TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF TI | HE SECURITI | ES EXCHANGE ACT | OF |
| | For the | ne transition period from to | | | |
| | | Commission File Number: 001-36708 | | | |
| | | Uniti Group Inc. | | | |
| | (Exact | name of registrant as specified in its char | rter) | | |
| | Maryland (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) | | 46-52306 (I.R.S. Empl Identification | oyer | |
| | 10802 Executive Center Drive Benton Building Suite 300 Little Rock, Arkansas (Address of principal executive offices) Registran | nt's telephone number, including area code: (501) 85 | 72211 (Zip Code 0-0820 | e) | |
| | Section | rities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) o | f the Act | | |
| | Title of each class | Trading Symbol(s) | | xchange on which registered | |
| | Common Stock | UNIT | The NASDA | AQ Global Select Market | |
| 1934 d | Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) uring the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter ements for the past 90 days. Yes \boxtimes No \square | | | | |
| of Reg | Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has ulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the µ Yes ⊠ No □ | | | | |
| an eme | Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a erging growth company. See the definitions of "largny" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. | | | | |
| Large a | accelerated filer | | | Accelerated filer | |
| Non-ac | ccelerated filer | | | Smaller reporting company Emerging growth company | |
| | If an emerging growth company, indicate by check revised financial accounting standards provided p | | the extended trans | | |
| | Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a | shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of | the Exchange Act). | . Yes □ No ⊠ | |
| As of J | July 31, 2020, the registrant had 194,149,566 share | s of common stock, \$0.0001 par value per sl | hare, outstanding. | | |
| , | | | | | |
| | | | | | |

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q includes forward-looking statements as defined under U.S. federal securities law. Forward-looking statements include all statements that are not historical statements of fact and those regarding our intent, belief or expectations, including, but not limited to, statements regarding: our expectations regarding the settlement we have announced with Windstream Holdings, Inc. ("Windstream Holdings") and its subsidiaries (Windstream Holdings, together with its subsidiaries, "Windstream") and our ability to satisfy the conditions precedent to its effectiveness, and Windstream's ability to implement a successful plan of reorganization and emerge from bankruptcy (including the timing thereof); if the settlement is not effected, the bankruptcy and Windstream's performance under its long-term exclusive triple-net lease with us (the "Master Lease"); if the settlement is not effected, our expectations with respect to the treatment of the Master Lease in Windstream's petitions for relief under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, including with respect to Windstream's claims that the Master Lease should be recharacterized as a financing transaction, that the Master Lease is a lease of personal property and that rent payments and tenant capital improvements made by Windstream under the Master Lease constituted constructive fraudulent transfers and that we are in breach of certain of our obligations under the Master Lease; our expectations about our ability to maintain our status as a real estate investment trust (a "REIT"); our expectations regarding the effect of the COVID-19 pandemic on our results of operations and financial condition, including the potential need to perform an interim goodwill analysis and report an impairment charge related thereto; our expectations regarding the future growth and demand of the telecommunication industry, future financing plans, business strategies, growth prospects, operating and financial performance, and our future liquidity needs and access to capital; our expectations regarding the probability of our obligation to pay contingent consideration upon Tower Cloud, Inc.'s ("Tower Cloud") achievement of certain defined operational and financial milestones; expectations regarding future deployment of fiber strand miles and small cell networks and recognition of revenue related thereto; expectations regarding levels of capital expenditures; expectations regarding the deductibility of goodwill for tax purposes; expectations regarding reclassification of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) related to derivatives to interest expense; expectations regarding the amortization of intangible assets; our expectations regarding the wind down of the Consumer CLEC business; and expectations regarding the payment of dividends.

Words such as "anticipate(s)," "expect(s)," "intend(s)," "plan(s)," "believe(s)," "may," "will," "would," "could," "should," "seek(s)" and similar expressions, or the negative of these terms, are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. These statements are based on management's current expectations and beliefs and are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties that could lead to actual results differing materially from those projected, forecasted or expected. Although we believe that the assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we can give no assurance that our expectations will be attained. Factors which could have a material adverse effect on our operations and future prospects or which could cause actual results to differ materially from our expectations include, but are not limited to:

- the future prospects of our largest customer, Windstream Holdings, which, following a finding that it is in default of certain of its debt, on February 25, 2019, and along with all of its subsidiaries, filed voluntary petitions for relief under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code;
- the risk that our settlement with Windstream is not implemented because the conditions to the implementation of the settlement are not satisfied and/or Windstream is not able to successfully emerge and the settlement is not implemented;
- adverse impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on our employees, our business, the business of our customers and other business partners and the global financial markets;
- the ability and willingness of our customers to meet and/or perform their obligations under any contractual arrangements entered into with us, including master lease arrangements;
- · the ability of our customers to comply with laws, rules and regulations in the operation of the assets we lease to them;
- the ability and willingness of our customers to renew their leases with us upon their expiration, and the ability to reposition our properties on the same or better terms in the event of nonrenewal or in the event we replace an existing tenant;
- our ability to renew, extend or retain our contracts or to obtain new contracts with significant customers (including customers of the businesses that we acquire);
- the availability of and our ability to identify suitable acquisition opportunities and our ability to acquire and lease the respective properties on favorable terms or operate and integrate the acquired businesses;
- our ability to generate sufficient cash flows to service our outstanding indebtedness and fund our capital funding commitments;

Table of Contents

- our ability to access debt and equity capital markets;
- adverse impacts of changes to our business, economic trends or key assumptions regarding our estimates of fair value, including potential
 impacts of recent developments surrounding Windstream that could result in an impairment charge in the future, which could have a
 significant impact to our reported earnings;
- the impact on our business or the business of our customers as a result of credit rating downgrades, and fluctuating interest rates;
- adverse impacts of litigation or disputes involving us or our customers;
- our ability to retain our key management personnel;
- our ability to maintain our status as a REIT, including as a result of the effects of the recent events with respect to our largest customer, Windstream Holdings;
- changes in the U.S. tax law and other federal, state or local laws, whether or not specific to REITs, including the impact of the 2017 U.S. tax reform legislation and the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act or the "CARES" Act;
- changes in the accounting treatment of our settlement with Windstream;
- covenants in our debt agreements that may limit our operational flexibility;
- the possibility that we may experience equipment failures, natural disasters, cyber attacks or terrorist attacks for which our insurance may not provide adequate coverage;
- the risk that we fail to fully realize the potential benefits of or have difficulty in integrating the companies we acquire;
- other risks inherent in the communications industry and in the ownership of communications distribution systems, including potential liability relating to environmental matters and illiquidity of real estate investments; and
- additional factors discussed in Part I, Item 2 "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and Part II, Item 1A "Risk Factors" of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and in Part I, Item 1A "Risk Factors" of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019, and Part II, Item 1A "Risk Factors" our Quarterly Report for the quarter ended March 31, 2020, as well as those described from time to time in our future reports filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC").

Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this Quarterly Report. Except in the normal course of our public disclosure obligations, we expressly disclaim any obligation to release publicly any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statements to reflect any change in our expectations or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based.

Uniti Group Inc. Table of Contents

| | | Page |
|-------------------|---|------|
| PART I. | FINANCIAL INFORMATION | |
| Item 1. | Financial Statements (Unaudited) | 5 |
| | Uniti Group Inc. | |
| | Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets | 5 |
| | Condensed Consolidated Statements of (Loss) Income | 6 |
| | Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive (Loss) Income | 7 |
| | Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Deficit | 8 |
| | Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows | 11 |
| | Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements | 13 |
| | 1. Organization and Description of Business | 13 |
| | 2. Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies | 13 |
| | 3. Revenues | 16 |
| | 4. <u>Leases</u> | 18 |
| | 5. <u>Asset Dispositions</u> | 21 |
| | 6. <u>Investment in Unconsolidated Partnership</u> | 21 |
| | 7. Assets and Liabilities Held for Sale | 22 |
| | 8. Fair Value of Financial Instruments | 22 |
| | 9. Property Plant and Equipment | 24 |
| | 10. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities | 25 |
| | 11. Goodwill and Intangible Assets | 26 |
| | 12. Notes and Other Debt | 27 |
| | 13. Earnings Per Share | 31 |
| | 14. <u>Segment Information</u> | 32 |
| | 15. <u>Commitments and Contingencies</u> | 35 |
| | 16. Accumulated Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income | 39 |
| | 17. Subsequent Events | 40 |
| Item 2. | Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations | 41 |
| | 1. <u>Overview</u> | 41 |
| | 2.Results of Operations | 44 |
| | 3. Non-GAAP Financial Measures | 56 |
| | 4. <u>Liquidity and Capital Resources</u> | 58 |
| Item 3. | Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk | 62 |
| Item 4. | Controls and Procedures | 63 |
| PART II. | OTHER INFORMATION | |
| Item 1. | <u>Legal Proceedings</u> | 64 |
| Item 1A. | Risk Factors | 66 |
| Item 2. | <u>Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds</u> | 67 |
| Item 3. | <u>Defaults Upon Senior Securities</u> | 67 |
| Item 4. | Mine Safety Disclosures | 67 |
| Item 5. | Other Information | 67 |
| Item 6. | Exhibits | 68 |
| <u>Signatures</u> | | 68 |

PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements.

Uniti Group Inc. Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets

| (Thousands, except par value) | • | Unaudited) me 30, 2020 | Dece | ember 31, 2019 |
|--|----|---------------------------|------|----------------|
| Assets: | | | | |
| Property, plant and equipment, net | \$ | 3,098,191 | \$ | 3,409,945 |
| Cash and cash equivalents | | 88,269 | | 142,813 |
| Accounts receivable, net | | 72,353 | | 77,623 |
| Goodwill | | 690,672 | | 690,672 |
| Intangible assets, net | | 346,052 | | 531,979 |
| Straight-line revenue receivable | | 3,287 | | 2,408 |
| Other assets, net | | 126,944 | | 161,560 |
| Assets held for sale | | 364,423 | | - |
| Investment in unconsolidated entity | | 26,004 | | - |
| Total Assets | \$ | 4,816,195 | \$ | 5,017,000 |
| Liabilities and Shareholders' Deficit: | | | | |
| Liabilities: | | | | |
| Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities, net | \$ | 168,288 | \$ | 227,121 |
| Settlement payable (Note 15) | | 650,000 | | - |
| Accrued interest payable | | 97,889 | | 28,800 |
| Deferred revenue | | 987,318 | | 1,070,671 |
| Derivative liability, net | | 28,464 | | 23,679 |
| Dividends payable | | 29,634 | | 43,282 |
| Deferred income taxes | | 13,222 | | 24,431 |
| Finance lease obligations | | 50,436 | | 52,994 |
| Contingent consideration | | 10,562 | | 11,507 |
| Notes and other debt, net | | 4,819,654 | | 5,017,679 |
| Liabilities held for sale | | 177,866 | | - |
| Total liabilities | | 7,033,333 | | 6,500,164 |
| Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) | | | | |
| Shareholders' Deficit: | | | | |
| Preferred stock, \$0.0001 par value, 50,000 shares authorized, no shares issued and outstanding | | - | | - |
| Common stock, \$0.0001 par value, 500,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding: | | | | |
| 192,523 shares at June 30, 2020 and 192,142 at December 31, 2019 | | 19 | | 19 |
| Additional paid-in capital | | 957,656 | | 951,295 |
| Accumulated other comprehensive loss | | (25,937) | | (23,442 |
| Distributions in excess of accumulated earnings | | (3,219,623) | | (2,494,740 |
| Total Uniti shareholders' deficit | | (2,287,885) | | (1,566,868 |
| Noncontrolling interests: | | | | |
| Operating partnership units | | 70,622 | | 83,704 |
| Cumulative non-voting convertible preferred stock, \$0.01 par value, 3 shares authorized, 1 issued and outstanding | | 125 | | - |
| Total shareholders' deficit | | (2,217,138) | | (1,483,164 |
| Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Deficit | \$ | 4,816,195 | \$ | 5,017,000 |

Uniti Group Inc. Condensed Consolidated Statements of (Loss) Income (unaudited)

| | Three Months Ended June 30, | | | | | Six Months Ended June 30, | | | |
|--|-----------------------------|-----------|----------|----------|----|---------------------------|----|----------|--|
| (Thousands, except per share data) | | 2020 | | 2019 | | 2020 | | 2019 | |
| Revenues: | | | | | | | | | |
| Leasing | \$ | 185,320 | \$ | 177,042 | \$ | 369,672 | \$ | 353,125 | |
| Fiber Infrastructure | | 79,140 | | 81,327 | | 156,547 | | 158,160 | |
| Tower | | 2,392 | | 3,146 | | 6,112 | | 8,226 | |
| Consumer CLEC | | (32) | | 2,899 | | 651 | | 5,934 | |
| Total revenues | | 266,820 | | 264,414 | | 532,982 | | 525,445 | |
| Costs and Expenses: | | | | | | | | | |
| Interest expense | | 107,243 | | 97,729 | | 285,636 | | 182,187 | |
| Depreciation and amortization | | 84,969 | | 102,578 | | 171,090 | | 206,405 | |
| General and administrative expense | | 27,894 | | 26,428 | | 55,027 | | 50,654 | |
| Operating expense (exclusive of depreciation and | | | | | | | | | |
| amortization) | | 40,167 | | 40,163 | | 80,477 | | 78,581 | |
| Settlement expense (Note 15) | | 650,000 | | - | | 650,000 | | - | |
| Transaction related and other costs | | 18,556 | | 7,035 | | 34,528 | | 13,704 | |
| Gain on sale of real estate (Note 5) | | (63,818) | | (28,790) | | (63,818) | | (28,790) | |
| Other (income) expense | | 6,013 | | (28,119) | | 9,088 | | (31,232) | |
| Total costs and expenses | | 871,024 | | 217,024 | | 1,222,028 | | 471,509 | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| (Loss) income before income taxes | | (604,204) | | 47,390 | | (689,046) | | 53,936 | |
| Income tax (benefit) expense | | (5,875) | | 7,843 | | (10,451) | | 11,897 | |
| Net (loss) income | | (598,329) | | 39,547 | | (678,595) | | 42,039 | |
| Net (loss) income attributable to noncontrolling interests | | (10,585) | | 830 | | (11,998) | | 880 | |
| Net (loss) income attributable to shareholders | | (587,744) | | 38,717 | | (666,597) | | 41,159 | |
| Participating securities' share in earnings | | (424) | | (223) | | (624) | | (251) | |
| Dividends declared on convertible preferred stock | | (1) | | - | | (4) | | (656) | |
| Amortization of discount on convertible preferred stock | | - | | (248) | | - | | (993) | |
| Net (loss) income attributable to common shareholders | \$ | (588,169) | \$ | 38,246 | \$ | (667,225) | \$ | 39,259 | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| (Loss) earnings per common share: | | | | | | | | | |
| Basic | \$ | (3.06) | \$ | 0.21 | \$ | (3.47) | \$ | 0.22 | |
| Diluted | \$ | (3.06) | \$ | 0.20 | \$ | (3.47) | \$ | 0.21 | |
| 2 Autou | <u> </u> | (5,55) | <u> </u> | 5.25 | Ť | (3,17) | | | |
| Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding: | | | | | | | | | |
| Basic | | 192,479 | | 182,971 | | 192,358 | | 182,597 | |
| Diluted | _ | | _ | | _ | | _ | | |
| טווענפע | _ | 192,479 | _ | 193,105 | | 192,358 | | 192,276 | |

Uniti Group Inc. Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive (Loss) Income (unaudited)

| | Three Months I | Ended | June 30, | | Six Months Ended June 30, | | | |
|--|--------------------|-------|----------|------|---------------------------|----|----------|--|
| (Thousands) | 2020 | | 2019 | 2020 | | | 2019 | |
| Net (loss) income | \$ (598,329) | \$ | 39,547 | \$ | (678,595) | \$ | 42,039 | |
| Other comprehensive income (loss): | | | | | | | | |
| Unrealized loss on derivative contracts | - | | (28,363) | | (7,036) | | (50,049) | |
| Changes in foreign currency translation | - | | (843) | | - | | (63) | |
| Interest rate swap termination | 2,830 | | - | | 4,496 | | - | |
| Other comprehensive income (loss): | 2,830 | | (29,206) | | (2,540) | | (50,112) | |
| Comprehensive (loss) income | (595,499) | | 10,341 | | (681,135) | | (8,073) | |
| Comprehensive (loss) income attributable to noncontrolling | | | | | | | | |
| interest | (10,535) | | 245 | | (12,043) | | (167) | |
| Comprehensive (loss) income attributable to common | | | | | | | | |
| shareholders | \$ (584,964) | \$ | 10,096 | \$ | (669,092) | \$ | (7,906) | |

Uniti Group Inc. Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Deficit (unaudited)

For the Three Months Ended June 30,

| | | | | | | 101 1111 1111 | | Tontins End | ea same so, | | | | |
|--|---------------|---------------|----------------------------------|---|-----|--|--|-------------|--|-----------------------------------|----------|--------|----------------|
| (Thousands, except share data) | ed Stock | Common | Additional Paid-in Capital | Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) | | Distributions in Excess of Accumulated Earnings | Noncontrolling Interest - OP Units | | Noncontrolling Interest - Non- voting Preferred Shares | Total Shareholders' Deficit | | | |
| | <u>Shares</u> | Amount | <u>Shares</u> | Amou | unt | | | | | | | | |
| Balance at March 31, 2019 | - | \$ - | 182,670,494 | \$ | 18 | \$790,347 | \$ | 9,661 | \$(2,442,564) | \$ | 91,756 | \$ - | \$(1,550,782) |
| Impact of change in accounting standard, net of tax | - | - | - | | - | - | | - | (112) | | - | - | (112) |
| Net income | - | - | - | | - | - | | - | 38,717 | | 830 | - | 39,547 |
| Amortization of discount of convertible preferred stock | - | - | - | | - | (248) | | - | - | | - | - | (248) |
| Other comprehensive loss | - | - | - | | - | - | | (28,621) | - | | (585) | - | (29,206) |
| Common stock dividends declared (\$0.05 per share) Distributions to noncontrolling | - | - | - | | - | - | | - | (9,148) | | - | - | (9,148) |
| interest | - | - | - | | - | - | | - | - | | (187) | - | (187) |
| Exchange of noncontrolling interest | - | - | 390,788 | | - | 4,260 | | - | - | | (4,260) | - | - |
| Convertible preferred stock dividends | - | - | - | | - | - | | - | (219) | | - | - | (219) |
| Net share settlement | - | - | - | | - | (186) | | - | - | | - | - | (186) |
| Stock-based compensation | - | - | 61,475 | | - | 3,197 | | - | - | | - | - | 3,197 |
| Equity component value of exchangeable note issuance, net | - | - | - | | - | 80,770 | | - | - | | - | - | 80,770 |
| Deferred tax liability related to exchangeable note issuance | - | - | - | | - | (3,499) | | - | - | | - | - | (3,499) |
| Sale of common stock warrant | - | - | - | | - | 50,819 | | - | - | | - | - | 50,819 |
| Payment for bond hedge option | | | | | | (70,035) | | - | | | - | | (70,035) |
| Balance at June 30, 2019 | | \$ - | 183,122,757 | \$ | 18 | \$855,425 | \$ | (18,960) | \$(2,413,326) | \$ | 87,554 | \$ - | \$(1,489,289) |
| Balance at March 31, 2020 | - | \$ - | 192,281,092 | \$ | 19 | \$954,223 | \$ | (28,717) | \$(2,602,777) | \$ | 81,676 | \$ 125 | \$ (1,595,451) |
| Net loss | - | - | - | | - | - | | - | (587,744) | | (10,585) | - | (598,329) |
| Other comprehensive income | - | - | - | | - | - | | 2,780 | - | | 50 | - | 2,830 |
| Common stock dividends declared (\$0.15 per share) Distributions to noncontrolling | - | - | - | | - | - | | - | (29,102) | | - | - | (29,102) |
| interest | - | - | - | | - | - | | - | - | | (519) | - | (519) |
| Net share settlement | - | - | - | | - | (677) | | - | - | | - | - | (677) |
| Stock-based compensation | | | 241,991 | | | 4,110 | | - | | | - | | 4,110 |
| Balance at June 30, 2020 | | \$ - | 192,523,083 | \$ | 19 | \$957,656 | \$ | (25,937) | \$(3,219,623) | \$ | 70,622 | \$ 125 | \$(2,217,138) |

For the Six Months Ended June 30,

| | | | | | 1 01 111 | e our monens zane | rea same so, | | | |
|---|---------------|---------------|---------------|---------------|----------------------------------|---|--|--|--|-----------------------------------|
| (Thousands, except share data) Pre | | ed Stock | Common Stock | | Additional Paid-in Capital | Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income | Distributions in Excess of Accumulated Earnings | Noncontrolling Interest - OP Units | Noncontrolling Interest - Non- voting Preferred Shares | Total Shareholders' Deficit |
| | <u>Shares</u> | <u>Amount</u> | <u>Shares</u> | <u>Amount</u> | | | | | | |
| Balance at December 31, 2018 | - | \$ - | 180,535,971 | \$ 18 | \$ 757,517 | \$ 30,105 | \$ (2,373,218) | \$ 92,375 | \$ - | \$ (1,493,203) |
| Impact of change in accounting standard, net of tax | _ | _ | _ | _ | - | - | (63,222) | _ | - | (63,222) |
| | _ | _ | _ | _ | _ | _ | 41,159 | 880 | _ | 42,039 |
| Net income At-the-market issuance of common stock, net of offering costs | | | 1,176,186 | - | 21,641 | - | - | - | - | 21,641 |
| Amortization of discount of convertible preferred stock | - | - | _ | _ | (993) | _ | _ | _ | - | (993) |
| Other comprehensive loss | - | - | - | - | - | (49,065) | - | (1,047) | - | (50,112) |
| Common stock dividends declared (\$0.05 per share) | _ | _ | _ | _ | _ | _ | (17,170) | _ | _ | (17,170) |
| Distributions to noncontrolling interest | - | - | - | - | - | - | - | (394) | - | (394) |
| Exchange of noncontrolling interest | - | - | 390,788 | - | 4,260 | - | - | (4,260) | - | - |
| Convertible preferred stock dividends | - | - | - | - | - | - | (875) | - | - | (875) |
| Net share settlement | - | - | - | - | (1,765) | - | - | - | - | (1,765) |
| Stock-based compensation | _ | _ | 340,627 | _ | 5,085 | - | _ | - | - | 5,085 |
| Equity settled contingent consideration | - | - | 645,385 | - | 11,178 | - | - | - | - | 11,178 |
| Issuance of common stock - employee stock purchase plan | _ | _ | 33,800 | _ | 447 | _ | _ | _ | _ | 447 |
| Equity component value of exchangeable not | _ | _ | _ | _ | 80,770 | _ | _ | _ | _ | 80,770 |
| issuance, net Deferred tax liability related to exchangeable | | | | | • | | | | | , |
| note issuance Sale of common stock | - | - | - | - | (3,499) 50,819 | - | - | - | <u>-</u> | (3,499) 50,819 |
| warrant Payment for bond hedge option | _ | _ | _ | - | (70,035) | _ | _ | _ | _ | (70,035) |
| Balance at June 30, 2019 | | | 183,122,757 | 18 | 855,425 | (18,960) | (2,413,326) | 87,554 | - | \$ (1,489,289) |
| Balance at December 31, 2019 | - | \$ - | 192,141,634 | \$ 19 | \$ 951,295 | \$ (23,442) | \$ (2,494,740) | \$ 83,704 | \$ - | \$ (1,483,164) |
| Net loss | - | - | - | - | - | - | (666,597) | (11,998) | - | (678,595) |
| Other comprehensive loss | - | - | - | - | - | (2,495) | - | (45) | - | (2,540) |

Table of Contents

| Common stock dividends declared (\$0.15 per share) | - | - | - | - | _ | - | (58,286) | - | - | (58,286) |
|---|---|------|-------------|-------|------------|------------|---------------|-----------|--------|---------------|
| Distributions to noncontrolling interest | - | - | - | - | - | - | - | (1,039) | - | (1,039) |
| Cumulative non-voting convertible preferred stock | - | - | - | - | - | - | - | - | 125 | 125 |
| Net share settlement | - | - | - | - | (1,050) | - | - | - | - | (1,050) |
| Stock-based compensation | - | - | 337,600 | - | 7,105 | - | - | - | - | 7,105 |
| Issuance of common stock - employee stock purchase plan | | | 43,849 | | 306 | | | | | 306 |
| Balance at June 30, 2020 | | \$ - | 192,523,083 | \$ 19 | \$ 957,656 | \$(25,937) | \$(3,219,623) | \$ 70,622 | \$ 125 | \$(2,217,138) |

Uniti Group Inc. Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (unaudited)

| | | Six Months Ended June 30, | | | | | |
|---|----|---------------------------|----|-----------|--|--|--|
| (Thousands) | | 2020 2 | | | | | |
| Cash flow from operating activities | | | | | | | |
| Net (loss) income | \$ | (678,595) | \$ | 42,039 | | | |
| Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: | | | | | | | |
| Depreciation and amortization | | 171,090 | | 206,405 | | | |
| Amortization of deferred financing costs and debt discount | | 18,666 | | 17,659 | | | |
| Write off of deferred financing costs and debt discount | | 73,952 | | - | | | |
| Interest rate swap termination | | 4,496 | | - | | | |
| Deferred income taxes | | (11,209) | | (2,712) | | | |
| Loss on derivative instruments | | (2,251) | | - | | | |
| Straight-line revenues | | 711 | | (1,416) | | | |
| Stock-based compensation | | 7,105 | | 5,085 | | | |
| Change in fair value of contingent consideration | | 6,140 | | (25,531) | | | |
| Gain on sale of real estate | | (63,818) | | (28,790) | | | |
| Loss on asset disposal | | 672 | | - | | | |
| Other | | (195) | | 2,252 | | | |
| Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions: | | | | | | | |
| Accounts receivable | | 6,263 | | 25,169 | | | |
| Other assets | | (8,285) | | (12,849) | | | |
| Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities | | 51,539 | | 23,053 | | | |
| Settlement payable (Note 15) | | 650,000 | | - | | | |
| Net cash provided by operating activities | | 226,281 | | 250,364 | | | |
| Cash flow from investing activities | | • | | , | | | |
| Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired | | - | | (4,210) | | | |
| Other capital expenditures | | (134,035) | | (180,478) | | | |
| Proceeds from sale of real estate, net of cash | | 225,149 | | 127,524 | | | |
| Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities | | 91,114 | | (57,164) | | | |
| Cash flow from financing activities | | -, | | (5.,) | | | |
| Repayment of Senior Secured Term Loan B | | (2,044,728) | | - | | | |
| Principal payments on debt | | - | | (10,540) | | | |
| Dividends paid | | (71,645) | | (120,161) | | | |
| Payments of contingent consideration | | (7,086) | | (28,170) | | | |
| Distributions paid to noncontrolling interest | | (1,282) | | (2,686) | | | |
| Borrowings under revolving credit facility | | 10,000 | | 139,000 | | | |
| Payments under revolving credit facility | | (456,700) | | (203,981) | | | |
| Finance lease payments | | (1,979) | | (1,896) | | | |
| Payments for financing costs | | (47,775) | | (49,462) | | | |
| Common stock issuance, net of costs | | - | | 21,641 | | | |
| Proceeds from issuance of notes | | 2,250,000 | | 345,000 | | | |
| Proceeds from sale of warrants | | _, | | 50,819 | | | |
| Payment for bond hedge option | | - | | (70,035) | | | |
| Employee stock purchase program | | 306 | | 447 | | | |
| Net share settlement | | (1,050) | | (1,765) | | | |
| Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities | | (371,939) | | 68,211 | | | |
| Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents | | - | | (43) | | | |
| Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents | | (54,544) | | 261,368 | | | |
| Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period | | 142,813 | | 38,026 | | | |
| Cash and cash equivalents at end of period | \$ | 88,269 | \$ | 299,394 | | | |
| | Ψ | 00,203 | Ψ | 233,334 | | | |
| Non-cash investing and financing activities: | ф | 45.005 | ¢. | 40.04= | | | |
| Property and equipment acquired but not yet paid | \$ | 17,825 | \$ | 19,817 | | | |

Table of Contents

| Tenant capital improvements | 87,017 | 81,137 |
|---|--------|--------|
| Settlement of contingent consideration through non-cash consideration | - | 11,178 |
| Exchange of noncontrolling interest through non-cash consideration | - | 4,260 |

Note 1. Organization and Description of Business

Uniti Group Inc. (the "Company," "Uniti," "we," "us," or "our") was incorporated in the state of Maryland on September 4, 2014. We are an independent internally managed real estate investment trust ("REIT") engaged in the acquisition and construction of mission critical infrastructure in the communications industry. We are principally focused on acquiring and constructing fiber optic broadband networks, wireless communications towers, copper and coaxial broadband networks and data centers. We manage our operations in four separate lines of business: Uniti Fiber, Uniti Towers, Uniti Leasing, and the Consumer CLEC Business.

The Company operates through a customary "up-REIT" structure, pursuant to which we hold substantially all of our assets through a partnership, Uniti Group LP, a Delaware limited partnership (the "Operating Partnership"), that we control as general partner, with the only significant difference between the financial position and results of operations of the Operating Partnership and its subsidiaries compared to the consolidated financial position and consolidated results of operations of Uniti is that the results for the Operating Partnership and its subsidiaries do not include Uniti's Consumer CLEC segment, which consists of Talk America Services. The up-REIT structure is intended to facilitate future acquisition opportunities by providing the Company with the ability to use common units of the Operating Partnership as a tax-efficient acquisition currency. As of June 30, 2020, we are the sole general partner of the Operating Partnership and own approximately 98.2% of the partnership interests in the Operating Partnership.

Note 2. Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements include all accounts of the Company and its wholly owned and/or controlled subsidiaries, including the Operating Partnership. Under the Accounting Standards Codification 810, *Consolidation* ("ASC 810"), the Operating Partnership is considered a variable interest entity and is consolidated in the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of Uniti Group Inc. because the Company is the primary beneficiary. All material intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

ASC 810 provides guidance on the identification of entities for which control is achieved through means other than voting rights ("variable interest entities" or "VIEs") and the determination of which business enterprise, if any, should consolidate the VIEs. Generally, the consideration of whether an entity is a VIE applies when either: (1) the equity investors (if any) lack (i) the ability to make decisions about the entity's activities through voting or similar rights, (ii) the obligation to absorb the expected losses of the entity, or (iii) the right to receive the expected residual returns of the entity; (2) the equity investment at risk is insufficient to finance that entity's activities without additional subordinated financial support; or (3) the equity investors have voting rights that are not proportionate to their economic interests and substantially all of the activities of the entity involve or are conducted on behalf of an investor with a disproportionately small voting interest. The Company consolidates VIEs in which it is considered to be the primary beneficiary. The primary beneficiary is defined as the entity having both of the following characteristics: (1) the power to direct the activities that, when taken together, most significantly impact the VIE's performance; and (2) the obligation to absorb losses and right to receive the returns from the VIE that would be significant to the VIE.

The accompanying Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") for interim financial information set forth in the Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC"), as published by the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB"), and with the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by GAAP for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair statement of results for the interim period have been included. Operating results from any interim period are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the full fiscal year. The accompanying Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019 ("Annual Report"), filed with the SEC on March 12, 2020. Accordingly, significant accounting policies and other disclosures normally provided have been omitted from the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes since such items are disclosed in our Annual Report.

Going Concern—In accordance with Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2014-15, *Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity's Ability to Continue as a Going Concern (Subtopic 205-40)*, the Company's management has evaluated whether there are conditions and events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are issued. The accompanying Condensed

Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. As noted below, the Company's largest customer, Windstream Holdings, Inc. ("Windstream Holdings" and together with its consolidated subsidiaries "Windstream"), has been in bankruptcy proceedings that had created substantial doubt as to the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. In light of the approval by the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York (the "Bankruptcy Court") of Windstream's plan of reorganization and its approval of the Settlement (as defined below) between Windstream and the Company, which includes an order approving Windstream's acceptance of the Master Lease (as defined below), the Company has evaluated the relevant conditions and factors and has determined that there is no longer substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

We are party to a master lease agreement (the "Master Lease") with Windstream Holdings from which 65.0% of our revenue for the year ended December 31, 2019 was derived. In recent years, Windstream has experienced annual declines in its total revenue, sales and cash flow, and has had its credit ratings downgraded by nationally recognized credit rating agencies multiple times.

In response to the adverse outcome in a litigation against Windstream, on February 25, 2019, Windstream filed a voluntary petition for relief under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code and is currently operating as a "debtor in possession" under supervision of the Bankruptcy Court.

In bankruptcy, Windstream had the option to assume or reject the Master Lease. Windstream also filed claims against the Company alleging, among other things: that the Master Lease should be recharacterized as a financing transaction, which would impact its treatment in Windstream's bankruptcy (including potentially through changing our status to that of a creditor that would share in creditor recoveries from the estate rather than receive rent payments) and which could affect our status as a REIT; that the Master Lease is a lease of personal property; and that rent payments and tenant capital improvements made by Windstream under the Master Lease since at least the third quarter of 2017 constitute constructive fraudulent transfers. We participated in mediation of these claims in Windstream's bankruptcy. On March 2, 2020, Uniti and Windstream jointly announced that they reached an agreement in principle (the "Settlement") to resolve any and all claims and causes of action that have been or may be asserted against Uniti by Windstream, including all litigation brought by Windstream and certain of its creditors in the context of Windstream's Bankruptcy, and on May 12, 2020, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order approving Windstream's assumption of the Master Lease as part of the Settlement. On May 12, 2020, Uniti and Windstream entered into the settlement agreement to implement the Settlement. The Settlement is subject to finalizing and executing definitive documentation and the receipt of certain regulatory approvals. Following satisfaction of all such conditions precedent, consummation of the Settlement will occur on the earlier of Windstream's emergence from bankruptcy and February 28, 2021. All litigation between Windstream and Uniti is stayed while the parties implement the Settlement. See Note 15.

On June 26, 2020, the Bankruptcy Court approved Windstream's plan of reorganization. Consummation of the plan of reorganization is subject to certain conditions precedent, including consummation of the Settlement and receipt of certain regulatory approvals. We believe that we are likely to effectuate the Settlement. However, even if it cannot be implemented, we believe the probability of Windstream rejecting the Master Lease in bankruptcy to be remote if Windstream intends to reorganize. A significant amount of Windstream's revenue is generated from the use of our network included in the Master Lease, and we believe that the Master Lease is essential to Windstream's operations. Furthermore, Windstream is designated as a "carrier of last resort" in certain markets where it utilizes the Master Lease to provide service to its customers, and Windstream would require approval from the Public Utility Commissions ("PUC") and the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC") to cease providing service in those markets. However, should we fail to implement the Settlement, a rejection of the Master Lease, an adverse determination by a judge on Windstream's claims against, or even a temporary disruption in payments to us, may require us to fund certain expenses and obligations (e.g., real estate taxes, insurance and maintenance expenses) to preserve the value of our properties, and could materially adversely affect our consolidated results of operations, liquidity and financial condition, including our ability to service debt, comply with debt covenants and maintain our status as a REIT.

<u>Investment in Unconsolidated Entity</u>—We report the investment in our unconsolidated entity under the equity method of accounting. We adjust our investment in the unconsolidated entity for additional contributions made, distributions received as well as our share of the investee's earnings or losses, which are reported on a 90-day lag and are included in our Consolidated Statements of Income. <u>See Note 6.</u>

<u>Goodwill</u>—The COVID-19 pandemic has negatively impacted the global economy, disrupted global supply chains and created significant volatility and disruption of financial markets. In accordance with ASC 350, *Intangibles – Goodwill and Other*, we have considered events or circumstances resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic that may indicate whether it is more likely than not that

the fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying value. After consideration of such events or circumstances, including evaluating potential impacts on our judgements and estimates regarding our projected cash flows used in the determination of the estimated fair value of our Fiber reporting unit, we have determined that it is not more likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying value; therefore, we have not performed an interim impairment analysis during the quarter. We continue to monitor the developments associated with the COVID-19 pandemic and its related impact on our business and, if we determine that the COVID-19 pandemic is negatively impacting our business, we may conclude that an interim impairment analysis is required in a future period.

Our first priority remains the health and safety of our employees, customers and other business partners. We have been actively monitoring and following government recommendations as we adjust business practices and standard operating procedures to ensure the protection of team members and ensure the continuity of our business. As of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, we have not experienced significant disruptions in our operations or network performance, incurred significant delays in our permitting process that would impact our timing of service installations, had disruptions or cost increases in our supply chain, or received significant requests for payment relief from our customers as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. Furthermore, as of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, we have not observed declines in the valuation of relevant acquisitions, which would impact the estimated fair value of our Fiber reporting unit under the market approach, as we use market data of comparable business and acquisition valuations of recent transactions to estimate fair value. As a result, we concluded that no triggering events were present and have not performed an interim impairment analysis during the quarter. We have implemented policies and procedures designed to mitigate the risk of adverse impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, or a future pandemic, on our operations, but we may incur additional costs to ensure continuity of business operations caused by COVID-19, or other future pandemics, which could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations. However, the extent of such impacts will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted, including new information which may emerge concerning the severity of COVID-19 and actions taken to contain COVID-19 or its impact, among others. Given the ongoing and dynamic nature of the circumstances, it is difficult to predict the impact of COVID-19 on us, and there is no guarantee that efforts by us, desig

Concentration of Credit Risks—Revenue under the Master Lease provided 65.2% and 65.2% of our revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Because a substantial portion of our revenue and cash flows are derived from lease payments by Windstream pursuant to the Master Lease, there could be a material adverse impact on our consolidated results of operations, liquidity, financial condition and/or ability to pay dividends and service debt if Windstream were to default under the Master Lease, succeed in its claims against us or otherwise experiences operating or liquidity difficulties and becomes unable to generate sufficient cash to make payments to us.

Windstream is a publicly traded company and is subject to the periodic filing requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Windstream filings can be found at www.sec.gov. Windstream filings are not incorporated by reference in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

<u>Reclassifications</u>—Certain prior year asset categories and related amounts in Note 4 have been reclassified to conform with current year presentation.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

On June 16, 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, *Financial Instruments – Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments* ("ASU 2016-13"), which amends the accounting for credit losses affecting loans, debt securities, trade receivables, net investments in leases, and any other financial asset not excluded from the scope that have the contractual right to receive cash. ASU 2016-13 is effect for the interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. We adopted ASU 2016-13 effective January 1, 2020, and there was no material impact on our financial statements and related disclosures.

Note 3. Revenues

The following is a description of principal activities, separated by reportable segments (see Note 14), from which the Company generates its revenues.

Leasing

Leasing revenue represents the results from our leasing business, Uniti Leasing, which is engaged in the acquisition of mission-critical communications assets and leasing them back to anchor customers on either an exclusive or shared-tenant basis. Due to the nature of these activities, they are outside the scope of the guidance of ASU No. 2014-09, *Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)* ("Topic 606"), and are recognized under other applicable guidance, including ASC 842. See Note 4.

Fiber Infrastructure

The Fiber Infrastructure segment represents the operations of our fiber business, Uniti Fiber, which provides (i) consumer, enterprise, wholesale and backhaul lit fiber, (ii) E-rate, (iii) small cell, (iv) construction services, (v) dark fiber and (vi) other revenue generating activities.

- i. Consumer, enterprise, wholesale, and backhaul lit fiber fall under the guidance of Topic 606. Revenue is recognized over the life of the contracts in a pattern that reflects the satisfaction of Uniti's stand-ready obligation to provide lit fiber services. The transaction price is equal to the monthly-recurring charge multiplied by the contract term, plus any non-recurring or variable charges. For each contract, the customer is invoiced monthly.
- ii. E-rate contracts involve providing lit fiber services to schools and libraries, and is governed by Topic 606. Revenue is recognized over the life of the contract in a pattern that reflects the satisfaction of Uniti's stand-ready obligation to provide lit fiber services. The transaction price is equal to the monthly-recurring charge multiplied by the contract term, plus any non-recurring or variable charges. For each contract, the customer is invoiced monthly.
- iii. Small cell contracts provide improved network connection to areas that may not require or accommodate a tower. Small cell arrangements typically contain five streams of revenue: site development, radio frequency ("RF") design, dark fiber lease, construction services, and maintenance services. Site development, RF design and construction are each separate services and are considered distinct performance obligations under Topic 606. Dark fiber and associated maintenance services constitute a lease, and as such, they are outside the scope of Topic 606 and are governed by other applicable guidance.
- iv. Construction revenue is generated from contracts to provide various construction services such as equipment installation or the laying of fiber. Construction revenue is recognized over time as construction activities occur as we are either enhancing a customer's owned asset or constructing an asset with no alternative use to us and we would be entitled to our costs plus a reasonable profit margin if the contract was terminated early by the customer. We are utilizing our costs incurred as the measure of progress of satisfying our performance obligation.
- v. Dark fiber arrangements represent operating leases under ASC 842 and are outside the scope of Topic 606. When (a) a customer makes an advance payment or (b) a customer is contractually obligated to pay any amounts in advance, which is not deemed a separate performance obligation, deferred leasing revenue is recorded. This leasing revenue is recognized ratably over the expected term of the contract, unless the pattern of service suggests otherwise.
- vi. The Company generates revenues from other services, such as consultation services and equipment sales. Revenue from the sale of customer premise equipment and modems that are not provided as an essential part of the telecommunications services, including broadband, long distance, and enhanced services is recognized when products are delivered to and accepted by the customer. Revenue from customer premise equipment and modems provided as an essential part of the telecommunications services, including broadband, long distance, and enhanced services are recognized over time in a pattern that reflects the satisfaction of the service performance obligation.

Towers

The Towers segment represents the operations of our towers business, Uniti Towers, through which we acquire and construct tower and tower-related real estate, which we then lease to our customers in the United States. Revenue from our towers business qualifies as a lease under ASC 842 and is outside the scope of Topic 606.

Consumer CLEC

The Consumer CLEC segment represents the operations of Talk America Services ("Talk America") through which we operate the Consumer CLEC Business, which provides local telephone, high-speed internet and long-distance services to customers in the eastern and central United States. Customers are billed monthly for services rendered based on actual usage or contracted amounts. The transaction price is equal to the monthly-recurring charge multiplied by the initial contract term (typically 12 months), plus any non-recurring or variable charges.

Disaggregation of Revenue

The following table presents our revenues disaggregated by revenue stream.

| | T | hree Months | d June 30, | Six Months Ended June 30, | | | | |
|---|----|-------------|------------|---------------------------|----|---------|----|---------|
| (Thousands) | | 2020 | | 2019 | | 2020 | | 2019 |
| Revenue disaggregated by revenue stream | | _ | | | | | | |
| Revenue from contracts with customers | | | | | | | | |
| Fiber Infrastructure | | | | | | | | |
| Lit backhaul | \$ | 27,216 | \$ | 33,401 | \$ | 55,408 | \$ | 65,606 |
| Enterprise and wholesale | | 19,628 | | 19,241 | | 38,886 | | 35,970 |
| E-Rate and government | | 21,821 | | 22,533 | | 42,758 | | 44,528 |
| Other | | 755 | | 674 | | 1,303 | | 1,683 |
| Fiber Infrastructure | \$ | 69,420 | \$ | 75,849 | \$ | 138,355 | \$ | 147,787 |
| Consumer CLEC | | (32) | | 2,899 | | 651 | | 5,934 |
| Total revenue from contracts with customers | | 69,388 | | 78,748 | | 139,006 | | 153,721 |
| Revenue accounted for under other applicable guidance | | 197,432 | | 185,666 | | 393,976 | | 371,724 |
| Total revenue | \$ | 266,820 | \$ | 264,414 | \$ | 532,982 | \$ | 525,445 |

At June 30, 2020, and December 31, 2019, lease receivables were \$18.7 million and \$28.8 million, respectively, and receivables from contracts with customers were \$52.8 million and \$48.6 million, respectively.

Contract Assets (Unbilled Revenue) and Liabilities (Deferred Revenue)

Contract assets primarily consist of unbilled construction revenue where we are utilizing our costs incurred as the measure of progress of satisfying our performance obligation. When the contract price is invoiced, the related unbilled receivable is reclassified to trade accounts receivable, where the balance will be settled upon the collection of the invoiced amount. Contract liabilities are generally comprised of upfront fees charged to the customer for the cost of establishing the necessary components of the Company's network prior to the commencement of use by the customer. Fees charged to customers for the recurring use of the Company's network are recognized during the related periods of service. Upfront fees that are billed in advance of providing services are deferred until such time the customer accepts the Company's network and then are recognized as service revenues ratably over a period in which substantive services required under the revenue arrangement are expected to be performed, which is the initial term of the arrangement. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2020, we recognized revenues of \$1.3 million and \$2.7 million, respectively, which was included in the December 31, 2019 contract liabilities balance.

The following table provides information about contract assets and contract liabilities accounted for under Topic 606.

| (Thousands) | Co | ontract Assets | Contract Liabilities | | | |
|------------------------------|----|----------------|----------------------|--------|--|--|
| Balance at December 31, 2019 | \$ | 11,535 | \$ | 12,717 | | |
| Balance at June 30, 2020 | \$ | 9,689 | \$ | 10,975 | | |

Transaction Price Allocated to Remaining Performance Obligations

Performance obligations within contracts to stand ready to provide services are typically satisfied over time or as those services are provided. Contract liabilities primarily relate to deferred revenue from upfront customer payments. The deferred revenue is recognized, and the liability reduced, over the contract term as the Company completes the performance obligation. As of June 30, 2020, our future revenues (i.e., transaction price related to remaining performance obligations) under contract accounted for under Topic 606 totaled \$519.1 million, of which \$429.9 million is related to contracts that are currently being invoiced and have an average remaining contract term of 1.9 years, while \$89.2 million represents our backlog for sales bookings which have yet to be installed and have an average remaining contract term of 6.6 years.

Practical Expedients and Exemptions

We do not disclose the value of unsatisfied performance obligations for contracts that have an original expected duration of one year or less.

We exclude from the transaction price any amounts collected from customers for sales taxes and therefore, such amounts are not included in revenue.

Note 4. Leases

Lessor Accounting

We lease communications towers, ground, communications equipment, and dark fiber to tenants under operating leases. Our leases have initial lease terms ranging from five to 35 years, most of which includes options to extend or renew the leases for five to 20 years (based on the satisfaction of certain conditions as defined in the lease agreements), and some of which may include options to terminate the leases within one to six months. Certain lease agreements contain provisions for future rent increases. Payments due under the lease contracts include fixed payments plus, for some of our leases, variable payments.

The components of lease income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, are as follows:

| | Three Months Ended June 30, | | | | Six Months Ended June 30, | | | |
|---------------------------------|-----------------------------|---------|----|---------|---------------------------|---------|----|---------|
| (Thousands) | | 2020 | | 2019 | | 2020 | | 2019 |
| Lease income - operating leases | \$ | 197,432 | \$ | 185,666 | \$ | 393,976 | \$ | 371,724 |

Lease payments to be received under non-cancellable operating leases where we are the lessor for the remainder of the lease terms as of June 30, 2020 are as follows:

| (Thousands) | June 30, 2020 (1) |
|-------------------------|-------------------|
| 2020 | \$ 364,898 |
| 2021 | 724,279 |
| 2022 | 727,103 |
| 2023 | 729,968 |
| 2024 | 732,960 |
| Thereafter | 4,361,810 |
| Total lease receivables | \$ 7,641,018 |

⁽¹⁾ Total future minimum lease payments to be received include \$6.7 billion relating to the Master Lease with Windstream.

The underlying assets under operating leases where we are the lessor are summarized as follows:

| (Thousands) | June | e 30, 2020 | December 31, 2019 |
|---|------|-------------|-----------------------|
| Land | \$ | 27,290 | \$ 27,392 |
| Building and improvements | | 342,484 | 341,096 |
| Poles | | 261,997 | 258,535 |
| Fiber | | 2,909,484 | 2,836,939 |
| Equipment | | 421 | 419 |
| Copper | | 3,816,448 | 3,792,366 |
| Conduit | | 89,771 | 89,770 |
| Tower assets | | 1,397 | 168,453 |
| Finance lease assets | | 32,660 | 32,660 |
| Other assets | | 10,278 | 10,279 |
| | | 7,492,230 | 7,557,909 |
| Less: accumulated depreciation | | (5,131,752) | (5,033,080) |
| Underlying assets under operating leases, net (1) | \$ | 2,360,478 | \$ 2,524,829 |

⁽¹⁾ Includes \$161.0 million of assets held for sale (see Note 7).

Depreciation expense for the underlying assets under operating leases where we are the lessor for the three and six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, is summarized as follows:

| | | Three Months E | ıne 30, | Six Months Ended June 30, | | | | |
|---|---------------------|----------------|---------|---------------------------|----|---------|------|--|
| (Thousands) | | 2020 | | 2019 | | 2020 | 2019 | |
| Depreciation expense for underlying assets under operating leases | \$ 53,303 \$ 75,093 | | \$ | 109,437 | \$ | 151,367 | | |

Lessee Accounting

We have commitments under operating leases for communications towers, ground, colocation, dark fiber lease arrangements, and buildings. We also have finance leases for dark fiber lease arrangements and other communications equipment. Our leases have initial lease terms ranging from less than one year to 30 years, most of which includes options to extend or renew the leases for less than one year to 20 years, and some of which may include options to terminate the leases within one to six months. Certain lease agreements contain provisions for future rent increases. Payments due under the lease contracts include fixed payments plus, for some of our leases, variable payments.

As of June 30, 2020, we have short term lease commitments amounting to approximately \$1.9 million.

The components of lease cost for the three and six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, are as follows:

| | Three Months Ended June 30, | | | | | Six Months E | une 30, | |
|-------------------------------|-----------------------------|---------|----|---------|----|--------------|---------|---------|
| (Thousands) | | 2020 | | 2019 | | 2020 | | 2019 |
| Finance lease cost | | | | | | | | |
| Amortization of ROU assets | \$ | 954 | \$ | 890 | \$ | 1,979 | \$ | 1,896 |
| Interest on lease liabilities | | 969 | | 552 | | 1,957 | | 1,621 |
| Total finance lease cost | | 1,923 | | 1,442 | | 3,936 | | 3,517 |
| Operating lease cost | | 6,421 | | 6,667 | | 13,959 | | 13,254 |
| Short-term lease cost | | 526 | | 467 | | 1,009 | | 929 |
| Variable lease cost | | 66 | | 138 | | 84 | | 257 |
| Less sublease income | | (3,076) | | (2,633) | | (6,770) | | (5,378) |
| Total lease cost | \$ | 5,860 | \$ | 6,081 | \$ | 12,218 | \$ | 12,579 |

Amounts reported in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets for leases where we are the lessee were as follows:

| Location on Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets | J | une 30, 2020 | Dec | ember 31, 2019 |
|---|---|---|---|---|
| | | | | |
| Other assets, net | \$ | 85,256 | \$ | 127,490 |
| Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities, net | | 84,642 | | 127,879 |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| Property, plant and equipment, net | \$ | 128,259 | \$ | 129,900 |
| Finance lease obligations | | 50,436 | | 52,994 |
| | | | | |
| | | 8.8 years | | 11.8 years |
| | | 13.6 years | | 13.9 years |
| | | | | |
| | | 9.5% | | 9.7% |
| | | 8.0% | | 8.0% |
| | Other assets, net Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities, net Property, plant and equipment, net | Other assets, net \$ Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities, net Property, plant and equipment, net \$ | Other assets, net \$ 85,256 Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities, net \$ 128,259 Property, plant and equipment, net \$ 128,259 Finance lease obligations 50,436 8.8 years 13.6 years | Other assets, net \$ 85,256 \$ Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities, net \$ 128,259 \$ Finance lease obligations \$ 50,436 \$ 8.8 years 13.6 years |

⁽¹⁾ Includes \$8.4 million right of use ("ROU") assets, net in Assets Held for Sale as of June 30, 2020 (See Note 7).

Other information related to leases as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, are as follows:

| (Thousands) | 2020 | 2019 |
|--|-------------|--------------|
| Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities | | |
| Operating cash flows from finance leases | \$ 1,957 | \$ 1,621 |
| Operating cash flows from operating leases | 14,470 | 13,426 |
| Financing cash flows from finance leases | 1,979 | 1,896 |
| | | |
| Non-cash items: | | |
| New operating leases | \$ 3,847 | \$ 12,621 |
| New finance leases | 31 | 2.683 |

Future lease payments under non-cancellable leases as of June 30, 2020 are as follows:

| Operating I | eases | | Finance Leases |
|-------------|----------|--|---------------------|
| \$ | 11,222 | \$ | 3,631 |
| | 20,975 | | 6,810 |
| | 18,235 | | 6,680 |
| | 15,646 | | 6,658 |
| | 11,498 | | 6,294 |
| | 54,862 | | 50,444 |
| \$ | 132,438 | \$ | 80,517 |
| | (47,796) | | (30,081) |
| \$ | 84,642 | \$ | 50,436 |
| | S S S | 20,975 18,235 15,646 11,498 54,862 \$ 132,438 (47,796) | \$ 11,222 \$ 20,975 |

⁽²⁾ Includes \$3.1 million lease liabilities in Liabilities Held for Sale as of June 30, 2020 (See Note 7).

Future sublease rentals as of June 30, 2020 are as follows:

| (Thousands) | Suble | ease Rentals |
|-------------|-------|--------------|
| 2020 | \$ | 3,598 |
| 2021 | | 7,760 |
| 2022 | | 7,784 |
| 2023 | | 7,807 |
| 2024 | | 7,831 |
| Thereafter | | 113,575 |
| Total | \$ | 148,355 |

Note 5. Asset Dispositions

2020 Transactions

Sale of U.S. Tower Portfolio

On June 1, 2020, the Company completed the sale of its U.S. tower business to Melody Investment Advisors LP ("Melody"), selling net assets having a book value of \$190.0 million for total cash consideration of \$225.8 million. The Company retained a 10% investment interest in the tower business, having a fair value of \$26.0 million, through a newly formed limited partnership with Melody (see Note 6), and will receive incremental earn-out payments, estimated to be \$1.9 million, which is included in other assets on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2020. During the second quarter, we recorded a gain of \$63.7 million related to this transaction.

2019 Transactions

Sale of Ground Lease Portfolio

On May 23, 2019, the Company completed the sale of substantially all of its U.S. ground lease business. During second quarter, we received cash consideration of \$30.7 million resulting in a pre-tax gain of \$5.0 million.

Sale of Latin American Tower Portfolio

On April 2, 2019, the Company completed the sale of the Uniti Towers' Latin America business ("LATAM") to an entity controlled by Phoenix Towers International for cash consideration of \$101.6 million resulting in a pre-tax gain of \$23.8 million.

Note 6. Investment in Unconsolidated Entity

We report the investment in our unconsolidated entity under the equity method of accounting. As of June 30, 2020, we had a 10% interest in Harmoni Towers LP ("Harmoni"). Harmoni was primarily established to develop wireless communication towers as real estate property for long-term investment. We concluded that Harmoni is a VIE; however, the Company determined that it was not the primary beneficiary of Harmoni because the Company lacks the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact its economic performance. The Company's current investment and maximum exposure to loss as a result of its involvement with Harmoni was approximately \$26.0 million as of June 30, 2020. The Company has not provided financial support to Harmoni.

We provide transition services to Harmoni in exchange for fees and reimbursements. Total transition service fees earned in connection with Harmoni were \$0.4 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2020, which is included in operating expense on a net basis in our Consolidated Statements of Income.

Note 7. Assets and Liabilities Held for Sale

In June 2020, the Company entered into a definitive agreement to sell an ownership stake in the entity that controls the Company's Midwest fiber network assets (the "Propco") to Macquarie Infrastructure Partners ("MIP") for total cash consideration of approximately \$168 million. Uniti will retain an investment in the Propco through an affiliate of MIP and is eligible to receive an additional earnout payment in 2023 of up to approximately \$20.0 million upon the achievement of certain operational milestones. The Company classified the Propco's assets and liabilities separately on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2020.

The following table presents the assets and liabilities associated with the Propco classified as held for sale as of June 30, 2020:

| (Thousands) | June 30, 2020 |
|------------------------------------|---------------|
| Assets: | |
| Property, plant and equipment, net | \$ 188,818 |
| Accounts receivable, net | 55 |
| Intangible assets, net | 167,185 |
| Right of use assets, net | 8,356 |
| Other assets | 9 |
| Total Assets | \$ 364,423 |
| Liabilities: | |
| Lease liabilities | \$ 3,074 |
| Deferred revenue | 174,792 |
| Total Liabilities | \$ 177,866 |

The Propco is included in the results of the Leasing segment. The sale does not represent a strategic shift that will have a major effect on operations and financial results and, therefore, did not qualify for presentation as a discontinued operation.

Note 8. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC 820, *Fair Value Measurements*, establishes a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on the observability of inputs utilized in measuring assets and liabilities at fair values. This hierarchy establishes market-based or observable inputs as the preferred source of values, followed by valuation models using management assumptions in the absence of market inputs. The three levels of the hierarchy are as follows:

- Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting entity can access at the assessment date;
- Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
- *Level 3* Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Our financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts and other receivables, a derivative asset and liability, our outstanding notes and other debt, contingent consideration and accounts, interest and dividends payable.

The following table summarizes the fair value of our financial instruments at June 30, 2020 and December 31, 2019:

| (Thousands) | | Total | Quoted Prices in Active Markets (Level 1) | | ices with Other Observable Inputs (Level 2) | Un | rices with observable its (Level 3) |
|---|-------------|--|---|-----|---|------------------|---|
| At June 30, 2020 | | , | | | | | |
| Liabilities | | | | | | | |
| Senior secured notes - 7.875%, due February 15, 2025 | \$ | 2,283,750 | \$ - | \$ | 2,283,750 | \$ | - |
| Senior secured notes - 6.00%, due April 15, 2023 | | 541,750 | - | | 541,750 | | - |
| Senior unsecured notes - 8.25%, due October 15, 2023 | | 1,043,400 | - | | 1,043,400 | | - |
| Senior unsecured notes - 7.125%, due December 15, 2024 | | 546,000 | - | | 546,000 | | - |
| Exchangeable senior notes - 4.00%, due June 15, 2024 | | 372,497 | - | | 372,497 | | - |
| Senior secured revolving credit facility, variable rate, due April 24, 2022 | | 128,307 | - | | 128,307 | | - |
| Derivative liability, net | | 28,464 | - | | 28,464 | | - |
| Contingent consideration | | 10,562 | | | | | 10,562 |
| | | 4.05.4.720 | ¢ | \$ | 4,944,168 | \$ | 10,562 |
| Total | <u>\$</u> | 4,954,730 | <u>ф -</u> | Ψ | 4,344,100 | <u> </u> | 10,502 |
| Total (Thousands) | <u>\$</u> | 4,954,/30 | Quoted Prices in Active Markets (Level 1) | Pri | ices with Other Observable Inputs (Level 2) | P: Un | rices with observable ots (Level 3) |
| | <u>\$</u> | , , | Quoted Prices in Active Markets | Pri | ices with Other Observable Inputs | P: Un | rices with |
| (Thousands) | \$ <u> </u> | , , | Quoted Prices in Active Markets | Pri | ices with Other Observable Inputs | P: Un | rices with |
| (Thousands) At December 31, 2019 | \$\$ | , , | Quoted Prices in Active Markets (Level 1) | Pri | ices with Other Observable Inputs | Pi Un Inpi | rices with |
| (Thousands) At December 31, 2019 Liabilities | | Total | Quoted Prices in Active Markets (Level 1) | Pri | ices with Other Observable Inputs (Level 2) | Pi Un Inpi | rices with |
| (Thousands) At December 31, 2019 Liabilities Senior secured term loan B - variable rate, due October 24, 2022 | | Total 1,998,721 | Quoted Prices in Active Markets (Level 1) | Pri | ices with Other Observable Inputs (Level 2) | Pi Un Inpi | rices with |
| (Thousands) At December 31, 2019 Liabilities Senior secured term loan B - variable rate, due October 24, 2022 Senior secured notes - 6.00%, due April 15, 2023 | | Total 1,998,721 528,000 | Quoted Prices in Active Markets (Level 1) | Pri | ices with Other Observable Inputs (Level 2) 1,998,721 528,000 | Pi Un Inpi | rices with |
| (Thousands) At December 31, 2019 Liabilities Senior secured term loan B - variable rate, due October 24, 2022 Senior secured notes - 6.00%, due April 15, 2023 Senior unsecured notes - 8.25%, due October 15, 2023 | | 1,998,721 528,000 971,250 | Quoted Prices in Active Markets (Level 1) | Pri | ices with Other Observable Inputs (Level 2) 1,998,721 528,000 971,250 | Pi Un Inpi | rices with |
| (Thousands) At December 31, 2019 Liabilities Senior secured term loan B - variable rate, due October 24, 2022 Senior secured notes - 6.00%, due April 15, 2023 Senior unsecured notes - 8.25%, due October 15, 2023 Senior unsecured notes - 7.125%, due December 15, 2024 | | 1,998,721 528,000 971,250 511,500 | Quoted Prices in Active Markets (Level 1) | Pri | 1,998,721 528,000 971,250 511,500 | Pi Un Inpi | rices with |
| (Thousands) At December 31, 2019 Liabilities Senior secured term loan B - variable rate, due October 24, 2022 Senior secured notes - 6.00%, due April 15, 2023 Senior unsecured notes - 8.25%, due October 15, 2023 Senior unsecured notes - 7.125%, due December 15, 2024 Exchangeable senior unsecured notes - 4.00%, due June 15, 2024 | | 1,998,721 528,000 971,250 511,500 309,638 | Quoted Prices in Active Markets (Level 1) | Pri | 1,998,721 528,000 971,250 511,500 309,638 | Pi Un Inpi | rices with |
| (Thousands) At December 31, 2019 Liabilities Senior secured term loan B - variable rate, due October 24, 2022 Senior secured notes - 6.00%, due April 15, 2023 Senior unsecured notes - 8.25%, due October 15, 2023 Senior unsecured notes - 7.125%, due December 15, 2024 Exchangeable senior unsecured notes - 4.00%, due June 15, 2024 Senior secured revolving credit facility, variable rate, due April 24, 2022 | | 1,998,721 528,000 971,250 511,500 309,638 574,961 | Quoted Prices in Active Markets (Level 1) | Pri | 1,998,721 528,000 971,250 511,500 309,638 574,961 | Pi Un Inpi | rices with |

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts and other receivables, and accounts, interest and dividends payable approximate fair values due to the short-term nature of these financial instruments.

The total principal balance of our outstanding notes and other debt was \$4.98 billion at June 30, 2020, with a fair value of \$4.92 billion. The estimated fair value of our outstanding notes and other debt was based on available external pricing data and current market rates for similar debt instruments, among other factors, which are classified as Level 2 inputs within the fair value hierarchy. Derivative assets and liabilities are carried at fair value. See Note 10. The fair value of an interest rate swap is determined based on the present value of expected future cash flows using observable, quoted LIBOR swap rates for the full term of the swap and also incorporate credit valuation adjustments to appropriately reflect both Uniti's own non-performance risk and non-performance risk of the respective counterparties. The Company has determined that the majority of the inputs used to value its derivative assets and liabilities fall within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy; however, the associated credit valuation adjustments utilized Level 3 inputs, such as estimates of credit spreads, to evaluate the likelihood of default by the Company and its counterparties. As of June 30, 2020, the Company has assessed the significance of the impact of the credit valuation adjustments on the overall valuation of its derivative positions and has determined that the credit valuation in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Given the limited trade activity of the Exchangeable Notes, the fair value of the Exchangeable Notes (see Note 12) is determined based on inputs that are observable in the market and have been classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. Specifically, we estimated the fair value of the Exchangeable Notes based on readily available external pricing information, quoted market prices, and current market rates for similar convertible debt instruments.

We acquired Tower Cloud, Inc. ("Tower Cloud") on August 31, 2016. As part of the Tower Cloud acquisition, we may be obligated to pay contingent consideration upon achievement of certain defined operational and financial milestones from the date of acquisition through December 31, 2021. At the Company's discretion, a combination of cash and Uniti common shares may be used to satisfy the contingent consideration payments, provided that at least 50% of the aggregate amount of payments is satisfied in cash. We recorded the estimated fair value of future contingent consideration of \$10.6 million as of June 30, 2020. The fair value of the contingent consideration as of June 30, 2020, was determined using a discounted cash flow model and probability adjusted estimates of the future operational milestones and is classified as Level 3. During the six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, we paid \$7.1 million and \$28.2 million, respectively, for the achievement of certain milestones in accordance with the Tower Cloud merger agreement.

Changes in the fair value of contingent consideration arrangements are recorded in our Condensed Consolidated Statement of (Loss) Income in the period in which the change occurs. For the three months and six months ended June 30, 2020, there was a \$4.6 million and \$6.1 million, respectively, increase in the fair value of the contingent consideration that was recorded in Other (income) expense on the Condensed Consolidated Statements of (Loss) Income. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2019, there was a \$22.3 million and \$25.5 million, respectively, decrease in the fair value of the contingent consideration that was recorded in Other (income) expense on the Condensed Consolidated Statements of (Loss) Income.

The following is a roll forward of our liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis using unobservable inputs (Level 3):

| | | | | | (Gain |)/Loss included in | | |
|--------------------------|-------|--------------|----------------|---------|-------|--------------------|---------------|---------------|
| (Thousands) | Decem | ber 31, 2019 | Transfers into | Level 3 | | earnings | Settlements | June 30, 2020 |
| Contingent consideration | \$ | 11.507 | \$ | _ | \$ | 6,141 | \$ (7.086) | \$ 10,562 |

Note 9. Property, Plant and Equipment

The carrying value of property, plant and equipment is as follows:

| (Thousands) | Depreciable Lives | June 30, 2020 | December 31, 2019 |
|-----------------------------------|--------------------|-------------------|-------------------|
| Land | Indefinite | \$ 27,905 | \$ 28,337 |
| Building and improvements | 3 - 40 years | 350,164 | 355,225 |
| Real property interests | (1) | - | 3,308 |
| Poles | 30 years | 261,997 | 258,535 |
| Fiber | 30 years | 3,434,306 | 3,456,398 |
| Equipment | 5 - 7 years | 317,170 | 293,427 |
| Copper | 20 years | 3,816,448 | 3,792,366 |
| Conduit | 30 years | 89,771 | 89,770 |
| Tower assets | 20 years | 8,571 | 170,063 |
| Finance lease assets | (1) | 128,259 | 129,900 |
| Other assets | 15 - 20 years | 10,362 | 11,591 |
| Corporate assets | 3 - 7 years | 12,797 | 5,552 |
| Construction in progress | (1) | 49,542 | 89,007 |
| | | \$ 8,507,292 | 8,683,479 |
| Less accumulated depreciation | | \$ (5,409,101) | (5,273,534) |
| Net property, plant and equipment | | \$ 3,098,191 | \$ 3,409,945 |

⁽¹⁾ See our Annual Report for property, plant and equipment accounting policies.

Depreciation expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2020 was \$77.2 million and \$155.0 million, respectively. Depreciation expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2019 was \$96.5 million and \$194.0 million, respectively.

Note 10. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company uses derivative instruments to mitigate the effects of interest rate volatility inherent in our variable rate debt, which could unfavorably impact our future earnings and forecasted cash flows. The Company does not use derivative instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

On April 27, 2015, we entered into fixed for floating interest rate swap agreements to mitigate the interest rate risk inherent in our variable rate Senior Secured Term Loan B facility. These interest rate swaps were designated as cash flow hedges and have a notional value of \$2.03 billion and mature on October 24, 2022. As result of the repayment of the Company's term loan facility in February of 2020 (see Note 12), the Company entered into receive-fixed interest rate swaps to offset its existing pay-fixed interest rate swaps. As a result, the Company discontinued hedge accounting as the hedge accounting requirements were no longer met. Amounts in accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income as of the date of de-designation, will be reclassified to interest expense as the hedged transactions impact earnings. Prospectively, changes in fair value of all interest rate swaps will be recorded directly to earnings.

The Company has elected to offset derivative positions that are subject to master netting arrangements with the same counterparty in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. The gross amounts of our derivative instruments subject to master netting arrangements with the same counterparty as of June 30, 2020 were as follows:

| Offsetting of Derivative Assets and Liabilities (Thousands) | ounts of Recognized ts or Liabilities | Condens | ounts Offset in the sed Consolidated ance Sheets | Liabi | Amounts of Assets or lities presented in the densed Consolidated Balance Sheets |
|---|--|---------|--|-------|--|
| Assets | | | | | |
| Interest rate swaps | \$ 35,138 | \$ | (35,138) | \$ | <u>-</u> |
| Total | \$ 35,138 | \$ | (35,138) | \$ | - |
| | | | | - | |
| Liabilities | | | | | |
| Interest rate swaps | \$ 63,602 | \$ | (35,138) | \$ | 28,464 |
| Total | \$ 63,602 | \$ | (35,138) | \$ | 28,464 |

The following table summarizes the fair value and the presentation in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets:

| | Location on Condensed | | | |
|---------------------|-----------------------------|-------------------|-------|---------------|
| (Thousands) | Consolidated Balance Sheets | June 30, 2020 | Decen | ıber 31, 2019 |
| Interest rate swaps | Derivative liability, net | \$ 28,464 | \$ | 23,679 |

As of June 30, 2020, all of the interest rate swaps were valued in net unrealized loss positions and recognized as liability balances within the derivative liability, net in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. As hedge accounting is no longer applied beginning in February 2020, the unrealized loss amounts are now being recorded directly to earnings. For the six months ended June 30, 2020, the amount recorded in other comprehensive income related to the unrealized loss on derivative instruments prior to the February 2020 discontinuance of hedge accounting was \$7.7 million. The amount reclassified out of other comprehensive income into interest expense on our Condensed Consolidated Statement of (Loss) Income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2020 was \$2.8 million and \$5.2 million, respectively

As of June 30, 2019, all of the interest rate swaps were valued in net unrealized loss positions and recognized as liability balances within the derivative liability, net in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2019, the amount recorded in other comprehensive income related to the unrealized loss on derivative instruments was \$26.6 million and \$46.1 million, respectively. The amount reclassified out of other comprehensive income into interest expense on our Condensed Consolidated Statement of (Loss) Income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2019 was a benefit of \$1.9 million and \$4.0 million, respectively.

During the next twelve months, beginning July 1, 2020, we estimate that \$11.3 million will be reclassified as an increase to interest expense.

Exchangeable Notes Hedge Transactions

On June 25, 2019, concurrently with the pricing of the Exchangeable Notes (see Note 12), and on June 27, 2019, concurrently with the exercise by the Initial Purchasers (as defined below) of their option to purchase additional Exchangeable Notes, Uniti Fiber, the issuer of the Exchangeable Notes, entered into the Note Hedge Transactions with certain of the Counterparties. The Note Hedge Transactions cover, subject to anti-dilution adjustments substantially similar to those applicable to the Exchangeable Notes, the same number of shares of the Company's common stock that initially underlie the Exchangeable Notes in the aggregate and are exercisable upon exchange of the Exchangeable Notes. The Note Hedge Transactions have an initial strike price that corresponds to the initial exchange price of the Exchangeable Notes, subject to anti-dilution adjustments substantially similar to those applicable to the Exchangeable Notes. The Note Hedge Transactions will expire upon the maturity of the Exchangeable Notes, if not earlier exercised. The Note Hedge Transactions are intended to reduce potential dilution to the Company's common stock upon any exchange of the Exchangeable Notes and/or offset any cash payments Uniti Fiber is required to make in excess of the principal amount of exchanged Exchangeable Notes, as the case may be, in the event that the market value per share of the Company's common stock, as measured under the Note Hedge Transactions, at the time of exercise is greater than the strike price of the Note Hedge Transactions.

The Note Hedge Transactions are separate transactions, entered into by Uniti Fiber with the Counterparties, and are not part of the terms of the Exchangeable Notes. Holders of the Exchangeable Notes will not have any rights with respect to the Note Hedge Transactions. Uniti Fiber used approximately \$70.0 million of the net proceeds from the offering of the Exchangeable Notes to pay the cost of the Note Hedge Transactions. The Note Hedge Transactions meet certain accounting criteria under GAAP, and are recorded in additional paid-in capital on our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets, and are not accounted for as derivatives that are remeasured each reporting period.

Warrant Transactions

On June 25, 2019, concurrently with the pricing of the Exchangeable Notes, and on June 27, 2019 concurrently with the exercise by the Initial Purchasers of their option to purchase additional Exchangeable Notes, the Company entered into warrant transactions to sell to the Counterparties Warrants to acquire, subject to anti-dilution adjustments, up to approximately 27.8 million shares of the Company's common stock in the aggregate at an exercise price of approximately \$16.42 per share. The maximum number of shares of the Company's common stock that could be issued pursuant to the Warrants is approximately 55.5 million. The Company offered and sold the Warrants in reliance on the exemption from registration provided by Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"). If the market value per share of the Company's common stock, as measured under the Warrants, at the time of exercise exceeds the strike price of the Warrants, the Warrants will have a dilutive effect on the Company's common stock unless, subject to the terms of the Warrants, the Company elects to cash settle the Warrants. The Warrants will expire over a period beginning in September 2024.

The Warrants are separate transactions, entered into by the Company with the Counterparties, and are not part of the terms of the Exchangeable Notes. Holders of the Exchangeable Notes will not have any rights with respect to the Warrants. The Company received approximately \$50.8 million from the offering and sale of the Warrants. The Warrants meet certain accounting criteria under GAAP, and are recorded in additional paid-in capital on our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets, and are not accounted for as derivatives that are remeasured each reporting period.

Note 11. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

There were no changes in the carrying amount of goodwill occurring during the six months ended June 30, 2020. The balance of Goodwill recorded in our Fiber Infrastructure segment as of June 30, 2020 and December 31, 2019 is as follows:

| (Thousands) | Fiber | r Infrastructure | | Total |
|-------------------------------|-------|------------------|----------|---------|
| Goodwill at December 31, 2019 | \$ | 690,672 | \$ | 690,672 |
| Goodwill at June 30, 2020 | | 690,672 | | 690,672 |
| | | | <u> </u> | |

| (Thousands) | June 30, | 2020 | | December 31, 2019 | | | | | | | | |
|------------------------------------|------------------|--------------------------|-----------|-------------------|------------------|----|-----------------------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| | Original Cost | Accumulated Amortization | | | Original Cost | | Accumulated Amortization | | | | | |
| Indefinite life intangible assets: | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Trade name | \$ - | \$ | - | \$ | 2,000 | \$ | - | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Finite life intangible assets: | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Customer lists | \$ 450,603 | \$ | (106,051) | \$ | 450,603 | \$ | (93,794) | | | | | |
| In-place lease | - | | - | | 50,705 | | (845) | | | | | |
| Rights of way | - | | - | | 124,696 | | (1,386) | | | | | |
| Trade name | 2,000 | | (500) | | - | | - | | | | | |
| | _ | | _ | | _ | | | | | | | |
| Total intangible assets | \$ 452,603 | | | \$ | 628,004 | | | | | | | |
| Less: Accumulated amortization | (106,551) | | | | (96,025) | | | | | | | |
| Total intangible assets, net | \$ 346,052 | | | \$ | 531,979 | | | | | | | |

As of June 30, 2020, the remaining weighted average amortization period of the Company's intangible assets was 16.9 years. Amortization expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2020 was \$7.8 million and \$16.1 million, respectively. Amortization expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2019 was \$6.1 million and \$12.4 million, respectively.

Amortization expense is estimated to be \$28.0 million for the full year of 2020, \$23.9 million in 2021, \$22.9 million in 2022, \$22.8 million in 2023, and \$22.8 million for 2024.

Note 12. Notes and Other Debt

All debt, including the senior secured credit facility and notes described below, are obligations of the Operating Partnership and/or certain of its subsidiaries as discussed below. The Company is, however, a guarantor of such debt.

Notes and other debt is as follows:

| (Thousands) | June 30, 2020 | December 31, 2019 |
|---|-------------------|-------------------|
| Principal amount | \$ 4,983,319 | \$ 5,224,747 |
| Less unamortized discount, premium and debt issuance costs | (163,665) | (207,068) |
| Notes and other debt less unamortized discount, premium and debt issuance costs | \$ 4,819,654 | \$ 5,017,679 |

Notes and other debt at June 30, 2020 and December 31, 2019 consisted of the following:

| | June 30 |), 2020 | December 31, 2019 | | | | |
|--|-----------------|--|-------------------|-----|---|--|--|
| (Thousands) | Principal | Unamortized Discount, Premium and Debt Issuance Costs | Principal | Dis | Unamortized count, Premium d Debt Issuance Costs | | |
| Senior secured term loan B - variable rate, due October 24, 2022 | | | | | | | |
| (discount is based on imputed interest rate of 7.47%) | \$ - | - | \$ 2,044,728 | \$ | (74,523) | | |
| Senior secured notes - 7.875%, due February 15, 2025 | | | | | | | |
| (discount is based on imputed interest rate of 8.38%) | 2,250,000 | (43,814) | - | | - | | |
| Senior secured notes - 6.00%, due April 15, 2023 | | | | | | | |
| (discount is based on imputed interest rate of 6.29%) | 550,000 | (4,856) | 550,000 | | (5,633) | | |
| Senior unsecured notes - 8.25%, due October 15, 2023 | | | | | | | |
| (discount is based on imputed interest rate of 9.06%) | 1,110,000 | (25,550) | 1,110,000 | | (28,808) | | |
| Senior unsecured notes - 7.125% due December 15, 2024 | 600,000 | (5,819) | 600,000 | | (6,304) | | |
| Senior unsecured notes - 4.00%, due June 15, 2024 | | | | | | | |
| (discount is based on imputed interest rate of 11.1%) | 345,000 | (77,659) | 345,000 | | (85,272) | | |
| Senior secured revolving credit facility, variable rate, due April 24, | | | | | | | |
| 2022 | 128,319 | (5,967) | 575,019 | | (6,528) | | |
| Total | \$ 4,983,319 | \$ (163,665) | \$ 5,224,747 | \$ | (207,068) | | |

At June 30, 2020, notes and other debt included the following: (i) \$2.25 billion aggregate principal amount of 7.875% senior secured notes due 2025 (the "2025 Secured Notes"); (ii) \$550.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6.00% Senior Secured Notes due April 15, 2023 (the "2023 Secured Notes" and, together with the 2025 Secured Notes, the "Secured Notes"); (iii) \$1.11 billion aggregate principal amount of 8.25% Senior Unsecured Notes due October 15, 2023 (the "2023 Notes"); (iv) \$600.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7.125% Senior Unsecured Notes due December 15, 2024 (the "2024 Notes"); (v) \$345.0 million aggregate principal amount of 4.00% Exchangeable Senior Notes due June 15, 2024 (the "Exchangeable Notes" and together with the Secured Notes, the 2023 Notes and the 2024 Notes, the "Notes") and (vi) \$128.3 million under the senior secured revolving credit facility (the "Revolving Credit Facility"), variable rate, that matures April 24, 2022 pursuant the credit agreement by and among the Borrowers (as defined below), the guarantors and lenders party thereto and Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent and collateral agent (the "Credit Agreement"). On February 10, 2020, the Operating Partnership and certain of its wholly-owned subsidiaries issued the 2025 Secured Notes and used the proceeds from the offering to repay all \$2.05 billion of outstanding term loans under our senior secured credit facilities and to repay approximately \$156.7 million of revolving loans (and terminated related commitments of approximately \$157.6 million). As a result of the repayment of the term loans and terminated commitments of the revolving loans, we recognized \$72.5 million and \$1.4 million, respectively, of non-cash interest expense for the write off of the unamortized discount and deferred financing costs within interest expense, net on the Condensed Consolidated Statements of (Loss) Income for the six months ended June 30, 2020.

Credit Agreement

The Operating Partnership, Uniti Group Finance 2019 Inc. and CSL Capital, LLC (the "Borrowers") are borrowers under the Credit Agreement, which as of December 31, 2019, which provided for a term loan facility (in an initial principal amount of \$2.14 billion) and provides for a revolving credit facility (in an initial aggregate principal amount of up to \$750 million) (the "Revolving Credit Facility"). On February 10, 2020, in connection with the issuance of the 2025 Secured Notes and the effectiveness of the Sixth Amendment described below, the Borrowers repaid all \$2.05 billion of outstanding term loans and repaid approximately \$156.7 million of revolving loans under the Revolving Credit Facility (and terminated related commitments in an amount equal to \$157.6 million, thereby reducing total commitments under the Revolving Credit Facility to \$418.3 million). As of June 30, 2020, total commitments under the Revolving Credit Facility are \$418.3 million with \$290.0 million of borrowing availability.

All obligations under the Credit Agreement are guaranteed by (i) the Company and (ii) certain of the Operating Partnership's subsidiaries (the "Subsidiary Guarantors") and are secured by substantially all of the assets of the Borrowers and the Subsidiary Guarantors, which assets also secure the Secured Notes.

The Revolving Credit Facility presently bears interest at a rate equal to either a base rate plus an applicable margin ranging from 3.75% to 4.25% or a Eurodollar rate plus an applicable margin ranging from 4.75% to 5.25%, in each case, calculated in a customary manner and determined based on our consolidated secured leverage ratio.

The Borrowers are subject to customary covenants under the Credit Agreement, including an obligation to maintain a consolidated secured leverage ratio, as defined in the Credit Agreement, not to exceed 5.00 to 1.00. We are permitted, subject to customary conditions, to incur other indebtedness, so long as, on a pro forma basis after giving effect to any such indebtedness, our consolidated total leverage ratio, as defined in the Credit Agreement, does not exceed 6.50 to 1.00 and, if such debt is secured, our consolidated secured leverage ratio, as defined in the Credit Agreement, does not exceed 4.00 to 1.00. In addition, the Credit Agreement contains customary events of default, including a cross default provision whereby the failure of the Borrowers or certain of their subsidiaries to make payments under other debt obligations, or the occurrence of certain events affecting those other borrowing arrangements, could trigger an obligation to repay any amounts outstanding under the Credit Agreement. In particular, a repayment obligation could be triggered if (i) the Borrowers or certain of their subsidiaries fail to make a payment when due of any principal or interest on any other indebtedness aggregating \$75.0 million or more, or (ii) an event occurs that causes, or would permit the holders of any other indebtedness aggregating \$75.0 million or more to cause, such indebtedness to become due prior to its stated maturity. As of June 30, 2020, the Borrowers were in compliance with all of the covenants under the Credit Agreement.

On March 18, 2019, we received a limited waiver from our lenders under our Credit Agreement, waiving an event of default related solely to the receipt of a going concern opinion from our auditors for our 2018 audited financial statements. The limited waiver was issued in connection with the fourth amendment (the "Fourth Amendment") to our Credit Agreement. During the pendency of Windstream's bankruptcy, the Fourth Amendment generally limits our ability under the Credit Agreement to (i) prepay unsecured indebtedness and (ii) pay cash dividends in excess of 90% of our REIT taxable income, determined without regard to the dividends paid deduction and excluding any net capital gains.

On June 24, 2019, we entered into an amendment (the "Fifth Amendment") to our Credit Agreement to extend the maturity date of \$575.9 million of commitments under the Revolving Credit Facility to April 24, 2022 and to pay down approximately \$101.6 million of outstanding revolving loans and terminate the related commitments. The maturity date of approximately \$72.4 million of other commitments was not extended. On June 28, 2019, the Company repaid approximately \$174.0 million in total borrowings, which consisted of the \$101.6 million required repayment pursuant to the Fifth Amendment and \$72.4 million of non-extended borrowings, thereby terminating the non-extended commitments. As a result, all remaining commitments will terminate on April 24, 2022, at which time all outstanding borrowings must be repaid. The Company used a portion of the net proceeds from the offering of Exchangeable Notes described below to fund the repayments.

On February 10, 2020, we received a limited waiver from our lenders under our Credit Agreement, waiving an event of default related solely to the receipt of a going concern opinion from our auditors for our 2019 audited financial statements. The limited waiver was issued in connection with an amendment (the "Sixth Amendment") to our Credit Agreement. In addition to the restrictions imposed by the Fourth Amendment discussed above, which remain effective, the Sixth Amendment also limits the ability of our non-guarantor subsidiaries to incur indebtedness. The Sixth Amendment increased the interest rate on our revolving facility by 100 bps for each applicable rate. As amended, borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility bear interest at a rate equal to either a base rate plus an applicable margin ranging from 3.75% to 4.25% or a Eurodollar rate plus an applicable margin ranging from 4.75% to 5.25%, in each case, calculated in a customary manner and determined based on our consolidated secured leverage ratio.

A termination of the Master Lease would result in an "event of default" under the Credit Agreement if a replacement lease was not entered into within ninety (90) calendar days and we do not maintain pro forma compliance with a consolidated secured leverage ratio, as defined in the Credit Agreement, of 5.00 to 1.00.

The Notes

The Borrowers, as co-issuers, have outstanding \$550 million aggregate principal amount of the 2023 Secured Notes, of which \$400 million was originally issued on April 24, 2015 at an issue price of 100% of par value and the remaining \$150 million was issued on

June 9, 2016 at an issue price of 99.25% of the par value as an add-on to the existing 2023 Secured Notes. The Borrowers, as co-issuers, also have outstanding \$1.11 billion aggregate principal amount of the 2023 Notes that were originally issued on April 24, 2015 at an issue price of 97.055% of par value. The 2023 Secured Notes and the 2023 Notes are guaranteed by the Company and the Subsidiary Guarantors.

The Operating Partnership and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, CSL Capital, LLC and Uniti Fiber, as co-issuers, have outstanding \$600 million aggregate principal amount of the 2024 Notes, of which \$400 million was originally issued on December 15, 2016 at an issue price of 100% of par value and the remaining \$200 million of which was issued on May 8, 2017 at an issue price of 100.50% of par value under a separate indenture and was mandatorily exchanged on August 11, 2017 for 2024 Notes issued as "additional notes" under the indenture governing the 2024 Notes. The 2024 Notes are guaranteed by the Company and the Subsidiary Guarantors (other than Uniti Fiber, which is a co-issuer of the 2024 Notes).

On February 10, 2020, the Borrowers and Uniti Fiber, as co-issuers, issued \$2.25 billion aggregate principal amount of the 2025 Secured Notes at an issue price of 100% of par value. The 2025 Secured Notes are guaranteed by the Company and the Subsidiary Guarantors (other than Uniti Fiber, which is a co-issuer of the 2025 Secured Notes).

The Exchangeable Notes

On June 28, 2019, Uniti Fiber issued \$345 million aggregate principal amount of the Exchangeable Notes. The Exchangeable Notes are senior unsecured notes and are guaranteed by the Company and each of the Company's subsidiaries (other than Uniti Fiber) that is an issuer, obligor or guarantor under the Notes. The Exchangeable Notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 4.00% per year, payable semiannually in arrears on June 15 and December 15 of each year, beginning on December 15, 2019. The Exchangeable Notes are exchangeable into cash, shares of the Company's common stock, or a combination thereof, at Uniti Fiber's election, subject to limitations under the Company's Credit Agreement. The Exchangeable Notes will mature on June 15, 2024, unless earlier exchanged, redeemed or repurchased.

Under GAAP, certain convertible debt instruments that may be settled in cash upon conversion are required to be separately accounted for as liability and equity components of the instrument in a manner that reflects the issuer's non-convertible debt borrowing rate. Accordingly, in accounting for the issuance of the Exchangeable Notes, the Company separated the Exchangeable Notes into liability and equity components. The carrying amount of the liability component was calculated by measuring the fair value of a similar liability that does not have an associated convertible feature.

The carrying amount of the equity component, which is recognized as a debt discount, represents the difference between the proceeds from the issuance of the Exchangeable Notes and the fair value of the liability component of the Exchangeable Notes. The excess of the principal amount of the liability component over its carrying amount will be amortized to interest expense using an effective interest rate of 11.1% over the term of the Exchangeable Notes. The equity component is not remeasured as long as it continues to meet the conditions for equity classification.

Debt issuance costs related to the Exchangeable Notes were comprised of commissions payable to the Initial Purchasers of \$10.4 million and third-party costs of approximately \$1.4 million.

In accounting for the debt issuance costs related to the issuance of the Exchangeable Notes, the Company allocated the total amount incurred to the liability and equity components based on their relative values. Debt issuance costs attributable to the liability component were recorded as a contra-liability and are presented net against the Exchangeable Notes balance on our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. These costs are amortized to interest expense using the effective interest method over the term of the Exchangeable Notes. Debt issuance costs of \$2.9 million attributable to the equity component are netted with the equity component in stockholders' equity, which netted to \$80.8 million.

Deferred Financing Cost

Deferred financing costs were incurred in connection with the issuance of the Notes and the Revolving Credit Facility. These costs are amortized using the effective interest method over the term of the related indebtedness and are included in interest expense in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of (Loss) Income. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2020, we recognized \$4.5 million and \$7.5 million, respectively, of non-cash interest expense related to the amortization of deferred financing costs. For the three and

six months ended June 30, 2019, we recognized \$3.7 million and \$7.5 million, respectively, of non-cash interest expense related to the amortization of deferred financing costs.

Note 13. Earnings Per Share

Our time-based restricted stock awards are considered participating securities as they receive non-forfeitable rights to dividends at the same rate as common stock. As participating securities, we included these instruments in the computation of earnings per share under the two-class method described in FASB ASC 260, *Earnings per Share* ("ASC 260").

We also have outstanding performance-based restricted stock units that contain forfeitable rights to receive dividends. Therefore, the awards are considered non-participating restrictive shares and are not dilutive under the two-class method until performance conditions are met.

Prior to the second quarter of 2019, the earnings-per-share impact of the Company's 3% Convertible Preferred Stock, \$0.0001 par value ("Series A Shares"), issued in connection with the May 2, 2016 acquisition of PEG Bandwidth, LLC, was calculated using the net share settlement method, whereby the redemption value of the instrument is assumed to be settled in cash and only the conversion premium, if any, is assumed to be settled in shares. The Series A Shares provided Uniti the option to settle the instrument in cash or shares. During the second quarter of 2019, the Company received notice from the holder of the Series A Shares of its election to convert all its shares, and the Company made an election to issue shares upon conversion, which occurred on July 2, 2019.

The dilutive effect of the Exchangeable Notes (see Note 12) is calculated by using the "if-converted" method. This assumes an add-back of interest, net of income taxes, to net income attributable to shareholders as if the securities were converted at the beginning of the reporting period (or at time of issuance, if later) and the resulting common shares included in number of weighted average shares. The dilutive effect of the Warrants (see Note 10) is calculated using the treasury-stock method. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Warrants were excluded from diluted shares outstanding because the exercise price exceeded the average market price of our common stock for the reporting period.

The following sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share under the two-class method:

| | Three Months I | Ended | l June 30, | | Six Months E | June 30, | |
|---|--------------------|-------|------------|----|--------------|----------|---------|
| (Thousands, except per share data) | 2020 2019 | | | | 2020 | | 2019 |
| Basic earnings per share: | | | | | | | |
| Numerator: | | | | | | | |
| Net (loss) income attributable to shareholders | \$ (587,744) | \$ | 38,717 | \$ | (666,597) | \$ | 41,159 |
| Less: Income allocated to participating securities | (424) | | (223) | | (624) | | (251) |
| Dividends declared on convertible preferred stock | (1) | | - | | (4) | | (656) |
| Amortization of discount on convertible preferred stock | - | | (248) | | - | | (993) |
| Net (loss) income attributable to common shares | \$ (588,169) | \$ | 38,246 | \$ | (667,225) | \$ | 39,259 |
| Denominator: | | | | | | | |
| Basic weighted-average common shares outstanding | 192,479 | | 182,971 | | 192,358 | | 182,597 |
| Basic (loss) earnings per common share | \$ (3.06) | \$ | 0.21 | \$ | (3.47) | \$ | 0.22 |

| | Three Months I | Ended | June 30, | Six Months E | aded June 30, | | |
|--|-----------------|-------|----------|-----------------|---------------|---------|--|
| (Thousands, except per share data) | 2020 | | 2019 | 2020 | | 2019 | |
| Diluted earnings per share: | | | | | | | |
| Numerator: | | | | | | | |
| Net (loss) income attributable to shareholders | \$ (587,744) | \$ | 38,717 | \$ (666,597) | \$ | 41,159 | |
| Less: Income allocated to participating securities | (424) | | (223) | (624) | | (251) | |
| Dividends declared on convertible preferred stock | (1) | | - | (4) | | (656) | |
| Amortization of discount on convertible preferred stock | - | | (248) | - | | (993) | |
| Impact on if-converted dilutive securities | - | | 363 | - | | 1,764 | |
| Net (loss) income attributable to common shares | \$ (588,169) | \$ | 38,609 | \$ (667,225) | \$ | 41,023 | |
| Denominator: | | | | | | | |
| Basic weighted-average common shares outstanding | 192,479 | | 182,971 | 192,358 | | 182,597 | |
| Effect of dilutive non-participating securities | - | | 8 | - | | 8 | |
| Impact on if-converted dilutive securities | - | | 10,126 | - | | 9,671 | |
| Weighted-average shares for dilutive earnings per common share | 192,479 | | 193,105 | 192,358 | | 192,276 | |
| Dilutive (loss) earnings per common share | \$ (3.06) | \$ | 0.20 | \$ (3.47) | \$ | 0.21 | |

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2020, 29,198,385 potential common shares related to the Exchangeable Notes and 730,863 non-participating securities were excluded from the computation of earnings per share, as their effect would have been anti-dilutive.

Note 14. Segment Information

Our management, including our chief executive officer, who is our chief operating decision maker, manages our operations as four reportable segments in addition to our corporate operations, which include:

<u>Leasing</u>: Represents the results from our leasing business, Uniti Leasing, which is engaged in the acquisition of mission-critical communications assets and leasing them back to anchor customers on either an exclusive or shared-tenant basis.

<u>Fiber Infrastructure</u>: Represents the operations of our fiber business, Uniti Fiber, which is a leading provider of infrastructure solutions, including cell site backhaul and dark fiber, to the telecommunications industry.

<u>Towers</u>: Represents the operations of our towers business, Uniti Towers, through which we acquire and construct tower and tower-related real estate and lease space on communications towers to wireless service providers and other tenants in the United States. On April 2, 2019, the Company completed the sale of LATAM and no longer has on-going operations in Latin America. On May 23, 2019, the Company completed the sale of substantially all of its ground lease business located across the United States. On June 1, 2020, the Company completed the sale of its U.S. tower business to Melody for total cash consideration of \$225.8 million. The Company retained a 10% investment interest in the tower business through a newly formed limited partnership with Melody. See Note 5.

<u>Consumer CLEC</u>: Represents the operations of Talk America Services ("Talk America") through which we operate the Consumer CLEC Business, which prior to Uniti's separation and spin-off from Windstream (the "Spin-Off") was reported as an integrated operation within Windstream. Talk America provides local telephone, high-speed internet and long distance services to customers in the eastern and central United States. We have commenced a wind down of our Consumer CLEC business, which we substantially completed during the second quarter of 2020.

<u>Corporate</u>: Represents our corporate and back office functions. Certain costs and expenses, primarily related to headcount, insurance, professional fees and similar charges, that are directly attributable to operations of our business segments are allocated to the respective segments.

Management evaluates the performance of each segment using Adjusted EBITDA, which is a segment performance measure we define as net income determined in accordance with GAAP, before interest expense, provision for income taxes, depreciation and amortization, stock-based compensation expense, the impact, which may be recurring in nature, of transaction and integration related expenses, costs associated with Windstream's bankruptcy, costs associated with litigation claims made against us, and costs associated with the implementation of our new enterprise resource planning system, the write off of unamortized deferred financing costs, costs incurred as a result of the early repayment of debt, gains or losses on dispositions, changes in the fair value of contingent consideration and financial instruments, and other similar items. The Company believes that net income, as defined by GAAP, is the most appropriate earnings metric; however, we believe that Adjusted EBITDA serves as a useful supplement to net income because it allows investors, analysts and management to evaluate the performance of our segments in a manner that is comparable period over period. Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered as an alternative to net income as determined in accordance with GAAP.

Selected financial data related to our segments is presented below for the three and six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019:

| | | | Th | ree N | Months Ended | l June | 30, 2020 | | |
|-------------------------------------|---------------|-----|--------------------|-------|--------------|--------|------------|---------------|---------------------------------------|
| (Thousands) | Leasing | Fib | oer Infrastructure | | Towers | Con | sumer CLEC | Corporate | Subtotal of Reportable Segments |
| Revenues | \$ 185,320 | \$ | 79,140 | \$ | 2,392 | \$ | (32) | \$ | \$ 266,820 |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| Adjusted EBITDA | \$ 182,810 | \$ | 28,493 | \$ | 85 | \$ | (292) | \$ (8,227) | \$ 202,869 |
| Less: | | | | | | | | | |
| Interest expense | | | | | | | | | 107,243 |
| Depreciation and amortization | 52,405 | | 32,279 | | 14 | | 197 | 74 | 84,969 |
| Other expense, net | | | | | | | | | 6,013 |
| Settlement expense | | | | | | | | | 650,000 |
| Transaction related and other costs | | | | | | | | | 18,556 |
| Gain on sale of real estate | | | | | | | | | (63,818) |
| Stock-based compensation | | | | | | | | | 4,110 |
| Income tax benefit | | | | | | | | | (5,875) |
| Net loss | | | | | | | | | \$ (598,329) |

| | | | | | T | hree Months Ende | d Jun | ie 30, 2019 | | | |
|-------------------------------------|----|---------|----|--------|----|------------------|-------|-------------|-----------|---------------------------------------|---------------|
| (Thousands) | | | | | | | | | Corporate | Subtotal of Reportable Segments | |
| Revenues | \$ | 177,042 | \$ | 81,327 | \$ | 3,146 | | 2,899 | \$ | - | \$ 264,414 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Adjusted EBITDA | \$ | 175,881 | \$ | 37,036 | \$ | (42) | \$ | 565 | \$ | (6,576) | \$ 206,864 |
| Less: | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Interest expense | | | | | | | | | | | 97,729 |
| Depreciation and amortization | | 72,275 | | 28,494 | | 1,412 | | 346 | | 51 | 102,578 |
| Other income, net | | | | | | | | | | | (22,275) |
| Transaction related and other costs | | | | | | | | | | | 7,035 |
| Gain on sale of real estate | | | | | | | | | | | (28,790) |
| Stock-based compensation | | | | | | | | | | | 3,197 |
| Income tax expense | | | | | | | | | | | 7,843 |
| Net income | | | | | | | | | | | \$ 39,547 |

| | | | | Si | x Mon | ths Ended Ju | ne 30, | 2020 | | |
|-------------------------------------|---------|-----------------------------|----|---------|-------|--------------|-----------|---------------------------------------|----------------|-----------------|
| (Thousands) | Leasing | Fiber Infrastructure Towers | | | Cons | umer CLEC | Corporate | Subtotal of Reportable Segments | | |
| Revenues | \$ | 369,672 | \$ | 156,547 | \$ | 6,112 | \$ | 651 | \$ | \$ 532,982 |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| Adjusted EBITDA | \$ | 364,689 | \$ | 56,034 | \$ | 77 | \$ | (275) | \$ (15,942) | \$ 404,583 |
| Less: | | | | | | | | | | |
| Interest expense | | | | | | | | | | 285,636 |
| Depreciation and amortization | | 107,027 | | 62,340 | | 783 | | 791 | 149 | 171,090 |
| Other income, net | | | | | | | | | | 9,088 |
| Settlement expense | | | | | | | | | | 650,000 |
| Transaction related and other costs | | | | | | | | | | 34,528 |
| Gain on sale of real estate | | | | | | | | | | (63,818) |
| Stock-based compensation | | | | | | | | | | 7,105 |
| Income tax benefit | | | | | | | | | | (10,451) |
| Net loss | | | | | | | | | | \$ (678,595) |

Six Months Ended June 30, 2019 Subtotal of Reportable (Thousands) Leasing Fiber Infrastructure Consumer CLEC Corporate egments 353,125 8,226 525,445 158,160 5,934 Revenues Adjusted EBITDA 350,632 67,036 407,139 \$ \$ 283 \$ 1,211 \$ (12,023)Less: 182,187 Interest expense Depreciation and 146,028 56,752 2,827 692 106 206,405 amortization (25,388)Other income, net Transaction related and other 13,704 Gain on sale of real estate (28,790)Stock-based compensation 5,085 Income tax expense 11,897 42,039 Net income

Note 15. Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

In the ordinary course of our business, we are subject to claims and administrative proceedings, none of which we believe are material or would be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, cash flows or results of operations.

Pursuant to the Separation and Distribution Agreement entered into with Windstream in connection with the Spin-Off, Windstream has agreed to indemnify us (including our subsidiaries, directors, officers, employees and agents and certain other related parties) for any liability arising from or relating to legal proceedings involving Windstream's telecommunications business prior to the Spin-Off, and, pursuant to the Master Lease, Windstream has agreed to indemnify us for, among other things, any use, misuse, maintenance or repair by Windstream with respect to the Distribution Systems. Windstream is currently a party to various legal actions and administrative proceedings, including various claims arising in the ordinary course of its telecommunications business, which are subject to the indemnities provided to us by Windstream. If Windstream assumes the Separation and Distribution Agreement and/or the Master Lease in bankruptcy, it would be obligated to honor all indemnification claims arising under such agreement. If the Separation and Distribution Agreement and or the Master Lease are rejected in Windstream's bankruptcy, any claims on the applicable indemnity would be treated as unsecured claims, and, if that were to occur, there can be no assurance we would receive any related indemnification payments from Windstream in connection with the applicable indemnity claims.

On July 25, 2019, in connection with Windstream's bankruptcy, Windstream Holdings and Windstream Services, LLC ("Windstream Services") filed a complaint with the Bankruptcy Court in an adversary proceeding against Uniti and certain of its affiliates, alleging, among other things, that the Master Lease should be recharacterized as a financing arrangement, that certain rent payments and tenant capital improvements made by Windstream under the Master Lease constitute constructive fraudulent transfers, that the Master Lease is a lease of personal property and that Uniti breached certain of its obligations under the Master Lease. An adverse determination in the adversary proceeding with Windstream could materially adversely affect our results of operations, liquidity and financial condition and our status as a REIT.

On March 2, 2020, Uniti and Windstream jointly announced that they agreed to the Settlement to resolve any and all claims and causes of action that have been or may be asserted against Uniti by Windstream, including all litigation brought by Windstream and certain of its creditors in the context of Windstream's bankruptcy, and on May 12, 2020, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order approving Windstream's assumption of the Master Lease as part of the Settlement. As a result, we have recorded a \$650.0 million

charge during the quarter ended June 30, 2020, which represents the estimated fair value of the litigation component of the Settlement; however, this estimate is subject to change in future periods if new facts or circumstances arise that are unknown at this time.

On June 26, 2020, the Bankruptcy Court approved Windstream's plan of reorganization. Consummation of the plan of reorganization is subject to certain conditions precedent, including consummation of the Settlement and receipt of certain regulatory approvals. On July 3, 2020, UMB Bank and U.S. Bank, as indenture trustees for certain of Windstream's prepetition unsecured notes, and CQS US, LLC appealed the Bankruptcy Court's order approving the plan of reorganization. The appeals are pending before the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York. On July 7, 2020, UMB Bank settled its appeal of the order approving the plan of reorganization. On July 9, 2020, CQS US, LLC filed a motion seeking reconsideration of UMB Bank's settlement.

If the Settlement is not implemented, Windstream has the option to assume or reject the Master Lease. We believe that we are likely to effectuate the Settlement. However, even if it cannot be implemented, we believe the probability of Windstream rejecting the Master Lease in bankruptcy to be remote if Windstream intends to reorganize. A rejection of the Master Lease, or even a temporary disruption in payments to us, would require us to fund certain expenses and obligations (e.g., real estate taxes, insurance and maintenance expenses) to preserve the value of our properties and avoid the imposition of liens on our properties and could impact our ability to fund other cash obligations, including dividends necessary to maintain REIT status, non-essential capital expenditures and our debt service obligations and could otherwise affect our ability to maintain REIT status.

A rejection of the Master Lease by Windstream could result in an "event of default" under our Credit Agreement if we are unable to enter into a replacement lease that satisfies certain criteria set forth in the Credit Agreement within ninety (90) calendar days and we do not maintain pro forma compliance with a consolidated secured leverage ratio, as defined in the Credit Agreement, of 5.00 to 1.00. An acceleration of debt under our senior secured credit facilities due to an uncured "event of default" under our Credit Agreement would also result in an "event of default" under the terms of our outstanding notes. Such an "event of default" would give the holders of the applicable debt obligation the right to accelerate our repayment obligations relating to such debt.

Recharacterization / Pending Master Lease Litigation. As stated above, on July 25, 2019, Windstream Holdings and Windstream Services filed a complaint with the Bankruptcy Court against Uniti and certain of its affiliates, alleging, among other things, that (1) the Master Lease should be recharacterized as a financing arrangement, (2) rent payments and tenant capital improvements made by Windstream under the Master Lease since at least the third quarter of 2017 constitute constructive fraudulent transfers, (3) the Master Lease is a lease of personal property and (4) Uniti has breached its non-competition obligations to Windstream under the Master Lease, each of which allegations is discussed in more detail below. As described above, the Settlement should resolve these claims.

Recharacterization. Windstream asserted that the Master Lease should be recharacterized as a financing arrangement. If the Master Lease were recharacterized as a financing arrangement, Windstream has argued that Windstream should be deemed the true owner of the property subject to the Master Lease, and Uniti should be treated as a creditor of Windstream rather than as a landlord.

Were the Bankruptcy Court to hold that the Master Lease should be recharacterized as a financing arrangement, it could significantly affect or even eliminate current payments to us under the Master Lease and could significantly affect the ultimate treatment of our claims (including potentially through changing our status to that of a creditor that would share in creditor recoveries from the estate rather than receive rent payments). The Bankruptcy Court could determine that Windstream is the true owner of the property subject to the Master Lease, and we have argued that such property would be deemed to be owned by Windstream Holdings as the counterparty to the Master Lease and that Uniti would have a claim against Windstream Holdings that is secured by such property. Windstream has argued that such property would instead be owned by the operating subsidiaries that previously held it and that our claims would be against Windstream Holdings as the counterparty to the Master Lease. In such an event, the Bankruptcy Court would also determine if our claims are secured by an interest in the leased property. If the Bankruptcy Court were to determine that our claims are not secured by an interest in the leased property, our claims could be unsecured and structurally subordinated to the claims of creditors at Windstream Holdings' subsidiaries, including Windstream Services. Windstream Services is the issuer of substantially all of Windstream's debt obligations and certain of its operating subsidiaries guarantee such debt obligations. Were we to be treated as an unsecured creditor of Windstream Holdings, we would not be able to recover any value from Windstream Services or such other operating subsidiaries until all of their respective debt obligations have been satisfied and, in such event, the notes and the guarantees of the notes would only be secured on a first-priority basis by certain of our assets that do not constitute the property subject to the Master Lease. In the event of such an adverse determination, our ability to meet our debt and other obligations could be materially impaired. In addition, recharacterization of the Master Lease as a financing arrangement, depending on the findings of fact and law of, and remedies applied by, the Bankruptcy Court, could affect the U.S. federal income tax treatment of the Master Lease, our status as a

Uniti Group Inc. Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements – Continued (unaudited)

REIT (see in Part I, Item 1A "Risk Factors" of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019—Risks Related to the Status of Uniti as a REIT) and could materially adversely affect our consolidated results of operations, liquidity, and financial condition.

Constructive Fraudulent Transfer. Windstream also alleged that rent payments and tenant capital improvements made by Windstream under the Master Lease since at least the third quarter of 2017 constitute constructive fraudulent transfers. If the constructive fraudulent transfer claim were successful, Uniti may be required to repay Windstream the amount of rent payments made by Windstream above fair market rent as determined by the Bankruptcy Court and the aggregate amount of all tenant capital improvements made by Windstream, in each case since the date on which the Bankruptcy Court found Windstream to have been insolvent. In its complaint in the adversary proceeding, Windstream alleges that it has paid approximately \$366 million for tenant capital improvements under the Master Lease from the fourth quarter of 2017 through November 2019, in addition to making substantial rent payments. As any such calculation of fair market rent and any resulting damages would be a fact-intensive inquiry, it is not possible to provide a likely range of damages at this time, but any such damages award could materially adversely affect our consolidated results of operations, liquidity, and financial condition.

Master Lease for Personal Property. Windstream alleged that the Master Lease is a lease of personal property. If the Master Lease were determined to be a lease of personal property, the deadline for Windstream Holdings to assume or reject the Master Lease would be the confirmation of its plan of reorganization by the Bankruptcy Court, which would extend the deadline that would otherwise be applicable under the bankruptcy code if the Master Lease were treated as a lease of real property, and Windstream could seek from the Bankruptcy Court relief from its current performance obligations during the bankruptcy case. In addition, if the Master Lease were determined to be a lease of personal property, this could also impact our status as a REIT if the Internal Revenue Service were to determine that our gross income is not sufficiently derived from real property. On January 21, 2020, Windstream agreed to stay, without prejudice, its action seeking a determination that the Master Lease is a lease of personal property.

<u>Breach of Contract</u>. Windstream alleges that Uniti has breached its non-competition obligations to Windstream under the Master Lease and that Windstream is entitled to damages and/or an abatement of rent as a result of such breach, although no damages amount has been asserted. We believe this claim is without merit and in any event do not believe damages would be material.

Mediation and the Settlement. Uniti, Windstream and Windstream's creditors engaged in mediation in the Windstream bankruptcy to resolve claims brought by Windstream against Uniti, which culminated in the March 2, 2020 announcement of the Settlement. On May 12, 2020, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order approving Windstream's assumption of the Master Lease as part of the Settlement. On May 12, 2020, Uniti and Windstream entered into the settlement agreement to implement the Settlement. On May 26, 2020, UMB Bank, National Association and U.S. Bank National Association, as indenture trustees for certain of Windstream's prepetition unsecured notes indentures, appealed Judge Drain's order approving the Settlement. The appeals are pending before the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York.

Pursuant to the Settlement, Uniti and Windstream will agree to mutual releases with respect to any and all liability related to any claims and causes of action between them, including those relating to Windstream's Chapter 11 proceedings and the Master Lease. Under the Settlement, Uniti will agree to make up to \$490 million of cash payments to Windstream in equal installments over 20 consecutive quarters beginning the first month after Windstream's emergence from bankruptcy at an annual interest rate of 9%, and Uniti may prepay any installments falling due on or after the first anniversary of the Settlement's effective date (resulting in total payments ranging from \$432-\$490 million). Uniti will also transfer the proceeds from the sale of its common stock described below to Windstream. In exchange, Windstream will transfer to Uniti certain dark fiber indefeasible rights of use ("IRU") contracts and will grant exclusive rights to 1.8 million fiber strand miles leased by Windstream that is either unutilized or utilized for the dark fiber IRUs being transferred. Uniti will be required to pay Windstream \$350 per route mile on any fiber strand miles that are sold above and beyond the fiber strand miles currently being utilized in connection with such dark fiber IRUs. In addition, Uniti will acquire certain Windstream-owned assets, including certain fiber IRU contracts.

In addition, Windstream and Uniti have agreed to bifurcate the Master Lease into two structurally similar agreements to govern Windstream's incumbent local exchange carrier ("ILEC") and competitive local exchange carrier ("CLEC") facilities, respectively (collectively, the "New Leases"). Certain copper CLEC assets will be governed under the New Lease relating to the ILEC facilities. Each of Windstream Holdings, Windstream Services, and certain subsidiaries and/or newly formed affiliated entities will become parties to the New Leases. The New Leases will contain cross-guarantees and cross-default provisions, which will remain effective as long as Windstream or an affiliate is a tenant under one of the New Leases. In addition, the New Leases will be amended to require

Uniti Group Inc. Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements – Continued (unaudited)

that Windstream maintain certain financial covenants and to permit Uniti to transfer its rights and obligations and otherwise monetize or encumber the New Leases so long as it does not transfer interests to a Windstream competitor. The initial aggregate annual rent under the New Leases will be equal to the annual rent under the Master Lease currently in effect.

Pursuant to the Settlement, Uniti will agree to invest up to an aggregate \$1.75 billion in growth capital improvements in long-term fiber and related assets in certain ILEC and CLEC properties. Growth Capital Improvements will exclude maintenance or repair expenditures and expenditures toward fiber replacement in excess of \$70 million per year and will be subject to Uniti's approval based on underwriting standards to be included in the New Leases. Annual commitments by Uniti for the Growth Capital Improvements will comprise: \$125 million in 2020; \$225 million per year in 2021 through 2024; \$175 million per year in 2025 and \$125 million per year in 2027 through 2029. Windstream will be entitled to reimbursement for any cumulative Growth Capital Improvements it incurs in excess of the foregoing annual amounts from the commitment amounts in a subsequent period. On the first anniversary of an investment for a Growth Capital Improvement, the annual base rent payable by Windstream will increase by an amount equal to 8.0% of such investment. The Rent Rate will thereafter increase to 100.5% of the prior Rent Rate in subsequent years.

Pursuant to the Settlement, if Windstream is not in compliance with the terms and conditions of the New Leases, Uniti will not be required to invest in Growth Capital Improvements. In the event Uniti defaults or otherwise fails to timely satisfy its obligations under the New Leases and Windstream is in compliance with the terms of the New Leases, then Windstream has the right to deduct from the subsequent rent payment or payments, amounts otherwise owed to Windstream.

In connection with the Settlement, Uniti also entered into binding letters of intent on March 2, 2020 with certain first lien creditors of Windstream, pursuant to which Uniti will sell an aggregate of 38,633,470 shares of Uniti common stock, par value \$0.0001 per share, at \$6.33 per share, which represents the closing price of Uniti common stock on the date when an agreement in principle of the basic outline of the Settlement was first reached (the "Settlement Common Stock"). Uniti will transfer the proceeds from the sale of the Settlement Common Stock to Windstream as additional settlement consideration. The issuance and sale of the Settlement Common Stock will be made in reliance upon the exemption from registration requirements pursuant to Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Certain recipients of the Settlement Common Stock will be subject to a one-year lock up, and all recipients will be subject to a customary standstill agreement. No recipient will receive any governance rights in connection with the issuance.

Finally, on March 2, 2020, Uniti, Windstream and certain of Windstream's creditors entered into a Plan Support Agreement. Pursuant to the Plan Support Agreement, the Parties agreed to support the Settlement and the approval of a plan of reorganization for Windstream on the terms and subject to the conditions described therein. The Plan Support Agreement is terminable by the Parties upon the occurrence of certain specified termination events, including, among other things, (i) the failure by Windstream to timely appeal any order by the bankruptcy court denying the Settlement or any order overturning an order approving the Settlement on appeal, and (ii) the issuance by a regulatory authority of an order enjoining, or the commencement of an action that could be reasonably expected to enjoin, material portions of the settlement or substantial consummation of the Settlement (subject to a 10 day cure period).

The Settlement is subject to finalizing and executing definitive documentation and the receipt of certain regulatory approvals. In July 2020, we received satisfactory "true lease" opinions confirming that the New Leases are "true leases" for U.S. federal income tax purposes, which satisfied conditions precedent to effectuating the Settlement. Following satisfaction of all such conditions precedent, consummation of the Settlement will occur on the earlier of Windstream's emergence from bankruptcy and February 28, 2021. All litigation between Windstream and Uniti, including matters referenced herein, is stayed while the parties implement the Settlement.

As noted above, as of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, we have estimated that \$650.0 million of the consideration to be paid to Windstream should be classified as settlement of litigation, and therefore, we have recorded a charge during the quarter ended June 30, 2020. This charge represents our estimated fair value of the litigation settlement component of the Settlement, and is subject to change in future periods if new facts or circumstances arise that are unknown at this time.

Other Litigation

On July 3, 2019, SLF Holdings, LLC ("SLF") filed a complaint against the Company, Uniti Fiber, and certain current and former officers of the Company (collectively, the "Defendants") in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Alabama, in connection with Uniti Fiber's purchase of Southern Light, LLC from SLF in July 2017. The complaint asserted claims for fraud and conspiracy, as well as claims under federal and Alabama securities laws, alleging that Defendants improperly failed to disclose to SLF

Uniti Group Inc. Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements – Continued (unaudited)

the risk that the Spin-Off and entry into the Master Lease violated certain debt covenants of Windstream. On September 26, 2019, the action was transferred to United States District Court for the District of Delaware. On November 18, 2019, SLF filed an amended complaint, adding allegations that Defendants also failed to fully disclose the risk that the Master Lease purportedly could be recharacterized as a financing instead of "true lease." The amended complaint seeks compensatory and punitive damages, as well as reformation of the purchase agreement for the sale. On December 18, 2019, Defendants moved to dismiss the amended complaint in its entirety. That motion was fully briefed as of February 7, 2020, and a hearing on the motion was heard on May 12, 2020, but no decision has been issued. We intend to defend this matter vigorously, and, because it is still in its preliminary stages, we have not yet determined what effect this lawsuit will have, if any, on our financial position or results of operations. As of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, we are unable to estimate a reasonably possible range of loss and therefore have not recorded any liabilities associated with these claims in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Ibrahim E. Safadi, Phil Queder and Michael Avery filed separate putative class actions in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Arkansas against the Company and certain of our officers on October 25, 2019, December 6, 2019, and December 23, 2019, respectively, alleging violations of the federal securities laws (the "Shareholder Actions"). The Shareholder Actions seek to represent investors who acquired the Company's securities between April 20, 2015 and February 15, 2019 (in the case of the Safadi and Queder actions) and April 20, 2015 and June 24, 2019 (in the case of the Avery action). The Shareholder Actions assert violations under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder, alleging that the Company made materially false and misleading statements by allegedly failing to disclose that the Spin-Off and entry into the Master Lease violated certain debt covenants of Windstream. The Shareholder Actions seek class certification, unspecified monetary damages, costs and attorneys' fees and other relief.

On March 12, 2020, the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Arkansas consolidated the Shareholder Actions and appointed lead plaintiffs and lead counsel in the consolidated cases under the caption *In re Uniti Group Inc. Securities Litigation*. On May 11, 2020, lead plaintiffs filed a consolidated amended complaint in the consolidated action, asserting similar claims as in the Shareholder Actions. On July 10, 2020, defendants moved to dismiss the consolidated amended complaint. Briefing on that motion is expected to be complete by October 23, 2020. We intend to defend this matter vigorously, and, because it is still in its preliminary stages, we have not yet determined what effect this lawsuit will have, if any, on our financial position or results of operations. As of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, we are unable to estimate a reasonably possible range of loss and therefore have not recorded any liabilities associated with these claims in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Under the terms of the tax matters agreement entered into on April 24, 2015 by the Company, Windstream Services, LLC and Windstream (the "Tax Matters Agreement"), in connection with the Spin-Off, we are generally responsible for any taxes imposed on Windstream that arise from the failure of the Spin-Off and the debt exchanges to qualify as tax-free for U.S. federal income tax purposes, within the meaning of Section 355 and Section 368(a)(1)(D) of the Code, as applicable, to the extent such failure to qualify is attributable to certain actions, events or transactions relating to our stock, indebtedness, assets or business, or a breach of the relevant representations or any covenants made by us in the Tax Matters Agreement, the materials submitted to the IRS in connection with the request for the private letter ruling or the representations provided in connection with the tax opinion. We believe that the probability of us incurring obligations under the Tax Matters Agreement are remote; and therefore, we have recorded no such liabilities in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2020.

Note 16. Accumulated Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income

Changes in accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income by component is as follows for the three months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019:

Uniti Group Inc. Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements – Continued (unaudited)

| | Three Months | Ended June 30, | Six Months E | Six Months Ended June 30, | | | |
|--|--------------|----------------|--------------|---------------------------|--|--|--|
| (Thousands) | 2020 | 2019 | 2020 | 2019 | | | |
| Cash flow hedge changes in fair value (loss) gain: | | | | | | | |
| Balance at beginning of period attributable to common shareholders | \$ (30,353) | \$ 8,835 | \$ (23,442) | \$ 30,042 | | | |
| Other comprehensive loss before reclassifications | - | (26,457) | (7,713) | (46,083) | | | |
| Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive | | | | | | | |
| income | | (1,906) | 677 | (3,966) | | | |
| Balance at end of period | (30,353) | (19,528) | (30,478) | (20,007) | | | |
| Less: Other comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrolling | | | | | | | |
| interest | | (568) | (125) | (1,047) | | | |
| Balance at end of period attributable to common shareholders | (30,353) | (18,960) | (30,353) | (18,960) | | | |
| Interest rate swap termination: | | | | | | | |
| Balance at beginning of period attributable to common shareholders | 1,636 | - | - | - | | | |
| Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive | | | | | | | |
| income | 2,830 | | 4,496 | | | | |
| Balance at end of period | 4,466 | - | 4,496 | - | | | |
| Less: Other comprehensive (loss) income attributable to | | | | | | | |
| noncontrolling interest | 50 | | 80 | | | | |
| Balance at end of period attributable to common shareholders | 4,416 | - | 4,416 | - | | | |
| Foreign currency translation gain (loss): | | | | | | | |
| Balance at beginning of period attributable to common shareholders | - | 826 | - | 63 | | | |
| Translation adjustments | - | (780) | - | - | | | |
| Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive | | | | | | | |
| income | | (63) | | (63) | | | |
| Balance at end of period | - | (17) | - | - | | | |
| Less: Other comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling | | | | | | | |
| interest | | (17) | | | | | |
| Balance at end of period attributable to common shareholders | | | | - | | | |
| Accumulated other comprehensive loss at end of period | \$ (25,937) | \$ (18,960) | \$ (25,937) | \$ (18,960) | | | |

Note 17. Subsequent Events

On July 1, 2020, the Company completed the sale of the Propco to MIP (see Note 7).

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following management's discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations describes the principal factors affecting the results of our operations, financial condition, and changes in financial condition for the three and six months ended June 30, 2020. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, and the notes thereto set forth in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") on March 12, 2020.

Overview

Company Description

Uniti Group Inc. (the "Company", "Uniti", "we", "us" or "our") is an independent, internally managed real estate investment trust ("REIT") engaged in the acquisition and construction of mission critical infrastructure in the communications industry. We are principally focused on acquiring and constructing fiber optic broadband networks, wireless communications towers, copper and coaxial broadband networks and data centers.

On April 24, 2015, we were separated and spun-off (the "Spin-Off") from Windstream Holdings, Inc. ("Windstream Holdings" and together with its subsidiaries, "Windstream") pursuant to which Windstream contributed certain telecommunications network assets, including fiber and copper networks and other real estate (the "Distribution Systems") and a small consumer competitive local exchange carrier ("CLEC") business (the "Consumer CLEC Business") to Uniti and Uniti issued common stock and indebtedness and paid cash obtained from borrowings under Uniti's senior credit facilities to Windstream. In connection with the Spin-Off, we entered into a long-term exclusive triple-net lease (the "Master Lease") with Windstream, pursuant to which a substantial portion of our real property is leased to Windstream and from which a substantial portion of our leasing revenues are currently derived.

Uniti operates as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes. As a REIT, the Company is generally not subject to U.S. federal income taxes on income generated by its REIT operations, which includes income derived from the Master Lease. We have elected to treat the subsidiaries through which we operate our fiber business, Uniti Fiber, certain aspects of our towers business, and Talk America Services, LLC, which operates the Consumer CLEC Business ("Talk America"), as taxable REIT subsidiaries ("TRSs"). TRSs enable us to engage in activities that result in income that does not constitute qualifying income for a REIT. Our TRSs are subject to U.S. federal, state and local corporate income taxes.

The Company operates through a customary up-REIT structure, pursuant to which we hold substantially all of our assets through a partnership, Uniti Group LP, a Delaware limited partnership (the "Operating Partnership"), that we control as general partner. This structure is intended to facilitate future acquisition opportunities by providing the Company with the ability to use common units of the Operating Partnership as a tax-efficient acquisition currency. As of June 30, 2020, we are the sole general partner of the Operating Partnership and own approximately 98.2% of the partnership interests in the Operating Partnership. In addition, beginning on December 31, 2019, we undertook a series of transactions, including the issuance by one of our subsidiaries of convertible preferred stock to third parties with an aggregate liquidation value of \$125,000, to permit us to hold certain of our assets indirectly through one of our subsidiaries taxed as a REIT, which will also facilitate future acquisition opportunities.

Outlook

We aim to grow and diversify our portfolio and tenant base by pursuing a range of transaction structures with communication service providers, including (i) sale leaseback transactions, whereby we acquire existing infrastructure assets from third parties, including communication service providers, and lease them back on a long-term triple-net basis; (ii) whole company acquisitions, which may include the use of one or more TRSs that are permitted under the tax laws to acquire and operate non-REIT businesses and assets subject to certain limitations; (iii) capital investment financing, whereby we offer communication service providers a cost efficient method of raising funds for discrete capital investments to upgrade or expand their network; and (iv) mergers and acquisitions financing, whereby we facilitate mergers and acquisition transactions as a capital partner, including through operating company/property company ("OpCo-PropCo") structures.

Segments

We manage our operations as four reportable business segments in addition to our corporate operations:

Leasing Segment: Represents the results from our leasing business, Uniti Leasing, which is engaged in the acquisition of mission-critical communications assets and leasing them to anchor customers on either an exclusive or shared-tenant basis. Uniti Leasing is a component of our REIT operations.

<u>Fiber Infrastructure Segment</u>: Represents the operations of our fiber business, Uniti Fiber, which is a leading provider of infrastructure solutions, including cell site backhaul and dark fiber, to the telecommunications industry.

<u>Towers Segment</u>: Represents the operations of our towers business, Uniti Towers, through which we acquire and construct tower and tower-related real estate and lease space on communications towers to wireless service providers and other tenants in the United States. On April 2, 2019, the Company completed the sale of the Latin American business and no longer has on-going operations in Latin America. On May 23, 2019, the Company completed the sale of substantially all of its ground lease business located across the United States. Portions of our towers business are a component of our REIT operations, while the remainder is owned and operated by our TRSs. Refer to "Significant Business Developments" below regarding the completed sale of our U.S. tower business.

<u>Consumer CLEC Segment</u>: Represents the operations of Talk America through which we operate the Consumer CLEC Business that, prior to the Spin-Off, was reported as an integrated operation within Windstream. Talk America provides local telephone, high-speed internet and long-distance services to customers in the eastern and central United States. We have commenced a wind down of our Consumer CLEC business, which we have substantially completed as of the end of the second quarter.

<u>Corporate Operations</u>: Represents our corporate office and shared service functions. Certain costs and expenses, primarily related to headcount, information technology systems, insurance, professional fees and similar charges, that are directly attributable to operations of our business segments are allocated to the respective segments.

We evaluate the performance of each segment based on Adjusted EBITDA, which is a segment performance measure we define as net income determined in accordance with GAAP, before interest expense, provision for income taxes, depreciation and amortization, stock-based compensation expense, the impact, which may be recurring in nature, of transaction and integration related expenses, the write off of unamortized deferred financing costs, costs incurred as a result of the early repayment of debt, changes in the fair value of contingent consideration and financial instruments, and other similar items. For more information on Adjusted EBITDA, see "Non-GAAP Financial Measures." Detailed information about our segments can be found in Note 14 to our accompanying Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Significant Business Developments

<u>COVID-19 Pandemic</u>. The COVID-19 pandemic has negatively impacted the global economy, disrupted global supply chains and created significant volatility and disruption of financial markets. We continue to monitor developments associated with the COVID-19 pandemic and its related impact on our business and results of operations.

On March 19, 2020, the Department of Homeland Security's Cybersecurity and Infrastructure Security Agency ("CISA") issued its *Memorandum on Identification of Essential Critical Infrastructure Workers During COVID-19 Response* (the "Memorandum"). The Memorandum categorizes the communications and information technology sectors, sectors in which Uniti operates, as part of 16 critical infrastructure sectors that must remain operational during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Our first priority remains the health and safety of our employees, customers and other business partners. We have been actively monitoring and following government recommendations as we adjust business practices and standard operating procedures to ensure the protection of team members and ensure the continuity of our business. As of the date of this Quarterly Report, we have not experienced significant disruptions in our operations or network performance, nor have we received significant requests for payment relief from our customers. However, there can be no assurance that circumstances will not change in light of the COVID-19 pandemic or that the pandemic will not have a material adverse impact on our business. We may incur increases in operating costs and/or a decrease in productivity as a result of travel bans and social distancing efforts. Such efforts may also delay construction activities and/or require our vendors and contractors to incur additional costs that may be passed onto us. In addition, we may experience delays in permitting activities due to the shutdown of local permitting authorities. Furthermore, if there is a prolonged closure of businesses, we may experience an adverse impact on the timing of installations in our enterprise and wholesale customer segments at Uniti Fiber, or we may receive requests for payment relief from our customers, both of which would impact our ability to recognize revenue.

On March 27, 2020, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (the "CARES Act") was signed into law. The CARES Act is a stimulus bill that includes lending facilities to large and small business, expands unemployment benefits and implements individual and business tax changes. We expect the CARES Act will reduce the limitation on deduction of business interest at certain

of our taxable subsidiaries for 2019 and 2020, which will increase net operating loss. Otherwise, we do not currently expect the CARES Act to have a material impact on our tax position. In addition, certain of our customers may benefit from the relief provided by the CARES Act, and we have directed those customers to consider utilizing such relief as they weather the impact from COVID-19.

<u>Windstream Bankruptcy Filing.</u> Prior to its bankruptcy filing described below, Windstream was involved in litigation with an entity who acquired certain Windstream debt securities and thereafter issued a notice of default as to such securities relating to the Spin-Off. Windstream challenged the matter in federal court and a trial was held in July 2018. On February 15, 2019, the federal court judge issued a ruling against Windstream, finding that its attempts to waive such default were not valid; that an "event of default" occurred with respect to such debt securities; and that the holder's acceleration of such debt in December 2017 was effective. In response to the adverse outcome, on February 25, 2019, Windstream filed a voluntary petition for relief under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code in the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York (the "Bankruptcy Court") and is currently operating as a "debtor in possession" under supervision of the Bankruptcy Court.

<u>Windstream Litigation and Settlement.</u> During the first half of 2019, Windstream's chief executive officer stated that Windstream was evaluating all options as part of the Chapter 11 reorganization process regarding the Master Lease, including renegotiation, recharacterization and rejection of the Master Lease. As further described below, on July 25, 2019, in connection with Windstream's bankruptcy, Windstream Holdings and Windstream Services filed a complaint with the Bankruptcy Court in an adversary proceeding against Uniti and certain of its affiliates, alleging, among other things, that the Master Lease should be recharacterized as a financing arrangement, that certain rent payments and tenant capital improvements made by Windstream under the Master Lease constitute constructive fraudulent transfers, that the Master Lease is a lease of personal property and that Uniti breached certain of its obligations under the Master Lease.

On March 2, 2020, Uniti and Windstream jointly announced that they had reached an agreement in principle (the "Settlement") to resolve any and all claims and causes of action that have been or may be asserted against Uniti by Windstream, including all litigation brought by Windstream and certain of its creditors in the context of Windstream's bankruptcy, and on May 12, 2020, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order approving Windstream's assumption of the Master Lease as part of the Settlement. On May 12, 2020, Uniti and Windstream entered into the settlement agreement to implement the Settlement. As a result, we have recorded a \$650.0 million charge during the quarter ended June 30, 2020, which represents the estimated fair value of the litigation component of the Settlement; however, this estimate is subject to change in future periods if new facts or circumstances arise that are unknown at this time. On June 26, 2020, the Bankruptcy Court approved Windstream's plan of reorganization. Consummation of the plan of reorganization is subject to certain conditions precedent, including consummation of the Settlement and receipt of certain regulatory approvals.

The Settlement is subject to finalizing and executing definitive documentation and the receipt of certain regulatory approvals. Following satisfaction of all such conditions precedent, consummation of the Settlement will occur on the earlier of Windstream's emergence from bankruptcy and February 28, 2021. All litigation between Windstream and Uniti is stayed while the parties implement the Settlement. We believe that we are likely to effectuate the Settlement. However, if we are unable to consummate the Settlement, Windstream could continue its litigation. If that occurs, it is difficult to predict what could occur in Windstream's bankruptcy restructuring. However, any adverse determination or judicial decision on one or more of the claims against us could materially adversely affect our consolidated results of operations, liquidity, and financial condition or, in certain circumstances, cause us to file for voluntary Chapter 11 protection. See note 15 to our accompanying Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for additional information concerning the Windstream litigation and Settlement.

<u>Sale of Midwest Fiber Network.</u> In June 2020, the Company entered into a definitive agreement to sell an ownership stake in the entity that controls the Company's Midwest fiber network assets ("Propco") to Macquarie Infrastructure Partners ("MIP") for total cash consideration of approximately \$168 million. Uniti will retain an investment in the Propco through an affiliate of MIP and is eligible to receive an additional earnout payment in 2023 of up to approximately \$20.0 million upon the achievement of certain operational milestones. On July 1, 2020, the Company completed the sale of the Propco to MIP.

<u>At-the-Market Common Stock Offering Program.</u> On June 22, 2020, we established an at-the-market common stock offering program (the "ATM Program") to sell shares of our common stock, par value \$0.0001 per share, having an aggregate offering price of up to \$250 million. This program is intended to provide additional financial flexibility and an alternative mechanism to access the capital markets at an efficient cost as and when we need financing, including for acquisitions. This offering supersedes and replaces the \$250 million program we commenced on September 2, 2016, which had approximately \$117.1 million available for issuance under such program.

<u>Sale of U.S. Tower Business.</u> On June 1, 2020, the Company completed the sale of its U.S. tower business to Melody Investment Advisors LP ("Melody") for total cash consideration of \$225.8 million. The Company retained a 10% investment interest in the tower business, having a fair value of \$26.0 million, through a newly formed limited partnership with Melody, and will receive incremental earn-out payments for each additional tower completed in 2020. During the second quarter, we recorded a gain of \$63.7 million related to this transaction.

Consumer CLEC Business. On April 23, 2019, Windstream provided notice to Uniti of its termination of (i) the Wholesale Master Services Agreement between Windstream Communications, Inc. and Talk America, (ii) the Master Services Agreement between Windstream Services, LLC and Talk America, and (iii) the Billing and Remittance Agreement between Windstream Services, LLC and CSL National, LP, each dated April 24, 2015 (collectively the "Agreements"). Under the Agreements, Windstream provides us transport, provisioning, repair and billing and collection services necessary to operate our Consumer CLEC Business. We currently do not have the infrastructure necessary to perform these services in the absence of the Agreements. We have evaluated the costs of building out the required infrastructure and have determined that incurring such costs would not be economically feasible. Furthermore, we have evaluated potential strategic alternatives with respect to the Consumer CLEC Business, including retaining other vendors to perform the services currently provided under the Agreements, and an outright sale of all or parts of the business, but have not identified viable alternatives. As a result, we have commenced a wind down of our Consumer CLEC Business, which includes customer notifications and terminations. The termination of the Agreements is effective April 20, 2020; however, we have entered into a short-term arrangement with Windstream to provide the necessary services until the business is completely wound down. As of the end of the second quarter, we have substantially completed the wind down. The subsidiaries comprising our Consumer CLEC Business are direct subsidiaries of Uniti Group Inc. and are not subsidiaries of the Operating Partnership, which is a primary obligor and/or guarantor under our Credit Agreement and our outstanding notes, and do not guarantee such debt. Other than the assets and liabilities and results related to the Consumer CLEC Business, which are immaterial, the financial condition and results of

Comparison of the three months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, our results of operations expressed as dollars and as a percentage of total revenues:

| | | Three Months | Ended J | une 30, | |
|--|-----------------|---------------|---------|----------|---------------|
| | 2020 | 0 | | 201 | 9 |
| (Thousands) | Amount | % of Revenues | | Amount | % of Revenues |
| Revenues: | | | | | |
| Leasing | \$ 185,320 | 69.4% | \$ | 177,042 | 66.9% |
| Fiber Infrastructure | 79,140 | 29.7% | | 81,327 | 30.8% |
| Tower | 2,392 | 0.9% | | 3,146 | 1.2% |
| Consumer CLEC | (32) | 0.0% | | 2,899 | 1.1% |
| Total revenues | 266,820 | 100.0% | | 264,414 | 100.0% |
| Costs and Expenses: | | | | | |
| Interest expense | 107,243 | 40.1% | | 97,729 | 37.0% |
| Depreciation and amortization | 84,969 | 31.7% | | 102,578 | 38.7% |
| General and administrative expense | 27,894 | 10.5% | | 26,428 | 10.0% |
| Operating expense | 40,167 | 15.1% | | 40,163 | 15.2% |
| Settlement expense | 650,000 | 243.6% | | - | 0.0% |
| Transaction related and other costs | 18,556 | 7.0% | | 7,035 | 2.7% |
| Gain on sale of real estate | (63,818) | (23.9%) | | (28,790) | (10.9%) |
| Other expense (income) | 6,013 | 2.3% | | (28,119) | (10.6%) |
| Total costs and expenses | 871,024 | 326.4% | | 217,024 | 82.1% |
| (Loss) income before income taxes | (604,204) | (226.4%) | | 47,390 | 17.9% |
| Income tax (benefit) expense | (5,875) | (2.2%) | | 7,843 | 3.0% |
| Net (loss) income | (598,329) | (224.2%) | | 39,547 | 14.9% |
| Net (loss) income attributable to noncontrolling interests | (10,585) | (3.9%) | | 830 | 0.3% |
| Net (loss) income attributable to shareholders | (587,744) | (220.3%) | | 38,717 | 14.6% |
| Participating securities' share in earnings | (424) | (0.1%) | | (223) | 0.0% |
| Dividends declared on convertible preferred stock | (1) | (0.0%) | | - | 0.0% |
| Amortization of discount on convertible preferred stock | - | 0.0% | | (248) | (0.1%) |
| Net (loss) income attributable to common shareholders | \$ (588,169) | (220.4%) | \$ | 38,246 | 14.5% |

The following tables set forth, for the three months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, revenues, Adjusted EBITDA and net (loss) income of our reportable segments:

| | | | Th | ree N | Ionths Ended | l June | 30, 2020 | | |
|-------------------------------|---------------|------|-------------------|-------|--------------|--------|------------|---------------|---------------------------------------|
| (Thousands) | Leasing | Fibe | er Infrastructure | | Towers | Cons | sumer CLEC | Corporate | Subtotal of Reportable Segments |
| Revenues | \$ 185,320 | \$ | 79,140 | \$ | 2,392 | \$ | (32) | \$ - | \$ 266,820 |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| Adjusted EBITDA | \$ 182,810 | \$ | 28,493 | \$ | 85 | \$ | (292) | \$ (8,227) | \$ 202,869 |
| Less: | | | | | | | | | |
| Interest expense | | | | | | | | | 107,243 |
| Depreciation and | 52,405 | | 32,279 | | 14 | | 197 | 74 | 84,969 |
| amortization | 32,403 | | 32,273 | | 14 | | 157 | , - | 04,505 |
| Other expense, net | | | | | | | | | 6,013 |
| Settlement expense | | | | | | | | | 650,000 |
| Transaction related and other | | | | | | | | | 18,556 |
| costs | | | | | | | | | 10,550 |
| Gain on sale of real estate | | | | | | | | | (63,818) |
| Stock-based compensation | | | | | | | | | 4,110 |
| Income tax benefit | | | | | | | | | (5,875) |
| Net loss | | | | | | | | | \$ (598,329) |

Three Months Ended June 30, 2019

| (Thousands) | Leasing | Fibe | r Infrastructure | Towers | Co | onsumer CLEC | Corporate | Subtotal of Reportable Segments |
|-------------------------------|---------------|------|------------------|-------------|----|--------------|---------------|---------------------------------------|
| Revenues | \$ 177,042 | \$ | 81,327 | \$ 3,146 | | 2,899 | \$ - | \$ 264,414 |
| | | | | | | | | |
| Adjusted EBITDA | \$ 175,881 | \$ | 37,036 | \$ (42) | \$ | 565 | \$ (6,576) | \$ 206,864 |
| Less: | | | | | | | | |
| Interest expense | | | | | | | | 97,729 |
| Depreciation and | 72,275 | | 28,494 | 1,412 | | 346 | 51 | 102,578 |
| amortization | , 2,2,3 | | 20,434 | 1,412 | | 540 | 51 | 102,570 |
| Other income, net | | | | | | | | (22,275) |
| Transaction related and other | | | | | | | | 7,035 |
| costs | | | | | | | | 7,033 |
| Gain on sale of real estate | | | | | | | | (28,790) |
| Stock-based compensation | | | | | | | | 3,197 |
| Income tax expense | | | | | | | | 7,843 |
| Net income | | | | | | | | \$ 39,547 |

Summary of Operating Metrics

| | (| Operating Metrics | | | | | | |
|-----------------------|-----------|-------------------|--------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| | | As of June 30, | | | | | | |
| | | | % Increase / | | | | | |
| | 2020 | 2019 | (Decrease) | | | | | |
| Operating metrics: | | | | | | | | |
| Leasing: | | | | | | | | |
| Fiber strand miles | 4,400,000 | 3,700,000 | 18.9% | | | | | |
| Copper strand miles | 230,000 | 235,000 | (2.1%) | | | | | |
| Fiber Infrastructure: | | | | | | | | |
| Fiber strand miles | 2,130,000 | 1,870,000 | 13.9% | | | | | |
| Customer connections | 24,288 | 19,707 | 23.2% | | | | | |
| Towers: | | | | | | | | |
| United States towers | - | 573 | (100.0%) | | | | | |
| Consumer CLEC: | | | | | | | | |
| Customer connections | - | 20,300 | (100.0%) | | | | | |

Revenues

| | Three Months Ended June 30, | | | | | | | |
|----------------------|-----------------------------|---|--------|----|---------|----------------------------------|--|--|
| | | 2020 | | | 20: |)19 | | |
| (Thousands) | | % of Consolidated Amount Revenues | | | Amount | % of Consolidated Revenues | | |
| Revenues: | | | | | | | | |
| Leasing | \$ | 185,320 | 69.4% | \$ | 177,042 | 66.9% | | |
| Fiber Infrastructure | | 79,140 | 29.7% | | 81,327 | 30.8% | | |
| Towers | | 2,392 | 0.9% | | 3,146 | 1.2% | | |
| Consumer CLEC | | (32) | 0.0% | | 2,899 | 1.1% | | |
| Total revenues | | 266,820 | 100.0% | | 264,414 | 100.0% | | |

<u>Leasing</u> – Leasing revenues are primarily attributable to rental revenue from leasing our Distribution Systems to Windstream Holdings pursuant to the Master Lease. Under the Master Lease, Windstream Holdings is responsible for the costs related to operating the Distribution Systems, including property taxes, insurance, and maintenance and repair costs. As a result, we do not record an

obligation related to the payment of property taxes, as Windstream makes direct payments to the taxing authorities. The Master Lease has an initial term of 15 years with four 5-year renewal options and encompasses properties located in 29 states. Annual cash rent under the Master Lease is currently \$657 million and is subject to an annual escalation of 0.5% each May through the initial term. The rent for the first year of each renewal term will be an amount agreed to by us and Windstream. While the agreement requires that the renewal rent be "Fair Market Rent," Windstream has publicly stated that it believes the renewal Fair Market Rent pursuant to the agreement will be much lower than our expectations; if we are unable to agree, the renewal Fair Market Rent will be determined by an independent appraisal process. Commencing with the second year of each renewal term, the renewal rent will increase at an escalation rate of 0.5%. In addition, if we fund any capital improvements requested by Windstream, the rent will be increased to account for such funding. Due to the uncertainties surrounding Windstream's operations and liquidity and current bankruptcy proceedings, the Master Lease is currently accounted for on a cash basis in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification 842, Leases, until such time that there is more certainty regarding Windstream's decision to assume or reject the Master Lease.

The Master Lease provides that tenant funded capital improvements ("TCIs"), defined as maintenance, repair, overbuild, upgrade or replacement to the Distribution Systems, including without limitation, the replacement of copper distribution systems with fiber distribution systems, automatically become property of Uniti upon their construction by Windstream. We receive non-monetary consideration related to TCIs as they automatically become our property, and we recognize the cost basis of TCIs that are capital in nature as real estate investments and deferred revenue. We depreciate the real estate investments over their estimated useful lives and amortize the deferred revenue as additional leasing revenues over the same depreciable life of the TCI assets.

| | Three Months Ended June 30, | | | | | | | |
|---|------------------------------|-------|--------|----|--------|--------------------------|--|--|
| | | 202 | 0 | | .9 | | | |
| (Thousands) | % of Segment Amount Revenues | | | A | Amount | % of Segment Revenues | | |
| Leasing revenues: | | | | | | | | |
| Windstream Master Lease | | | | | | | | |
| TCI revenue | \$ | 8.7 | 4.7% | \$ | 7.0 | 4.0% | | |
| Rent | | 165.6 | 89.4% | | 164.7 | 93.1% | | |
| Total | | 174.3 | 94.1% | | 171.7 | 97.0% | | |
| Other triple-net leasing and IRU arrangements | | 11.0 | 5.9% | | 5.3 | 3.0% | | |
| Total Leasing revenues | \$ | 185.3 | 100.0% | \$ | 177.0 | 100% | | |

The increase in TCI revenue is attributable to continued investment by Windstream in TCIs. Windstream invested \$50.6 million in TCIs during the three months ended June 30, 2020, bringing the total amount invested by Windstream since the inception of the Master Lease to \$858.8 million as of June 30, 2020. As of June 30, 2019, Windstream had invested a total of \$688.3 million in such improvements. For the three months ended June 30, 2020, we recognized \$11.0 million of leasing revenues from non-Windstream triple-net leasing and dark fiber indefeasible rights of use ("IRU") arrangements, including \$5.5 million of revenue related to the Bluebird transaction that closed on August 30, 2019. For the three months ended June 30, 2019, we recognized \$5.3 million from non-Windstream triple-net leasing and dark fiber IRU arrangements. The increase in non-Windstream related revenues is due to the timing of closing sale-leaseback transactions.

Because a substantial portion of our revenue and cash flows are derived from lease payments by Windstream pursuant to the Master Lease, there could be a material adverse impact on our consolidated results of operations, liquidity, financial condition and/or ability to maintain our status as a REIT and service debt if Windstream were to reject the Master Lease in bankruptcy, default under the Master Lease, succeed in its claims against us or otherwise experience operating or liquidity difficulties and become unable to generate sufficient cash to make payments to us. In recent years, Windstream has experienced annual declines in its total revenue, sales and cash flow, has had its credit ratings downgraded by nationally recognized credit rating agencies multiple times over the past 12 months and, on February 25, 2019, filed voluntary petitions for relief under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code in the Bankruptcy Court. On June 26, 2020, the Bankruptcy Court approved Windstream's plan of reorganization. Consummation of the plan of reorganization is subject to certain conditions precedent, including consummation of our Settlement with Windstream and receipt of certain regulatory approvals.

Windstream's stock is quoted on the OTC Markets under the ticker symbol "WINMQ." Windstream is subject to the periodic filing requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Windstream filings can be found at www.sec.gov. Windstream filings are not incorporated by reference in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Fiber Infrastructure – Fiber Infrastructure revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 consisted of the following:

| | | I nree Months Ended June 30, | | | | | | | |
|-------------------------------------|----|------------------------------|--------------------------|--------|--------|--------------------------|--|--|--|
| | | 202 | 20 | | 2019 | | | | |
| (Thousands) | | Amount | % of Segment Revenues | Amount | | % of Segment Revenues | | | |
| Fiber Infrastructure revenues: | | | | · · | | | | | |
| Lit backhaul services | \$ | 27,216 | 34.3% | \$ | 33,401 | 41.1% | | | |
| Enterprise and wholesale | | 19,628 | 24.8% | | 19,241 | 23.7% | | | |
| E-Rate and government | | 21,821 | 27.6% | | 22,533 | 27.7% | | | |
| Dark fiber and small cells | | 9,720 | 12.3% | | 5,478 | 6.7% | | | |
| Other services | | <i>7</i> 55 | 1.0% | | 674 | 0.8% | | | |
| Total Fiber Infrastructure revenues | \$ | 79,140 | 100.0% | \$ | 81,327 | 100.0% | | | |

Three Months Ended June 20

For the three months ended June 30, 2020, Fiber Infrastructure revenues totaled \$79.1 million as compared to \$81.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2019. The decrease is primarily attributable to a \$2.3 million decrease in non-recurring core and non-recurring equipment sales revenue. At June 30, 2020 we had approximately 24,288 customer connections, up from 19,707 customer connections at June 30, 2019.

<u>Towers</u> – For the three months ended June 30, 2020, we recognized \$2.4 million of revenue from the Towers business, compared to \$3.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2019. The decrease in revenue is due to the completed sale of our U.S. tower business on June 1, 2020.

<u>Consumer CLEC</u> – For the three months ended June 30, 2020, we recognized revenue credits of \$0.03 million from the Consumer CLEC business, compared to \$2.9 million of revenue for the three months ended June 30, 2019. The decrease is attributable to the substantially completed wind down of the business during the quarter, which included credits to disconnected customers.

Interest Expense, net

| | | Thre | ie 30, | | | |
|--|------|---------|--------|---------|--------------------------|----------|
| (Thousands) | 2020 | | | 2019 | Increase / (Decrease) | |
| Interest expense, net: | | | | | | |
| Cash: | | | | | | |
| Senior secured term loan B - variable rate (1) | \$ | 2,830 | \$ | 37,229 | \$ | (34,399) |
| Senior secured notes - 6.00% and 7.875% | | 53,430 | | 8,250 | | 45,180 |
| Senior unsecured notes - 4.00%, 7.125%, and 8.25% | | 37,030 | | 33,581 | | 3,449 |
| Senior secured revolving credit facility - variable rate | | 4,532 | | 8,491 | | (3,959) |
| Other | | 1,109 | | 620 | | 489 |
| Total cash interest | | 98,931 | | 88,171 | | 10,760 |
| Non-cash: | | | | | | |
| Amortization of deferred financing costs and debt discount | | 8,958 | | 10,786 | | (1,828) |
| Capitalized Interest | | (646) | | (1,228) | | 582 |
| Total non-cash interest | | 8,312 | | 9,558 | | (1,246) |
| Total interest expense, net | \$ | 107,243 | \$ | 97,729 | \$ | 9,514 |

⁽¹⁾ Swapped to fixed rate. See Note 10

Interest expense for the three months ended June 30, 2020 increased \$9.5 million compared to the three months ended June 30, 2019. The increase is due to a cash interest expense of \$44.3 million related to the 7.875% senior secured notes partially offset by a decrease of \$34.4 million in cash interest expense related to the repayment of senior secured term loan B.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

| | Three Months Ended June 30, | | | | | | | |
|---|-----------------------------|--------|----------------------|--------|---------|----------------------|--|--|
| | | 20 | 20 | | 20 | 19 | | |
| | | | % of Consolidated | | | % of Consolidated | | |
| (Thousands) | A | mount | Revenues | Amount | | Revenues | | |
| Depreciation and amortization expense by segment: | | | | | | | | |
| Leasing | \$ | 52,405 | 19.6% | \$ | 72,275 | 27.4% | | |
| Fiber Infrastructure | | 32,279 | 12.1% | | 28,494 | 10.8% | | |
| Towers | | 14 | 0.0% | | 1,412 | 0.5% | | |
| Consumer CLEC | | 197 | 0.1% | | 346 | 0.1% | | |
| Corporate | | 74 | 0.0% | | 51 | 0.0% | | |
| Total depreciation and amortization expense | \$ | 84,969 | 31.8% | \$ | 102,578 | 38.8% | | |

We incur depreciation and amortization expense related to our property, plant and equipment, corporate assets and intangible assets. Charges for depreciation and amortization for the three months ended June 30, 2020 totaled \$85.0 million, which included \$77.2 million of depreciation expense and \$7.8 million of amortization expense. Charges for depreciation and amortization for the three months ended June 30, 2019 totaled \$102.6 million, which included \$96.5 million of depreciation expense and \$6.1 million of amortization expense.

General and Administrative Expense

| | Three Months Ended June 30, | | | | | | | |
|--|-----------------------------|--------|----------------------------------|--------|--------|----------------------------------|--|--|
| | | 20 | 20 |) 2 | | | | |
| (Thousands) | A | Amount | % of Consolidated Revenues | Amount | | % of Consolidated Revenues | | |
| General and administrative expense by segment: | | | | | | | | |
| Leasing | \$ | 1,774 | 0.7% | \$ | 886 | 0.3% | | |
| Fiber Infrastructure | | 13,731 | 5.2% | | 15,257 | 5.8% | | |
| Towers | | 995 | 0.4% | | 1,656 | 0.6% | | |
| Consumer CLEC | | 88 | 0.0% | | - | 0.0% | | |
| Corporate | | 11,306 | 4.2% | | 8,629 | 3.3% | | |
| Total general and administrative expenses | \$ | 27,894 | 10.5% | \$ | 26,428 | 10.0% | | |

General and administrative expenses include compensation costs, including stock-based compensation awards, professional and legal services, corporate office costs and other costs associated with administrative activities. For the three months ended June 30, 2020, general and administrative costs totaled \$27.9 million, which includes \$4.1 million of stock-based compensation. For the three months ended June 30, 2019, general and administrative costs totaled \$26.4 million, which included \$3.2 million of stock-based compensation expense.

Operating Expense

Operating expense for the three months ended June 30, 2020 remained essentially flat from the three months ended June 30, 2019, which was primarily attributable to an increase in Fiber Infrastructure operating expenses discussed below offset by a decrease in Consumer CLEC business operating expenses discussed below. Operating expense for our reportable segments for the three months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 consisted of the following:

| | Three Months Ended June 30, | | | | | | | | |
|--------------------------------|---------------------------------|----------------------------------|----|--------|-------------------------------|--|--|--|--|
| | 2020 | | | 2 | 019 | | | | |
| (Thousands) | Amount | % of Consolidated Revenues | | Amount | % of Consolidated Revenues | | | | |
| Operating expenses by segment: | | | | | | | | | |
| Fiber Infrastructure | \$ 37,697 | 14.2% | \$ | 35,518 | 13.4% | | | | |
| Towers | 1,430 | 0.5% | | 1,887 | 0.7% | | | | |
| CLEC | 172 | 0.1% | | 2,334 | 0.9% | | | | |
| Leasing | 868 | 0.3% | | 424 | 0.2% | | | | |
| Total operating expenses | \$ 40,167 | 15.1% | \$ | 40,163 | 15.2% | | | | |

<u>Fiber Infrastructure</u> – For the three months ended June 30, 2020, Fiber Infrastructure operating expenses totaled \$37.7 million as compared to \$35.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2019. Operating expense consists of network related costs, such as dark fiber and tower rents, and lit service and maintenance expense. In addition, costs associated with our construction activities are presented within operating expenses.

<u>Towers</u> – Towers operating expense was \$1.4 million and \$1.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The decrease in operating expense is primarily attributable to the April 2, 2019 sale of the Latin American business and the completed sale of our U.S. tower business on June 1, 2020.

<u>Consumer CLEC</u> – The Consumer CLEC business operating expense was \$0.2 million and \$2.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The decrease is due to the substantially completed wind down of our Consumer CLEC business.

<u>Leasing</u> – Leasing operating expense was \$0.9 million and \$0.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The increase is primarily driven by a \$0.4 million increase in rent expense related to the Bluebird acquisition, completed August 30, 2019.

Transaction Related and Other Costs

Transaction related and other costs included incremental acquisition, pursuit, transaction and integration costs (including unsuccessful acquisition pursuit costs), costs incurred as a result of Windstream's bankruptcy filing, costs associated with Windstream's claims against us and costs associated with the implementation of our new enterprise resource planning system. For the three months ended June 30, 2020, we incurred \$18.6 million of transaction related and other costs, compared to \$7.0 million of such costs during the three months ended June 30, 2019. The increase is primarily related to (i) \$10.8 million of total costs related to the Windstream bankruptcy and (ii) \$3.8 million related to the sale of the U.S. towers business during the quarter.

Income Tax (Benefit) Expense

The recorded income tax (benefit) expense recorded for the three months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, is related to the tax impact of the following:

| | Three Months Ended June 30, | | | | | | | |
|--|-----------------------------|---------|----|-------|--|--|--|--|
| Thousands) | | 2020 | | 2019 | | | | |
| Income tax (benefit) expense | | | | _ | | | | |
| Pre-tax loss (Fiber Infrastructure) | \$ | (6,149) | \$ | (500) | | | | |
| Other undistributed REIT taxable income | | - | | 1,200 | | | | |
| Gain from sale of Uniti Towers' Latin American business | | - | | 4,600 | | | | |
| Uniti Towers' Latin American business unrecognized tax benefit | | - | | 2,400 | | | | |
| Other | | 274 | | 143 | | | | |
| Total income tax (benefit) expense | \$ | (5,875) | \$ | 7,843 | | | | |

Comparison of the six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, our results of operations expressed as dollars and as a percentage of total revenues:

| | • | Six Months E | nded Ji | une 30, | |
|--|-----------------|---------------|---------|----------|---------------|
| | 2020 |) | | 201 | 19 |
| (Thousands) | Amount | % of Revenues | | Amount | % of Revenues |
| Revenues: | | | | | |
| Leasing | \$ 369,672 | 69.4% | \$ | 353,125 | 67.2% |
| Fiber Infrastructure | 156,547 | 29.4% | | 158,160 | 30.1% |
| Tower | 6,112 | 1.1% | | 8,226 | 1.6% |
| Consumer CLEC | 651 | 0.1% | | 5,934 | 1.1% |
| Total revenues | 532,982 | 100.0% | | 525,445 | 100.0% |
| Costs and Expenses: | | | | | |
| Interest expense | 285,636 | 53.6% | | 182,187 | 34.7% |
| Depreciation and amortization | 171,090 | 32.1% | | 206,405 | 39.2% |
| General and administrative expense | 55,027 | 10.3% | | 50,654 | 9.6% |
| Operating expense | 80,477 | 15.1% | | 78,581 | 15.0% |
| Settlement expense | 650,000 | 122.0% | | - | 0.0% |
| Transaction related and other costs | 34,528 | 6.5% | | 13,704 | 2.6% |
| Gain on sale of real estate | (63,818) | (12.0%) | | (28,790) | (5.4%) |
| Other expense (income) | 9,088 | 1.7% | | (31,232) | (5.9%) |
| Total costs and expenses | 1,222,028 | 229.3% | | 471,509 | 89.8% |
| (Loss) income before income taxes | (689,046) | (129.3%) | | 53,936 | 10.2% |
| Income tax (benefit) expense | (10,451) | (1.9%) | | 11,897 | 2.2% |
| Net (loss) income | (678,595) | (127.3%) | | 42,039 | 8.0% |
| Net (loss) income attributable to noncontrolling interests | (11,998) | (2.3%) | | 880 | 0.2% |
| Net (loss) income attributable to shareholders | (666,597) | (125.1%) | | 41,159 | 7.8% |
| Participating securities' share in earnings | (624) | (0.1%) | | (251) | (0.0%) |
| Dividends declared on convertible preferred stock | (4) | (0.0%) | | (656) | (0.1%) |
| Amortization of discount on convertible preferred stock | - | 0.0% | | (993) | (0.2%) |
| Net (loss) income attributable to common shareholders | \$ (667,225) | (125.2%) | \$ | 39,259 | 7.5% |

The following tables set forth, for the six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, revenues, Adjusted EBITDA and net (loss) income of our reportable segments:

| | | | Si | x Mon | ths Ended Ju | ne 30, | 2020 | | | |
|-------------------------------------|---------------|-------|----------------|-------|--------------|--------|-----------|----------------|----|---------------------------------------|
| (Thousands) | Leasing | Fiber | Infrastructure | | Towers | Cons | ımer CLEC | Corporate | I | Subtotal of Reportable Segments |
| Revenues | \$ 369,672 | \$ | 156,547 | \$ | 6,112 | \$ | 651 | \$ - | \$ | 532,982 |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| Adjusted EBITDA | \$ 364,689 | \$ | 56,034 | \$ | 77 | \$ | (275) | \$ (15,942) | \$ | 404,583 |
| Less: | | | | | | | | | | |
| Interest expense | | | | | | | | | | 285,636 |
| Depreciation and amortization | 107,027 | | 62,340 | | 783 | | 791 | 149 | | 171,090 |
| Other income, net | | | | | | | | | | 9,088 |
| Settlement expense | | | | | | | | | | 650,000 |
| Transaction related and other costs | | | | | | | | | | 34,528 |
| Gain on sale of real estate | | | | | | | | | | (63,818) |
| Stock-based compensation | | | | | | | | | | 7,105 |
| Income tax benefit | | | | | | | | | | (10,451) |
| Net loss | | | | | | | | | \$ | (678,595) |

| | | | | Six | Months Ende | l Jun | e 30, 2019 | | | | |
|-------------------------------------|---------------|------|------------------|-------------------------|-------------|-----------|------------|---------------------------------------|----------|----|----------|
| (Thousands) | Leasing | Fibe | r Infrastructure | re Towers Consumer CLEC | | Corporate | | Subtotal of Reportable Segments | | | |
| Revenues | \$ 353,125 | \$ | 158,160 | \$ | 8,226 | \$ | 5,934 | \$ | - | \$ | 525,445 |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Adjusted EBITDA | \$ 350,632 | \$ | 67,036 | \$ | 283 | \$ | 1,211 | \$ | (12,023) | \$ | 407,139 |
| Less: | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Interest expense | | | | | | | | | | | 182,187 |
| Depreciation and amortization | 146,028 | | 56,752 | | 2,827 | | 692 | | 106 | | 206,405 |
| Other income, net | | | | | | | | | | | (25,388) |
| Transaction related and other costs | | | | | | | | | | | 13,704 |
| Gain on sale of real estate | | | | | | | | | | | (28,790) |
| Stock-based compensation | | | | | | | | | | | 5,085 |
| Income tax expense | | | | | | | | | | | 11,897 |
| Net income | | | | | | | | | | \$ | 42,039 |

Revenues

| | | Six Months E | nded June 30, | | | | | |
|----|---------|--------------------------------------|--|---|---|--|--|--|
| | 20 | 20 | | 20 | 19 | | | |
| | | % of | | | % of | | | |
| | | Consolidated | | | Consolidated | | | |
| A | Amount | Revenues | Amount | | Revenues | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| \$ | 369,672 | 69.4% | \$ | 353,125 | 67.2% | | | |
| | 156,547 | 29.4% | | 158,160 | 30.1% | | | |
| | 6,112 | 1.1% | | 8,226 | 1.6% | | | |
| | 651 | 0.1% | | 5,934 | 1.1% | | | |
| | 532,982 | 100.0% | | 525,445 | 100.0% | | | |
| | | * 369,672 156,547 6,112 651 | 2020 % of Consolidated Revenues \$ 369,672 69.4% 156,547 29.4% 6,112 1.1% 651 0.1% | Second | ** 369,672 69.4% \$ 353,125 156,547 29.4% 158,160 6,112 1.1% 8,226 651 0.1% 5,934 | | | |

<u>Leasing</u> – For the six months ended June 30, 2020, we recognized \$347.5 million of revenue from rents under the Master Lease, which included \$16.9 million of TCI revenue. For the six months ended June 30, 2019, we recognized \$342.5 million of revenue from rents under the Master Lease, which included \$13.6 million of TCI revenue. For the six months ended June 30, 2020, we recognized \$22.2 million of leasing revenues from non-Windstream triple-net leasing and dark fiber IRU arrangements, compared to \$10.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2019.

Fiber Infrastructure – Fiber Infrastructure revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 consisted of the following:

| | Six Months Ended June 30, | | | | | | | | | | |
|-------------------------------------|------------------------------|---------|--------|----|---------|--------------------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| | | 202 | 0 | | 20 | 19 | | | | | |
| (Thousands) | % of Segment Amount Revenues | | | | Amount | % of Segment Revenues | | | | | |
| Fiber Infrastructure revenues: | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Lit backhaul services | \$ | 55,408 | 35.5% | \$ | 65,606 | 41.4% | | | | | |
| Enterprise and wholesale | | 38,886 | 24.8% | | 35,970 | 22.7% | | | | | |
| E-Rate and government | | 42,758 | 27.3% | | 44,528 | 28.2% | | | | | |
| Dark fiber and small cells | | 18,192 | 11.6% | | 10,373 | 6.6% | | | | | |
| Other services | | 1,303 | 0.8% | | 1,683 | 1.1% | | | | | |
| Total Fiber Infrastructure revenues | \$ | 156,547 | 100.0% | \$ | 158,160 | 100.0% | | | | | |

For the six months ended June 30, 2020, Fiber Infrastructure revenues totaled \$156.5 million as compared to \$158.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2019. The decrease is primarily attributable to a \$1.2 million decrease in non-recurring construction revenues. At June 30, 2020, we had approximately 24,288 customer connections, up from 19,707 customer connections at June 30, 2019.

<u>Towers</u> – For the six months ended June 30, 2020, we recognized \$6.1 million of revenue from the Towers business, compared to \$8.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2019. The decrease in revenues is driven by the April 2, 2019 sale of the Latin America operations which contributed \$2.5 million of revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2019 and the completed sale of the U.S. tower business on June 1, 2020.

<u>Consumer CLEC</u> – For the six months ended June 30, 2020, we recognized revenue of \$0.7 million from the Consumer CLEC business, compared to \$5.9 million of revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2019. The decrease is attributable to the substantially completed wind down of the business during the second quarter, which included credits to disconnected customers.

Interest Expense, net

| | Six Months Ended June 30, | | | | | | | |
|--|---------------------------|---------|----|---------|--------------------------|----------|--|--|
| (Thousands) | 2020 | | | 2019 | Increase / (Decrease) | | | |
| Interest expense, net: | | | | | | | | |
| Cash: | | | _ | | _ | | | |
| Senior secured term loan B - variable rate (1) | \$ | 20,205 | \$ | 64,999 | \$ | (44,794) | | |
| Senior secured notes - 6.00% and 7.875% | | 85,797 | | 16,500 | | 69,297 | | |
| Senior unsecured notes - 4.00%, 7.125%, and 8.25% | | 74,061 | | 67,163 | | 6,898 | | |
| Senior secured revolving credit facility - variable rate | | 12,232 | | 16,753 | | (4,521) | | |
| Other | | 2,075 | | 1,683 | | 392 | | |
| Total cash interest | | 194,370 | | 167,098 | | 27,272 | | |
| Non-cash: | | | | | | | | |
| Amortization of deferred financing costs and debt discount | | 18,666 | | 17,659 | | 1,007 | | |
| Write off of deferred financing costs and debt discount | | 73,952 | | - | | 73,952 | | |
| Capitalized Interest | | (1,352) | | (2,570) | | 1,218 | | |
| Total non-cash interest | | 91,266 | | 15,089 | | 76,177 | | |
| Total interest expense, net | \$ | 285,636 | \$ | 182,187 | \$ | 103,449 | | |

⁽¹⁾ Swapped to fixed rate. See Note 10

Interest expense for the six months ended June 30, 2020 increased \$103.4 million compared to the six months ended June 30, 2019. The increase is due to (i) the write-off of unamortized deferred financing costs and debt discount related to the repayment of the senior secured term loan B and terminated commitments of the revolving loans of \$72.5 million and \$1.4 million, respectively, and (ii) cash interest expense of \$69.3 million related to the 7.875% senior secured notes, partially offset by a decrease of \$44.8 million in cash interest expense related to the repayment of senior secured term loan B.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

| | Six Months Ended June 30, | | | | | | | | | |
|---|---------------------------|-----------|----------------------------------|----|----------|----------------------------------|--|--|--|--|
| | | 20 | 20 | | 20 | 2019 | | | | |
| (Thousands) | | Amount | % of Consolidated Revenues | | Amount | % of Consolidated Revenues | | | | |
| Depreciation and amortization expense by segment: | | XIIIOUIIL | Revenues | | Millount | Revenues | | | | |
| Leasing | \$ | 107,027 | 20.2% | \$ | 146,028 | 27.9% | | | | |
| Fiber Infrastructure | | 62,340 | 11.7% | | 56,752 | 10.8% | | | | |
| Towers | | 783 | 0.1% | | 2,827 | 0.5% | | | | |
| Consumer CLEC | | 791 | 0.1% | | 692 | 0.1% | | | | |
| Corporate | | 149 | 0.0% | | 106 | 0.0% | | | | |
| Total depreciation and amortization expense | \$ | 171,090 | 32.1% | \$ | 206,405 | 39.3% | | | | |

We incur depreciation and amortization expense related to our property, plant and equipment, corporate assets and intangible assets. Charges for depreciation and amortization for the six months ended June 30, 2020 totaled \$171.1 million, which included \$155.0 million of depreciation expense and \$16.1 million of amortization expense. Charges for depreciation and amortization for the six months ended June 30, 2019 totaled \$206.4 million, which included \$194.0 million of depreciation expense and \$12.4 million of amortization expense.

General and Administrative Expense

| | Six Months Ended June 30, | | | | | | | | |
|--|---------------------------|--------|----------------|----|--------|----------------------|--|--|--|
| | | 20 | 20 | | 20 | 19 | | | |
| | Amount | | | | | % of Consolidated | | | |
| (Thousands) | Amount | | nount Revenues | | Amount | Revenues | | | |
| General and administrative expense by segment: | | | | | | | | | |
| Leasing | \$ | 3,507 | 0.6% | \$ | 1,932 | 0.4% | | | |
| Fiber Infrastructure | | 27,586 | 5.2% | | 29,556 | 5.6% | | | |
| Towers | | 2,607 | 0.5% | | 3,848 | 0.7% | | | |
| Consumer CLEC | | 139 | 0.0% | | - | 0.0% | | | |
| Corporate | | 21,188 | 4.0% | | 15,318 | 2.9% | | | |
| Total general and administrative expenses | \$ | 55,027 | 10.3% | \$ | 50,654 | 9.6% | | | |

General and administrative expenses include compensation costs, including stock-based compensation awards, professional and legal services, corporate office costs and other costs associated with administrative activities. For the six months ended June 30, 2020, general and administrative costs totaled \$55.0 million, which includes \$7.1 million of stock-based compensation. For the six months ended June 30, 2019, general and administrative costs totaled \$50.7 million, which included \$5.1 million of stock-based compensation expense.

Operating Expense

Operating expense for the six months ended June 30, 2020, totaled \$80.5 million compared to \$78.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2019, which was attributable to the increase in Fiber Infrastructure operating expenses discussed below. Operating expense for our reportable segments for the six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 consisted of the following:

| | | | Six Months | Ended | l June 30, | |
|--------------------------------|--------------|--------|------------|-------------|------------|--------------|
| | | 20 | 20 | | 20 | 019 |
| | | | % of | | | % of |
| | Consolidated | | | | | Consolidated |
| (Thousands) | Α | mount | Revenues | nues Amount | | Revenues |
| Operating expenses by segment: | | | | | | |
| Fiber Infrastructure | \$ | 74,283 | 14.0% | \$ | 68,491 | 13.0% |
| Towers | | 3,692 | 0.7% | | 4,566 | 0.9% |
| CLEC | | 787 | 0.1% | | 4,723 | 0.9% |
| Leasing | | 1,715 | 0.3% | | 801 | 0.2% |
| Total operating expenses | \$ | 80,477 | 15.1% | \$ | 78,581 | 15.0% |

Fiber Infrastructure – For the six months ended June 30, 2020, Fiber Infrastructure operating expenses totaled \$74.3 million as compared to \$68.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2019. Operating expense consists of network related costs, such as dark fiber and tower rents, and lit service and maintenance expense. In addition, costs associated with our construction activities are presented within operating expenses.

<u>Towers</u> – Towers operating expense was \$3.7 million and \$4.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The decrease in operating expense is primarily attributable to the April 2, 2019 sale of the Latin American business and the completed sale of our U.S. towers business of June 1, 2020.

<u>Consumer CLEC</u> – The Consumer CLEC business operating expense was \$0.8 million and \$4.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The decrease is due to the substantially completed the wind down of our Consumer CLEC business.

<u>Leasing</u> – Leasing operating expense was \$1.7 million and \$0.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The increase is primarily driven by a \$0.8 million increase in rent expense related to the Bluebird acquisition, completed August 30, 2019.

Transaction Related and Other Costs

Transaction related and other costs included incremental acquisition, pursuit, transaction and integration costs (including unsuccessful acquisition pursuit costs), costs incurred as a result of Windstream's bankruptcy filing, costs associated with Windstream's claims against us and costs associated with the implementation of our new enterprise resource planning system. For the six months ended June 30, 2020, we incurred \$34.5 million of transaction related and other costs, compared to \$13.7 million of such costs during the six months ended June 30, 2019. The increase is primarily related to \$23.8 million of total costs related to the Windstream Bankruptcy.

Income Tax (Benefit) Expense

The recorded income tax (benefit) expense recorded for the six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, is related to the tax impact of the following:

| | Six Months Ended June 30, | | | | | | |
|--|---------------------------|----------|----|---------|--|--|--|
| (Thousands) | | 2020 | | 2019 | | | |
| Income tax (benefit) expense | | | | | | | |
| Pre-tax loss (Fiber Infrastructure) | \$ | (10,733) | \$ | (2,600) | | | |
| Cancellation of debt income (REIT) | | - | | 4,600 | | | |
| Other undistributed REIT taxable income | | - | | 2,700 | | | |
| Gain from sale of Uniti Towers' Latin American business | | - | | 4,600 | | | |
| Uniti Towers' Latin American business unrecognized tax benefit | | - | | 2,400 | | | |
| Other | | 282 | | 197 | | | |
| Total income tax (benefit) expense | \$ | (10,451) | \$ | 11,897 | | | |

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We refer to EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Funds From Operations ("FFO") (as defined by the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts ("NAREIT")) and Adjusted Funds From Operations ("AFFO") in our analysis of our results of operations, which are not required by, or presented in accordance with, accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("GAAP"). While we believe that net income, as defined by GAAP, is the most appropriate earnings measure, we also believe that EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, FFO and AFFO are important non-GAAP supplemental measures of operating performance for a REIT.

We define "EBITDA" as net income, as defined by GAAP, before interest expense, provision for income taxes and depreciation and amortization. We define "Adjusted EBITDA" as EBITDA before stock-based compensation expense and the impact, which may be recurring in nature, of transaction and integration related costs, costs associated with Windstream's bankruptcy, costs associated with litigation claims made against us, and costs associated with the implementation of our new enterprise resource planning system (collectively, "Transaction Related and Other Costs"), the write-off of unamortized deferred financing costs, costs incurred as a result of the early repayment of debt, gains or losses on dispositions, changes in the fair value of contingent consideration and financial instruments, and other similar or infrequent items (although we may not have had such charges in the periods presented). We believe EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are important supplemental measures to net income because they provide additional information to evaluate our operating performance on an unleveraged basis. In addition, Adjusted EBITDA is calculated similar to defined terms in our material debt agreements used to determine compliance with specific financial covenants. Since EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are not measures calculated in accordance with GAAP, they should not be considered as alternatives to net income determined in accordance with GAAP.

Because the historical cost accounting convention used for real estate assets requires the recognition of depreciation expense except on land, such accounting presentation implies that the value of real estate assets diminishes predictably over time. However, since real estate values have historically risen or fallen with market and other conditions, presentations of operating results for a REIT that uses historical cost accounting for depreciation could be less informative. Thus, NAREIT created FFO as a supplemental measure of operating performance for REITs that excludes historical cost depreciation and amortization, among other items, from net income, as defined by GAAP. FFO is defined by NAREIT as net income attributable to common shareholders computed in accordance with GAAP, excluding gains or losses from real estate dispositions, plus real estate depreciation and amortization and impairment charges. We compute FFO in accordance with NAREIT's definition.

The Company defines AFFO as FFO excluding (i) Transaction Related and Other Costs; (ii) Windstream bankruptcy and litigation related expenses, including litigation settlement expenses; (iii) certain non-cash revenues and expenses such as stock-based compensation expense, amortization of debt and equity discounts, amortization of deferred financing costs, depreciation and

amortization of non-real estate assets, straight-line revenues, non-cash income taxes, and the amortization of other non-cash revenues to the extent that cash has not been received, such as revenue associated with the amortization of TCIs; and (iv) the impact, which may be recurring in nature, of the write-off of unamortized deferred financing fees, additional costs incurred as a result of early repayment of debt, including costs associated with the termination of related hedging activities, taxes associated with tax basis cancellation of debt, gains or losses on dispositions, changes in the fair value of contingent consideration and financial instruments and similar or infrequent items less maintenance capital expenditures. We believe that the use of FFO and AFFO, and their respective per share amounts, combined with the required GAAP presentations, improves the understanding of operating results of REITs among investors and analysts, and makes comparisons of operating results among such companies more meaningful. We consider FFO and AFFO to be useful measures for reviewing comparative operating performance. In particular, we believe AFFO, by excluding certain revenue and expense items, can help investors compare our operating performance between periods and to other REITs on a consistent basis without having to account for differences caused by unanticipated items and events, such as transaction and integration related costs. The Company uses FFO and AFFO, and their respective per share amounts, only as performance measures, and FFO and AFFO do not purport to be indicative of cash available to fund our future cash requirements. While FFO and AFFO are relevant and widely used measures of operating performance of REITs, they do not represent cash flows from operations or net income as defined by GAAP and should not be considered an alternative to those measures in evaluating our liquidity or operating performance.

Further, our computations of EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, FFO and AFFO may not be comparable to that reported by other REITs or companies that do not define FFO in accordance with the current NAREIT definition or that interpret the current NAREIT definition or define EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and AFFO differently than we do.

The reconciliation of our net (loss) income to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA and of our net (loss) income attributable to common shareholders to FFO and AFFO for the three and six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

| | Three Months I | End | ed June 30, | | Six Months E | Ended June 30, | | |
|-------------------------------------|--------------------|-----|-------------|----|--------------|----------------|----------|--|
| (Thousands) | 2020 | | 2019 2020 | | 2020 | | 2019 | |
| Net (loss) income | \$ (598,329) | \$ | 39,547 | \$ | (678,595) | \$ | 42,039 | |
| Depreciation and amortization | 84,969 | | 102,578 | | 171,090 | | 206,405 | |
| Interest expense, net | 107,243 | | 97,729 | | 285,636 | | 182,187 | |
| Income tax (benefit) expense | (5,875) | | 7,843 | | (10,451) | | 11,897 | |
| EBITDA | \$ (411,992) | \$ | 247,697 | \$ | (232,320) | \$ | 442,528 | |
| Stock based compensation | 4,110 | | 3,197 | | 7,105 | | 5,085 | |
| Transaction related and other costs | 18,556 | | 7,035 | | 34,528 | | 13,704 | |
| Settlement expense | 650,000 | | - | | 650,000 | | - | |
| Gain on sale of real estate | (63,818) | | (28,790) | | (63,818) | | (28,790) | |
| Other expense (income) | 6,013 | | (22,275) | | 9,088 | | (25,388) | |
| Adjusted EBITDA | \$ 202,869 | \$ | 206,864 | \$ | 404,583 | \$ | 407,139 | |

| | | Three Months I | Endec | l June 30, | Six Months E | ıded | June 30, |
|---|----|----------------|-------|------------|-----------------|------|----------|
| (Thousands) | | 2020 | | 2019 | 2020 | | 2019 |
| Net (loss) income attributable to common shareholders | \$ | (588,169) | \$ | 38,246 | \$ (667,225) | \$ | 39,259 |
| Real estate depreciation and amortization | | 62,107 | | 82,436 | 126,059 | | 166,162 |
| Gain on sale of real estate assets, net of tax | | (63,818) | | (24,215) | (63,818) | | (24,215) |
| Participating securities share in earnings | | 424 | | 223 | 624 | | 251 |
| Participating securities share in FFO | | (406) | | (541) | (606) | | (569) |
| Adjustments for noncontrolling interests | | 30 | | (1,181) | (1,102) | | (3,034) |
| FFO attributable to common shareholders | \$ | (589,832) | \$ | 94,968 | \$ (606,068) | \$ | 177,854 |
| Transaction related and other costs | | 18,556 | | 7,035 | 34,528 | | 13,704 |
| Change in fair value of contingent consideration | | 4,645 | | (22,275) | 6,140 | | (25,531) |
| Amortization of deferred financing costs and debt discoun | t | 8,958 | | 10,786 | 18,666 | | 17,659 |
| Write off of deferred financing costs and debt discount | | - | | - | 73,952 | | - |
| Stock based compensation | | 4,110 | | 3,197 | 7,105 | | 5,085 |
| Non-real estate depreciation and amortization | | 22,862 | | 20,142 | 45,031 | | 40,243 |
| Settlement expense | | 650,000 | | - | 650,000 | | - |
| Straight-line revenues | | 602 | | (693) | 711 | | (1,416) |
| Maintenance capital expenditures | | (2,253) | | (1,923) | (3,361) | | (4,726) |
| Amortization of discount on convertible preferred stock | | - | | 248 | - | | 993 |
| Cash taxes on tax basis cancellation of debt | | - | | - | - | | 4,590 |
| Other, net | | (11,356) | | (5,967) | (21,810) | | (15,649) |
| Adjustments for noncontrolling interests | | (12,317) | | (219) | (14,339) | | (735) |
| AFFO attributable to common shareholders | \$ | 93,975 | \$ | 105,299 | \$ 190,555 | \$ | 212,071 |

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal liquidity needs are to fund operating expenses, meet debt service requirements, fund investment activities, including capital expenditures, and make dividend distributions. Our primary sources of liquidity and capital resources are cash on hand, cash provided by operating activities (primarily arising under the Master Lease with Windstream), available borrowings under our credit agreement by and among the Operating Partnership, CSL Capital, LLC and Uniti Group Finance Inc., the guarantors and lenders party thereto and Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent and collateral agent (the "Credit Agreement"), and proceeds from the issuance of debt and equity securities.

As of June 30, 2020, we had cash and cash equivalents of \$88.3 million and approximately \$290.0 million of borrowing availability under our Revolving Credit Facility. Subsequent to June 30, 2020, there have been no material outlays of funds outside of our scheduled interest and dividend payments. Availability under our Revolving Credit Facility is subject to various conditions, including a maximum secured leverage ratio of 5.0:1. In addition, if we incur debt under our Revolving Credit Facility or otherwise such that our total leverage ratio exceeds 6.5:1, our debt instruments would impose significant restrictions on our ability to pay dividends.

| | Six I | Six Months Ended June 30, | | |
|---|-------|---------------------------|---------|--|
| (Thousands) | 2020 | | 2019 | |
| Cash flow from operating activities: | | | _ | |
| Net cash provided by operating activities | \$ 2 | 226,281 \$ | 250,364 | |

Cash provided by operating activities was \$226.3 million and \$250.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Cash provided by operating activities is primarily attributable to our leasing activities.

| | Six Months Ended June 30, | | | June 30, |
|---|---------------------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| (Thousands) | | 2020 | | 2019 |
| Cash flow from investing activities: | | | ' <u></u> | |
| Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired | \$ | - | \$ | (4,210) |
| Other capital expenditures | | (134,035) | | (180,478) |
| Proceeds from sale of real estate, net of cash | | 225,149 | | 127,524 |
| Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities | \$ | 91,114 | \$ | (57,164) |

Cash provided by investing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2020 was \$91.1 million, which was driven by proceeds from the sale of our U.S. tower business (\$225.0 million), partially offset by capital expenditures (\$134.0 million), primarily related to our Uniti Fiber and Uniti Leasing businesses for the deployment of network assets. Cash used in investing activities was \$57.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2019, which was driven by capital expenditures (\$180.5 million), primarily related to our Uniti Fiber and Uniti Towers businesses partially offset by proceeds related to the sale of Uniti Towers' Latin American and ground lease businesses (\$127.5 million).

| | Six Months Ended June 30, | | | June 30, |
|---|---------------------------|-------------|----|-----------|
| (Thousands) | 2020 2019 | | | 2019 |
| Cash flow from financing activities: | | | | _ |
| Repayment of senior secured term loan B | \$ | (2,044,728) | \$ | - |
| Principal payments on debt | | - | | (10,540) |
| Dividends paid | | (71,645) | | (120,161) |
| Payments of contingent consideration | | (7,086) | | (28,170) |
| Distributions paid to noncontrolling interests | | (1,282) | | (2,686) |
| Borrowings under revolving credit facility | | 10,000 | | 139,000 |
| Payments under revolving credit facility | | (456,700) | | (203,981) |
| Capital lease payments | | (1,979) | | (1,896) |
| Payments for financing costs | | (47,775) | | (49,462) |
| Common stock issuance, net of costs | | - | | 21,641 |
| Proceeds from issuance of notes | | 2,250,000 | | 345,000 |
| Proceeds from sale of warrants | | - | | 50,819 |
| Payment for bond hedge option | | - | | (70,035) |
| Employee stock purchase program | | 306 | | 447 |
| Net share settlement | | (1,050) | | (1,765) |
| Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities | \$ | (371,939) | \$ | 68,211 |

Cash used in financing activities was \$371.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2020, which was primarily driven by the repayment of senior secured term loan B (\$2.04 billion), net payments under the Revolving Credit Facility (\$446.7 million), dividend payments (\$71.6 million) and payments for financing costs (\$47.8 million), partially offset by the proceeds from the issuance of the 2025 Secured Notes (\$2.25 billion). Cash provided by financing activities was \$68.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2019, which primarily represents the proceeds from issuance of exchangeable notes (\$345.0 million), proceeds from sale of warrants (\$50.8 million) and net proceeds under our ATM Program (\$21.6 million). This was partially offset by dividend payments (\$120.2 million), payment for bond hedge option (\$70.0 million), net repayments under the Revolving Credit Facility (\$65.0 million), payments for

financing costs (\$49.5 million), contingent consideration payments (\$28.2 million), principal payments related to the Term Loan Facility (\$10.5 million) and distributions paid to noncontrolling interests (\$2.7 million).

On February 10, 2020, we received a limited waiver from our lenders under our Credit Agreement, waiving an event of default related solely to the receipt of a going concern opinion from our auditors for our 2019 audited financial statements. The limited waiver was issued in connection with the Sixth Amendment to our Credit Agreement. In addition to the restrictions imposed by the Fourth Amendment, which remain effective, the Sixth Amendment also limits the ability of our non-guarantor subsidiaries to incur indebtedness. The Sixth Amendment increased the interest rate on our revolving facility by 100 bps for each applicable rate. As amended, borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility bear interest at a rate equal to either a base rate plus an applicable margin ranging from 3.75% to 4.25% or a Eurodollar rate plus an applicable margin ranging from 4.75% to 5.25%, in each case, calculated in a customary manner and determined based on our consolidated secured leverage ratio. See note 10 to our accompanying Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

We have established the ATM Program to sell shares of common stock having an aggregate offering price of up to \$250 million. The ATM Program supersedes and replaces the \$250 million program we commenced on September 2, 2016, which had approximately \$117.1 million available for issuance under such program. This program is intended to provide additional financial flexibility and an alternative mechanism to access the capital markets at an efficient cost as and when we need financing, including for acquisitions. In addition, our UPREIT structure enables us to acquire properties by issuing to sellers, as a form of consideration, limited partnership interests in our operating partnership, (commonly called "OP Units"). We believe that this structure will facilitate our ability to acquire individual properties and portfolios of properties by enabling us to structure transactions which will defer taxes payable by a seller while preserving our available cash for other purposes, including the possible payment of dividends.

We anticipate continuing to invest in our network infrastructure across our Uniti Leasing and Uniti Fiber portfolios. We anticipate that we will partially finance these needs, as well as operating expenses (including our debt service obligations), from our cash on hand and cash flows provided by operating activities. As of June 30, 2020, we had \$290 million in borrowing availability under our Revolving Credit Facility, however, we may need to access the capital markets to generate additional funds in an amount sufficient to fund our business operations, announced investment activities, capital expenditures, debt service and distributions to our shareholders. In light of the COVID-19 pandemic and its effects on the global economy and capital markets, we are closely monitoring the equity and debt markets and will seek to access them promptly if and when we determine market conditions are appropriate. Our debt covenants currently do not permit us to incur material additional debt. We will need to raise additional capital if the Settlement, which includes growth capital investments, with Windstream is effectuated.

The amount, nature and timing of any capital markets transactions will depend on: the impact the COVID-19 pandemic has on the global economy and capital markets, our operating performance and other circumstances, including uncertainty surrounding Windstream; our then-current commitments and obligations; the amount, nature and timing of our capital requirements; and any limitations imposed by our current credit arrangements. These expectations are forward-looking and subject to a number of uncertainties and assumptions. If our expectations about our liquidity prove to be incorrect or we are unable to access the capital markets as we anticipate, we would be subject to a shortfall in liquidity in the future which could lead to a reduction in our capital expenditures and/or dividends and, in an extreme case, our ability to pay our debt service obligations. If this shortfall occurs rapidly and with little or no notice, it could limit our ability to address the shortfall on a timely basis.

In addition to exploring potential capital markets transactions, the Company regularly evaluates market conditions, its liquidity profile, and various financing alternatives for opportunities to enhance its capital structure. If opportunities are favorable, the Company may refinance or repurchase existing debt. However, there can be no assurances that any debt refinancing would be on similar or more favorable terms than our existing arrangements. This would include the risk that interest rates could increase and/or there may be changes to our existing covenants.

In light of the COVID-19 pandemic, recent developments and uncertainty surrounding Windstream, as discussed in Note 2 to our accompanying Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and in Part I, Item 1A "Risk Factors" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019, until such time as the Settlement is approved and Windstream emerges from bankruptcy, we have taken measures, and may take further measures, to conserve cash as we anticipate that it will be more difficult for us to access the capital markets at attractive rates until such uncertainty is clarified.

Capital Expenditures

| | | Six Worldis Ended June 50, 2020 | | | | | | | |
|----------------------------|--------------|---------------------------------|----|-----------|------|----------|----|--------|------------|
| | Success Non- | | | | | _ | | | |
| (Thousands) | | Based | Ma | intenance | Inte | egration | N | etwork | Total |
| Capital expenditures: | | | | | | | | | |
| Leasing | \$ | 9,063 | \$ | - | \$ | - | \$ | - | \$ 9,063 |
| Fiber Infrastructure | | 94,296 | | 3,355 | | 1,861 | | 1,298 | 100,810 |
| Towers | | 24,156 | | 6 | | - | | - | 24,162 |
| Corporate and non-network | | - | | - | | - | | - | - |
| Total capital expenditures | \$ | 127,515 | \$ | 3,361 | \$ | 1,861 | \$ | 1,298 | \$ 134,035 |

Six Months Ended June 30, 2020

We categorize our capital expenditures as either (i) success-based, (ii) maintenance, (iii) integration or (iv) corporate and non-network. We define success-based capital expenditures as those related to installing existing or anticipated contractual customer service orders. Maintenance capital expenditures are those necessary to keep existing network elements fully operational. Integration capital expenditures are those made specifically with respect to recent acquisitions that are essential to integrating acquired companies in our business. We anticipate continuing to invest in our network infrastructure across our Uniti Leasing and Uniti Fiber businesses, and expect that cash on hand and cash flows provided by operating activities will be sufficient to support these investments. We have the right, but not the obligation, to fund growth capital expenditures in certain of our lease arrangements where we are the lessor.

In light of recent developments with Windstream and the COVID-19 pandemic, we may need to take measures to conserve cash, which may include a suspension, delay or reduction in success-based capital expenditures. We continually assess our capital expenditure plans in light of developments regarding the Windstream bankruptcy and the impact COVID-19 has on our business and that our tenants and customers.

Dividends

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes. U.S. federal income tax law generally requires that a REIT distribute annually at least 90% of its REIT taxable income, without regard to the deduction for dividends paid and excluding net capital gains, and that it pay tax at regular corporate rates to the extent that it annually distributes less than 100% of its taxable income. In order to maintain our REIT status, we intend to make dividend payments of all or substantially all of our taxable income to holders of our common stock out of assets legally available for this purpose, if and to the extent authorized by our board of directors. Before we make any dividend payments, whether for U.S. federal income tax purposes or otherwise, we must first meet both our operating requirements and debt service obligations. If our cash available for distribution is less than our taxable income, we could be required to sell assets or borrow funds to make cash dividends or we may make a portion of the required dividend in the form of a taxable distribution of stock or debt securities.

The following table below sets out details regarding our cash dividends on our common stock:

| Period | Payment Date | Cash D | ividend Per Share | Record Date |
|-------------------------------------|------------------|--------|-------------------|-------------------|
| October 1, 2019 - December 31, 2019 | January 15, 2020 | \$ | 0.22 | December 31, 2019 |
| January 1, 2020 - March 31, 2020 | April 15, 2020 | \$ | 0.15 | March 31, 2020 |
| April 1, 2020 - June 30, 2020 | July 10, 2020 | \$ | 0.15 | June 26, 2020 |

Any dividends must be declared by our Board of Directors, which will take into account various factors including our current and anticipated operating results, our financial position, REIT requirements, conditions prevailing in the market, restrictions in our debt documents and additional factors they deem appropriate. Dividend payments are not guaranteed and our Board of Directors may decide, in its absolute discretion, at any time and for any reason, not to pay dividends or to change the amount paid as dividends. In light of recent developments with Windstream and the COVID-19 pandemic, we may take further measures to conserve cash, which may include a suspension, delay or reduction in our dividend. In addition, during the pendency of Windstream's bankruptcy, the Fourth Amendment to our Credit Agreement and our 2025 Secured Notes generally limit our ability to pay cash dividends in excess of 90% of our REIT taxable income, determined without regard to the dividends paid deduction and excluding any net capital gains.

Critical Accounting Estimates

We make certain judgments and use certain estimates and assumptions when applying accounting principles in the preparation of our Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. The nature of the estimates and assumptions are material due to the levels of subjectivity and judgment necessary to account for highly uncertain factors or the susceptibility of such factors to change. We have identified the accounting for income taxes, revenue recognition, useful lives of assets, the impairment of property, plant and equipment, goodwill impairment and business combinations as critical accounting estimates, as they are the most important to our financial statement presentation and require difficult, subjective and complex judgments.

We believe the current assumptions and other considerations used to estimate amounts reflected in our accompanying Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are appropriate. However, if actual experience differs from the assumptions and other considerations used in estimating amounts reflected in our Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, the resulting changes could have a material adverse effect on our consolidated results of operations and, in certain situations, could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition.

Goodwill—The COVID-19 pandemic has negatively impacted the global economy, disrupted global supply chains and created significant volatility and disruption of financial markets. In accordance with ASC 350, *Intangibles — Goodwill and Other* we have considered events or circumstances resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic that may indicate whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying value. After consideration of such events or circumstances, including evaluating potential impacts on our judgements and estimates regarding our projected cash flows used in the determination of the estimated fair value of our Fiber reporting unit, we have determined that it is not more likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying value; therefore, we have not performed an interim impairment analysis during the quarter. We will continue to monitor the impacts that the COVID-19 pandemic has on our business and may conclude that an interim impairment analysis is required in a future period, if we determine that the COVID-19 pandemic is negatively impacting our business.

As of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, we have not experienced significant disruptions in our operations or network performance, incurred significant delays in our permitting process that would impact our timing of service installations, had disruptions or cost increases in our supply chain, nor have we received significant requests for payment relief from our customers as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. Furthermore, as of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, we have not observed declines in acquisition multiples, which would impact estimated fair value of our Fiber reporting unit under the market approach, as it uses market data of comparable business and acquisition multiples paid in recent transactions to estimate fair value. As a result, we concluded that no triggering events were present and have not performed an interim impairment analysis during the quarter.

For further information on our critical accounting estimates, see "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and the notes to our audited financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019, filed with the SEC on March 12, 2020. As of June 30, 2020, there has been no material change to these estimates.

Recent Accounting Guidance

New accounting rules and disclosures can impact our reported results and comparability of our financial statements. These matters are described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019, filed with the SEC on March 12, 2020.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, we do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

There have been no material changes from the information reported under Item 7A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019, filed with the SEC on March 12, 2020.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have established disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act"), that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to management, including our principal executive and principal financial officers as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Our management, with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of June 30, 2020, and based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of June 30, 2020.

Remediation of Previously Disclosed Material Weakness in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

As disclosed in "Part II. Item 9A. Controls and Procedures" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019, during the fourth quarter of 2019, we identified a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting due to the following material weakness. We did not design or maintain effective controls over the identification and valuation of certain assets in the application of the acquisition method of accounting for asset acquisitions, including the determination of appropriate useful lives for certain assets. Specifically, our controls over the development and application of inputs, assumptions and calculations used in fair value measurements were not designed and operating effectively at an appropriate level of precision. Management initiated a plan to remediate the material weakness, and implemented improvements to the design and operation of control activities and procedures associated with the timeliness of the identification and valuation of assets acquired in asset acquisitions.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2020, we completed our testing of the design of the actions discussed above. We have concluded that the enhanced control processes have now been designed so as to provide reasonable assurance as to their operating effectiveness, and, as a result, we believe that the material weakness described above was remediated as of June 30, 2020.

Management believes that our condensed consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q have been prepared in accordance with US GAAP. Our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have certified that, based on such officer's knowledge, the condensed consolidated financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Company as of, and for, the periods presented in this report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Other than the changes made in response to the material weakness as described above, there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act, that occurred during the quarter ended June 30, 2020 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II—OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

In the ordinary course of our business, we are subject to claims and administrative proceedings, none of which we believe are material or would be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, cash flows or results of operations.

Windstream Bankruptcy Filing

Prior to its bankruptcy filing described below, Windstream was involved in litigation with an entity who acquired certain Windstream debt securities and thereafter issued a notice of default as to such securities relating to the Spin-Off. Windstream challenged the matter in federal court and a trial was held in July 2018. On February 15, 2019, the federal court judge issued a ruling against Windstream, finding that its attempts to waive such default were not valid; that an "event of default" occurred with respect to such debt securities; and that the holder's acceleration of such debt in December 2017 was effective. In response to the adverse outcome, on February 25, 2019, Windstream filed a voluntary petition for relief under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code in the Bankruptcy Court and is currently operating as a "debtor in possession" under supervision of the Bankruptcy Court. See in Part I, Item 1A "Risk Factors" of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019 for additional information concerning the impact Windstream's bankruptcy may have on our operations and financial conditions.

Windstream Litigation and Settlement

On July 25, 2019, in connection with Windstream's bankruptcy commenced on February 25, 2019, Windstream Holdings and Windstream Services, LLC ("Windstream Services") filed a complaint with the Bankruptcy Court in an adversary proceeding against Uniti and certain of its affiliates, alleging, among other things, that the Master Lease should be recharacterized as a financing arrangement, that certain rent payments and tenant capital improvements made by Windstream under the Master Lease constitute constructive fraudulent transfers, that the Master Lease is a lease of personal property and that Uniti breached certain of its obligations under the Master Lease. An adverse determination in the adversary proceedings with Windstream could materially adversely affect our results of operations, liquidity and financial condition and our status as a REIT.

On March 2, 2020, Uniti and Windstream jointly announced that they agreed to the Settlement to resolve any and all claims and causes of action that have been or may be asserted against Uniti by Windstream, including all litigation brought by Windstream and certain of its creditors in the context of Windstream's bankruptcy, and on May 12, 2020, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order approving Windstream's assumption of the Master Lease as part of the Settlement. On May 12, 2020, Uniti and Windstream entered into a settlement agreement to implement the Settlement. As a result, we have recorded a \$650.0 million charge during the quarter ended June 30, 2020, which represents the estimated fair value of the litigation component of the Settlement; however, this estimate is subject to change in future periods if new facts or circumstances arise that are unknown at this time.

On June 26, 2020, the Bankruptcy Court approved Windstream's plan of reorganization. Consummation of the plan of reorganization is subject to certain conditions precedent, including consummation of the Settlement and receipt of certain regulatory approvals. On July 3, 2020, UMB Bank and U.S. Bank, as indenture trustees for certain of Windstream's prepetition unsecured notes, and CQS US, LLC appealed the Bankruptcy Court's order approving the plan of reorganization. The appeals are pending before the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York. On July 7, 2020, UMB Bank settled its appeal of the order approving the plan of reorganization. On July 9, 2020, CQS US, LLC filed a motion seeking reconsideration of UMB Bank's settlement.

The Settlement is subject to finalizing and executing definitive documentation and the receipt of certain regulatory approvals. In July 2020, we received satisfactory "true lease" opinions confirming that the New Leases are "true leases" for U.S. federal income tax purposes, which satisfied conditions precedent to effectuating the Settlement. Following satisfaction of all such conditions precedent, consummation of the Settlement will occur on the earlier of Windstream's emergence from bankruptcy and February 28, 2021. All litigation between Windstream and Uniti, including matters referenced herein, is stayed while the parties implement the Settlement.

As noted above, as of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, we have estimated that \$650.0 million of the consideration to be paid to Windstream should be classified as settlement of litigation, and therefore, we have recorded a charge during the quarter ended June 30, 2020. This charge represents the estimated fair value of the litigation settlement component of the Settlement, and is subject to change in future periods if new facts or circumstances arise that are unknown at this time. See Note 15 to our accompanying

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for additional information concerning the Windstream litigation and Settlement.

In addition, pursuant to the Master Lease, Windstream has agreed to indemnify us for, among other things, any use, misuse, maintenance or repair by Windstream with respect to the Distribution Systems. Windstream is currently a party to various legal actions and administrative proceedings, including various claims arising in the ordinary course of its telecommunications business, which are subject to the indemnities provided by Windstream to us. If Windstream assumes the Master Lease, it would be obligated to honor all indemnification claims. If Windstream were to reject the Master Lease, any indemnification claims would be treated as unsecured claims, and, if that were to occur, there can be no assurance we would receive any indemnification payments from Windstream. While these actions and proceedings are not believed to be material, individually or in the aggregate, the ultimate outcome of these matters cannot be predicted. The resolution of any such legal proceedings, either individually or in the aggregate, could have a material adverse effect on Windstream's business, financial position or results of operations if Windstream is unable to meet its indemnification obligations.

Other Litigation

On July 3, 2019, SLF Holdings, LLC ("SLF") filed a complaint against the Company, Uniti Fiber, and certain current and former officers of the Company (collectively, the "Defendants") in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Alabama, in connection with Uniti Fiber's purchase of Southern Light, LLC from SLF in July 2017. The complaint asserted claims for fraud and conspiracy, as well as claims under federal and Alabama securities laws, alleging that Defendants improperly failed to disclose to SLF the risk that the Spin-Off and entry into the Master Lease violated certain debt covenants of Windstream. On September 26, 2019, the action was transferred to United States District Court for the District of Delaware. On November 18, 2019, SLF filed an amended complaint, adding allegations that Defendants also failed to fully disclose the risk that the Master Lease purportedly could be recharacterized as a financing instead of "true lease." The amended complaint seeks compensatory and punitive damages, as well as reformation of the purchase agreement for the sale. On December 18, 2019, Defendants moved to dismiss the amended complaint in its entirety. That motion was fully briefed as of February 7, 2020, and a hearing on the motion was heard on May 12, 2020, but no decision has been issued. We intend to defend this matter vigorously, and, because it is still in its preliminary stages, we have not yet determined what effect this lawsuit will have, if any, on our financial position or results of operations. As of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, we are unable to estimate a reasonably possible range of loss and therefore have not recorded any liabilities associated with these claims in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Ibrahim E. Safadi, Phil Queder and Michael Avery filed separate putative class actions in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Arkansas against the Company and certain of our officers on October 25, 2019, December 6, 2019, and December 23, 2019, respectively, alleging violations of the federal securities laws (the "Shareholder Actions"). The Shareholder Actions seek to represent investors who acquired the Company's securities between April 20, 2015 and February 15, 2019 (in the case of the Safadi and Queder actions) and April 20, 2015 and June 24, 2019 (in the case of the Avery action). The Shareholder Actions assert violations under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder, alleging that the Company made materially false and misleading statements by allegedly failing to disclose that the Spin-Off and entry into the Master Lease violated certain debt covenants of Windstream. The Shareholder Actions seek class certification, unspecified monetary damages, costs and attorneys' fees and other relief.

On March 12, 2020, the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Arkansas consolidated the Shareholder Actions and appointed lead plaintiffs and lead counsel in the consolidated cases under the caption *In re Uniti Group Inc. Securities Litigation*. On May 11, 2020, lead plaintiffs filed a consolidated amended complaint in the consolidated action, asserting similar claims as in the Shareholder Actions. On July 10, 2020, defendents moved to dismiss the consolidated amended complaint. Briefing on that motion is expected to be complete by October 23, 2020. We intend to defend this matter vigorously, and, because it is still in its preliminary stages, we have not yet determined what effect this lawsuit will have, if any, on our financial position or results of operations. As of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, we are unable to estimate a reasonably possible range of loss and therefore have not recorded any liabilities associated with these claims in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Under the terms of the tax matters agreement entered into on April 24, 2015 by the Company, Windstream Services, LLC and Windstream (the "Tax Matters Agreement"), in connection with the Spin-Off, we are generally responsible for any taxes imposed on Windstream that arise from the failure of the Spin-Off and the debt exchanges to qualify as tax-free for U.S. federal income tax purposes, within the meaning of Section 355 and Section 368(a)(1)(D) of the Code, as applicable, to the extent such failure to qualify is attributable to certain actions, events or transactions relating to our stock, indebtedness, assets or business, or a breach of the relevant representations or any covenants made by us in the Tax Matters Agreement, the materials submitted to the IRS in connection

with the request for the private letter ruling or the representations provided in connection with the tax opinion. We believe that the probability of us incurring obligations under the Tax Matters Agreement are remote; and therefore, we have recorded no such liabilities in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2020.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

There have been no material changes to the risk factors affecting our business that were discussed in Part I, "Item 1A. Risk Factors" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019 filed with the SEC on March 12, 2020, as supplemented by the supplemental risk factors related to the COVID-19 pandemic, included in Part II, "Item 1A Risk Factors" of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2020, as further supplemented by the following revised risk factors related to the COVID-19 pandemic.

The COVID-19 pandemic, and the future outbreak of other highly infectious or contagious diseases, could disrupt the operation of our business resulting in adverse impacts to our financial condition, results of operations, and cash flow.

The COVID-19 pandemic has, and another pandemic in the future could, negatively impacted the global economy, disrupted global supply chains and created significant volatility and disruption of financial markets. Given the ongoing and dynamic nature of the circumstances, it is difficult to predict the impact of COVID-19 on us, and there is no guarantee that efforts by us, designed to address adverse impacts of COVID-19, will be effective.

The local governments in some of the markets in which we operate mandated residents to stay at home and temporarily closed businesses that are not considered essential. While some of these measures have been loosened, the ongoing pandemic and COVID-19 outbreaks has resulted in, and may continue to result in, reinstating these measures or implementing new or additional measures. Although our businesses are considered essential, the current COVID-19 pandemic, or a future pandemic, could have material and adverse effects on our ability to successfully operate and on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows due to, among other factors:

- significant disruptions or delays in our operations or network performance, as well as network maintenance and construction, testing, supervisory and customer support activities, and inventory and supply procurement;
- increases in operating costs, inventory shortages and/or a decrease in productivity related to travel bans and social distancing efforts that may delay construction activities or require our vendor and contractors to incur additional costs that may be passed onto us;
- delays in permitting activities due to the shutdown of local permitting authorities;
- a deterioration in our ability to operate in affected areas or delays in the supply of products or services to us from vendors that are needed for our efficient operations could adversely affect our operations;
- the impact on our contracts with customers and suppliers, including potential disputes over whether COVID-19 constitutes a force majeure
 event;
- adverse impact on the timing of installs in our enterprise and wholesale customer segments at Uniti Fiber;
- a general reduction in business and economic activity may severely impact our clients' financial condition and liquidity and may cause them to be unable to meet their obligations to us in full, or at all, or to otherwise seek modifications of such obligations;
- difficulty accessing debt and equity capital on attractive terms, or at all, and a severe disruption and instability in the global financial markets or deteriorations in credit and financing conditions may affect our access to capital necessary to fund business operations or address existing and anticipated liabilities on a timely basis; and
- the potential negative impact on the health of our personnel, particularly if a significant number of them are impacted, could result in a deterioration in our ability to ensure business continuity during a disruption.

We have implemented policies and procedures designed to mitigate the risk of adverse impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, or a future pandemic, on our operations, but we may incur additional costs to ensure continuity of business operations caused by COVID-

19, or other future pandemics, which could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations. However, the extent of such impacts will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted, including new information which may emerge concerning the severity of COVID-19 and actions taken to contain COVID-19 or its impact, among others.

We rely on information technology in our operations, and any material failure, inadequacy, interruption or security failure of that technology could harm our business.

We rely on information technology networks and systems, including the Internet, to process, transmit and store electronic information and to manage or support a variety of our business processes, including financial transactions and maintenance of records. We rely on commercially available systems, software, tools and monitoring to provide security for processing, transmitting and storing confidential information. Although we have taken steps to protect the security of the data maintained in our information systems, it is possible that our security measures will not be able to prevent the systems' improper functioning, or the improper disclosure of information in the event of cyber-attacks. Physical or electronic break-ins, computer viruses, attacks by hackers and similar security breaches, can create system disruptions, shutdowns or unauthorized disclosure of confidential information. Any failure to maintain proper function, security and availability of our information systems could interrupt our operations, damage our reputation, subject us to liability claims or regulatory penalties and could materially and adversely affect us.

Additionally, due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, large numbers of our employees are working remotely from their homes, which could have the effect of exacerbating any of the foregoing risks. While we have taken steps to ensure the security of our data and to prevent security breaches, many of these measures are being deployed for the first time on a widespread and sustained basis, and there is no guarantee the data security and privacy safeguards we have put in place will be completely effective or that we will not encounter some of the common risks associated with employees accessing Company data and systems remotely. As a result, we may be required to expend significant capital and other resources to protect against security breaches or to alleviate problems caused by security breaches.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The table below provides information regarding shares of common stock withheld from Uniti employees to satisfy minimum statutory tax withholding obligations arising from the vesting of restricted stock granted under the Uniti Group Inc. 2015 Equity Incentive Plan. The shares of common stock withheld to satisfy tax withholding obligations may be deemed purchases of such shares required to be disclosed pursuant to this Item 2.

| Period | Total Number of Shares Purchased | Average Price Paid per Share(1) | Purchased as Part of Publicly Announced Plans or Programs | Shares that May Yet Be Purchased Under the Plans or Programs |
|---------------------------------|--|------------------------------------|---|--|
| April 1, 2020 to April 30, 2020 | 57,035 | \$ 5.79 | _ | _ |
| May 1, 2020 to May 31, 2020 | 1,313 | 7.18 | _ | _ |
| June 1, 2020 to June 30, 2020 | 22,801 | 8.74 | _ | _ |
| Total | 81,149 | \$ 6.64 | | _ |

⁽¹⁾ The average price paid per share is the weighted-average of the fair market prices at which we calculated the number of shares withheld to cover tax withholdings for the employees.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.

None

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not Applicable

Item 5. Other Information.

None

Item 6. Exhibits.

| Exhibit Number | Description |
|-------------------|--|
| 10.1 | Settlement Agreement, dated as of May 12, 2020 by and among Windstream Holdings, Inc., Windstream Services, LLC and certain of their subsidiaries, and Uniti Group Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 15, 2020 (File No. 001-36708)). |
| 15.1* | Acknowledgement of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. |
| 31.1* | Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. |
| 31.2* | Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. |
| 32.1* | Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. |
| 32.2* | Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. |
| 99.1* | Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. |
| 101.INS | Inline XBRL Instance Document – the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document. |
| 101.SCH | Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document |
| 101.CAL | Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document |
| 101.DEF | Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document |
| 101.LAB | Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document |
| 101.PRE | Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document |
| 104 | Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL document) |

^{*} Filed herewith.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

UNITI GROUP INC.

| Date: | August 10, 2020 | /s/ Mark A. Wallace |
|-------|-----------------|--|
| | | Mark A. Wallace |
| | | Executive Vice President – Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer |
| | | (Principal Financial Officer) |
| Date: | August 10, 2020 | /s/ Blake Schuhmacher |
| | | Blake Schuhmacher |
| | | Senior Vice President – Chief Accounting Officer |
| | | (Principal Accounting Officer) |

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

August 10, 2020

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors Uniti Group Inc.:

We acknowledge our awareness of the use of our report dated August 10, 2020 related to our review of interim financial information, included within the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Uniti Group Inc. for the three-month and six-month periods ended June 30, 2020, and incorporated by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (No. 333-203591 and No. 333-225501) and Form S-3 (No. 333-237139).

Pursuant to Rule 436 under the Securities Act of 1933 ("the Act"), such report is not considered part of a registration statement prepared or certified by an independent registered public accounting firm, or a report prepared or certified by an independent registered public accounting firm within the meaning of Sections 7 and 11 of the Act.

/s/ KPMG LLP Dallas, Texas

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Kenneth A. Gunderman, certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Uniti Group Inc.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant, as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 - (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 - (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
 - (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 - (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 - (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 - (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

| Date: August 10, 2020 | By: | /s/Kenneth A. Gunderman | |
|-----------------------|-----|---------------------------------------|--|
| | | Kenneth A. Gunderman | |
| | | President and Chief Executive Officer | |

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Mark A. Wallace, certify that:

- I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Uniti Group Inc.; 1.
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects 3. the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant, as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in 4. Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 - Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our (a) supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 - (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
 - (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 - Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most (d) recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, 5. to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 - oo in the design

| | | | Mark A. Wallace Executive Vice President – Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer |
|--------------|--|-----|---|
| Date: August | 10, 2020 | Ву: | /s/ Mark A. Wallace |
| () | Any fraud, whether or not mat control over financial reporting | , 8 | employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal |
| (a) | <u>o</u> | 9 | or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are ord, process, summarize and report financial information; and |

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Uniti Group Inc. (the "Company") for the period ending June 30, 2020 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to my knowledge, that:

- (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

| Date: August 10, 2020 | By: | /s/ Kenneth A. Gunderman | |
|-----------------------|-----|---------------------------------------|--|
| | | Kenneth A. Gunderman | |
| | | President and Chief Executive Officer | |

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Uniti Group Inc. (the "Company") for the period ending June 30, 2020 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to my knowledge, that:

- (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

| Date: August 10, 2020 | By: | /s/ Mark A. Wallace | |
|-----------------------|-----|--|--|
| | | Mark A. Wallace | |
| | | Executive Vice President Chief Einensiel Officer | |

Mark A. Wallace
Executive Vice President – Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors Uniti Group Inc.:

Results of Review of Interim Financial Information

We have reviewed the condensed consolidated balance sheet of Uniti Group Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) as of June 30, 2020, and the related condensed consolidated statements of income (loss), comprehensive income (loss) and shareholders' deficit for the three-month and six-month periods ended June 30, 2020, the related condensed consolidated statement of cash flows for the six-month period ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes (collectively, the consolidated interim financial information). Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the consolidated interim financial information for it to be in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019 were audited by other auditors, whose report dated March 12, 2020 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. Such consolidated financial statements were not audited by us and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on the information set forth in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2019. Additionally, the condensed consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income and shareholders' deficit for the three-month and six-month periods ended June 30, 2019, and the related condensed consolidated statement of cash flows for the six-month period ended June 30, 2019, were not audited or reviewed by us and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on them.

Basis for Review Results

This consolidated interim financial information is the responsibility of the Company's management. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our review in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. A review of consolidated interim financial information consists principally of applying analytical procedures and making inquiries of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters. It is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements taken as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas August 10, 2020